
D.S.KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED 
Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) 
CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 

Website: dskcirp.com 

Email ID: ip.dskdl@gmail.com  

Regd. Office: DSK HOUSE, 1187/60, J.M. ROAD SHIVAJINAGAR, 

PUNE – 411005 (MAHARASHTRA) 

Address for communication: Office No 40, 2nd Floor, Sanas Plaza, 

Bajirao Road, 1302 Shukrawar Peth, PUNE - 411002 
 

 

Date: August 28, 2021 

 

To, 

BSE Limited, 

Listing Department, 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy tower, 

Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai – 400 001 

Scrip Code - 523890 

ISIN –INE891A01014 

To,                                                                                                              

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., 

Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, 

Bandra Kurla Complex, 

Bandra (E) 

Mumbai – 400 051 

ISIN - INE891A01014 

 

Dear Sir, 

 

Sub: Compliance of Regulations 30 and 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Part A of Schedule III of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. 

 

Pursuant to Regulations 30 and 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) read with Part A of Schedule III of SEBI Listing 

Regulations, please find enclosed herewith 30th Annual Report of the Company for the 

Financial Year 2020-2021 and the Notice convening 30th Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be 

held on Tuesday, September 21, 2021 at 03.00 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / 

Other Audio Visual Means (“OVAM”). 

 

Further, the Annual Report along with the Notice convening 30th AGM of the Company for the 

Financial Year 2020-21 is being dispatched / sent to the Members through email only on August 

28, 2021 whose email were registered with the Company / Depositories. 

 

Further, please note the following: 

 

Sr. No. Particulars Date  

1 Cut-off Date / Record Date for 

Determining the shareholders of 30th 

Annual General Meeting 

Tuesday, September 14, 2021 

2 Remote E-voting Period Commence on Saturday, September 18, 2021 

(09:00 a.m. IST) and 

End on Monday, September 20, 2021 (5:00 

p.m. IST) 

3 Book Closure From Tuesday, September 14, 2021 to 

Tuesday, September 21, 2021 

 

 

Request you to take the above on your record. 
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D.S.KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED 
Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) 
CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 

Website: dskcirp.com 

Email ID: ip.dskdl@gmail.com  

Regd. Office: DSK HOUSE, 1187/60, J.M. ROAD SHIVAJINAGAR, 

PUNE – 411005 (MAHARASHTRA) 

Address for communication: Office No 40, 2nd Floor, Sanas Plaza, 

Bajirao Road, 1302 Shukrawar Peth, PUNE - 411002 
 

 

Thanking you, 

 

For D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 

(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal                            

Resolution Professional 

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 

 

Encl.: As above 
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D.S.KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED 
Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) 
CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 
Registered Office: DSK House, 1187/60, J.M. Road Shivajinagar, Pune – 411005 (Maharashtra) 
Website: www.dskcirp.com 
Email ID: ip.dskdl@gmail.com 

NOTICE 
 
Notice is hereby given that the Thirtieth (30th) Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the members of D S 
Kulkarni Developers Limited (“Corporate Debtor/Company”) under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution 
Process under the provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, will be held on Tuesday, 
September 21, 2021 at 03.00 P.M (IST) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means 
(“OVAM”), to transact the following business: 

 
BACKGROUND: 
   
The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) was initiated, on a petition filed by Bank of 
Maharashtra against D S Kulkarni Developers Limited (“Corporate Debtor/Company”), which was 
admitted vide an Order dated September 26, 2019 (“Insolvency Commencement Date”) of the Hon’ble 
National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Mumbai, under the provisions Section 7 of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder (“the Code”).  

 
The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated September 26, 2019 allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company 
and Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 was 
appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Company. The appointment of Mr. Manoj 
Kumar Agarwal was confirmed/approved as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the Company by the 
Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). As per Section 17 of the Code, from the date of appointment of the IRP 
the management of affairs and powers of the board of directors of the Company were suspended and 
stood vested with IRP/RP of the Company. 
 

In accordance with the provisions of the Code, various resolution plans in respect of the Company were 
received by the RP. The CoC, in their meeting held on 02nd August, 2021 decided to put the Resolution 
plans for e-voting, after which the CoC members have approved the resolution plan submitted by Ashdan 
Properties Pvt. Ltd., Classic Promoters & Builders Pvt. Ltd. and Atul Builders- Consortium (“Successful 
Resolution Applicant”) with requisite majority through e-voting which concluded on 13th August, 2021. 
Further, the RP is in the process of submitting the approved Resolution Plan to the Competent Authority 
in accordance with Section 30(6) of the Code.  
 
 
In view thereof, the Annual General Meeting of Members is being called and convened by the RP. 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt: 



 
a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021, 

together with the reports of the Board of Directors’ and Auditor’s thereon; and 
 

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2021 together with the Report of the Auditor’s thereon. 

 
 

                          For D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 
     (Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 

Date: August 16, 2021 
Place: Mumbai  

Sd/- 
                   Manoj Kumar Agarwal 

                          Resolution Professional 
       IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Regd. Office: DSK House, 1187/60, J.M. Road Shivajinagar, Pune – 411005 (Maharashtra) 
Address for communication: Office No 40, 2nd Floor, Sanas Plaza, Bajirao Road, 1302 Shukrawar Peth, 

PUNE - 411002 



: NOTES : 

 
1. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be 

followed and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated 
April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 
05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and all other relevant circulars issued 
from time to time, physical attendance of the Members to the AGM venue is not required and 
general meeting be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). 
Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM. 
 

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this 
AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the 
AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting. 
 

3. The relative Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”), if any/Notes, setting out material facts concerning the Business to be transacted at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) is annexed hereto. 

4. None of the directors are eligible for retirement by rotation u/s 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

5. The Company at its 26th Annual General Meeting, ratified all the resolutions passed for the 
appointment of M/s R.C. Jain & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditor of 
the Company by the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”) constituted under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with other applicable rules and regulation made thereunder, Resolution 
Professional appointed the said Statutory Auditor of the Company to hold office for the period of 
Five years i.e. from the Financial Year 2017-18 to 2021-22 respectively pursuant to the provision of 
Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

6. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the 
Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 
1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders 
holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM 
without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 
7. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 

purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

8. In case of joint holders attending the meeting through VC / OAVM, only such joint holder who is 
higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote. 

9. Institutional / Corporate Members (i.e. other than Individuals/HUF/NRI) etc are required to send the 
scanned copy of the Board Resolution (pdf or jpg format) authorizing their representatives to attend 



the meeting through VC / OAVM on their behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said 
Resolution / Authorisation shall be sent to the Company by email through its registered email 
address to agmfordskdl@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in  

10. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed on Tuesday, 
September 14, 2021 to Tuesday, September 21, 2021 for the purpose of the Annual General Meeting. 

11. Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend Amount and Shares to the Investor Education and Protection fund 
(IEPF) Authority: 
 
Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act, read with Investor Education and Protection Fund 
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, (including any statutory 
modification(s) and / or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), during the year under 
review the un-paid/unclaimed dividend for the financial year 2010-11, & financial year 2014-15 and 
shares for which no dividend was claimed from consecutive seven years were transferred to the IEPF 
Authority established by the Central Government. The list shareholders whose shares and dividend 
were transferred to IEPF Authority are not available on the website of the Company, as the Company 
is in the process of CIRP. 

Further, the Company will be transferring the dividend and the shares to the IEPF Authority for its 
Dividend Account of the financial year 2010-11 and 2014-15 which was due in October, 2018 and 
October, 2022 respectively. The shareholders are once again requested to claim their un-
paid/unclaimed to avoid the transfer to IEPF. 

Members who have not yet en-cashed their Final Dividends from financial year 2010-11 and 2014-15 
and thereafter are requested to make their claims to the Company / RTA. Members are requested to 
quote folio numbers / DP ID – Client ID in all their correspondence. 

In case the members have any queries on the subject matter and the Rules, they may contact the 
Company’s RTA. The members / claimants whose shares and / or, unclaimed dividend,, etc. have 
been transferred to IEPF Authority may claim the shares and unclaimed dividend by the members 
have any queries on the subject matter and the Rules, they may contact the Company’s RTA. The 
members / claimants whose shares and / or, unclaimed dividend making an application to IEPF 
Authority in IEPF Form-5 (available on www.iepf.gov.in). The member / claimant can file only one 
consolidated claim in a financial year as per the IEPF Rules. It is in the members’ interest to claim 
any un-en-cashed dividends from IEPF and for future dematerialization of their shares and opt for 
Automated Clearing House (ACH) mode, so that dividends paid by the Company are credited to the 
investor’s account on time. 

12. Share Transfer Permitted only in Demat: Pursuant to SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD-
NRO/GN/2018/24 dated 8th June, 2018 and further amendment vide Notification No. SEBI/LAD-
NRO/GN/2018/49 dated 30 November, 2018, it is advised that transfer of securities (except in case 
of transmission or transposition of securities) shall not be processed from 1 April, 2019 unless the 
securities are held in the dematerialized form with the depositories. Therefore, members holding 
shares in physical form are requested to take action to dematerialise the Equity Shares, promptly to 
avoid inconvenience in future. 
 



13. In compliance with the Circulars, the Annual Report of the Company with the Notice of the AGM, 
instructions for e-voting are being sent only through electronic mode (E-mail) to those members 
whose E-mail addresses are registered with the Company / depository participant(s). We request the 
Members to register / update their e-mail address with their Depository Participant, in case they 
have not already registered/ updated the same. 

14. Pursuant to the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company is required to maintain Bank details of its 
members for the purpose of payment of Dividends, etc. Members are requested to register / update 
their Bank details with the Company in case shares are held in physical form and with their 
Depository Participants where shares are held in dematerialised mode to enable expeditious credit 
of the dividend into their respective Bank accounts electronically through the Automated Clearing 
House (ACH) mode. 

15. The Members, desiring any information relating to the Accounts, are requested to write to the 
Company at agmfordskdl@gmail.com, to enable us to keep the requisite information ready. 

16. The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under 
Section 170 and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements, in which the Directors are interested 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be available for inspection during the AGM. All 
documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without any fee 
by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of General Meeting. 
Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to agmfordskdl@gmail.com  

17. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the 
Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 
05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the 
business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through 
electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using 
remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by 
NSDL. 

18. In accordance with the Secretarial Standard - 2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) read with Clarification / Guidance on applicability of 
Secretarial Standards - 1 and 2 dated 15th April, 2020 issued by the ICSI, the proceedings of the AGM 
shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company which shall be the venue 
of the AGM.  

19. Since the AGM will be held through VC, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice. 

20. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in 
electronic form are therefore requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants and 
members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company. 



21. The shareholders who wish to nominate, any person to whom his securities shall vest in the event of 
his death, may do so by submitting the attached Nomination Form (Form SH - 13) to the Company. A 
nomination may be cancelled, or varied by nominating any other person in place of the present 
nominee, by the holder of securities who has made the nomination, by giving a notice of such 
cancellation or variation. 

22. The Notice for the Annual General Meeting will be available for inspection at the Communication 
address of the Company on all working days between 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon upto the date of 
Annual General Meeting. The Notice will also be available on the Company’s website at: 
www.dskcirp.com 

23. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 
17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 
2/2021 dated January 13, 2021. 

24. PROCESS AND MANNER OF E-VOTING: 

The remote e-voting period commences on Saturday, September 18, 2021 (10:00 A.M. IST) and 
ends on Monday, September 20, 2021 (5:00 P.M. IST). During this period, Members’ of the 
Company holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off 
date Thursday, September 14, 2021, may cast their vote by remote e- voting. The remote e-
voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is 
cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. Further, the 
Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting shall not vote by e-voting conducted 
during the Meeting. 
 
A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial 
Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the 
facility of remote e-voting. 
 
The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend / 
participate in the AGM through VC / OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. The 
Members, who has not cast their vote by remote e-voting, shall vote through e-voting system in 
the AGM. 
 
Shareholders holding multiple folios / demat account shall choose the voting process separately 
for each of the folios / demat account. 
 
The Company has appointed Mr. Mihen Halani, Proprietor of M/s. Mihen Halani and Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries, to act as a Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the entire voting process 
in a fair and transparent manner. The members desiring to vote through Remote E-voting are 
requested to refer to the detailed procedure given hereinafter. 

 
25. PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING 



How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting System. 
 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in 
order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL 
Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click 
on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is 
available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to 
enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 



on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 
below for seamless voting experience. 

 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can 
login through their user id and password. Option will be 
made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest 
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also 
able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast 
your vote. 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 
register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistra
tion 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 
Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be provided links for the respective 
ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress. 



Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) login through 
their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be 
able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will 
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 
990  and  1800 22 44 30 
 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 or 022-23058542-43 
 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding 
securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to 
Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 



Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or 
CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 
login and cast your vote. 

 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 

‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 
change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 

‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent 
to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment 
i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 
digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and 
your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process 
for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 



6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten 
your password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio 
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 

check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 
 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 
are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need 
to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
General Guidelines for shareholders 

 
1.  Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 

send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter 
etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are 
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to mihenhalani@gmail.com with a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 



 
2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an 
event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User 
Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 
 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting  user manual for Shareholders available at  the  download  
section  of  www.evoting.nsdl.com  or  call  on  toll  free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 
22 44 30 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the Depositories / 
Company for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice: 

 
a. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of the shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN 
card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company at 
agmfordskdl@gmail.com and ashok.sherugar@linkintime.co.in or evoting@nsdl.co.in  
 

b. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN 
(self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar 
Card) to evoting@nsdl.co.in. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login 
method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode. 

c. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id 
and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

d. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to 
access e-Voting facility. 

 
Instructions for Members for e-voting on the day of the AGM are as under: 
 

a. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above 
for remote e-voting. 

 
b. Only those Members / shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC / OAVM and 

have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

 



c. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, 
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

 
d. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the 

facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-
voting. 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC / OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 

(1) Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the 
NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access 
to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed 
under “Join General meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on 
VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be 
available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please 
note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have 
forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting 
instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

  
(2) Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 
(3) Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid 

any disturbance during the meeting. 
 
(4) Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
(5) Shareholders may send their questions/queries in advance at least 48 working hours prior to the 

time fixed for meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, 
mobile number at company’s email agmfordskdl@gmail.com These queries will be replied to by the 
company suitably by email or answered during the AGM. 

 
(6) The Resolution Professional shall, at the Annual General Meeting, at the end of discussion on 

the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow e-voting for all those Members who are 
present at the Annual General Meeting by electronic means but have not cast their votes by 
availing the remote e-voting facility. 

 
(7) The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the Annual General Meeting, will first 

count the votes casted during the AGM and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-
voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and 
shall make, not later than 48 hours of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s 
report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Resolution Professional or a 
person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of 



the voting forthwith. 
 
(8) The Results declared along with the report of the scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of 

the Company www.dskcirp.com immediately after the declaration of result by the Resolution 
Professional or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately 
forwarded to the Stock Exchange – BSE Ltd and National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
where the shares of the Company are listed. 

 
For D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 

       (Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 
Date: August 16, 2021 
Place: Mumbai  

Sd/- 
                   Manoj Kumar Agarwal 

              Resolution Professional 
       IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 

 
 



D.S.KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED 
Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) 
CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 
Website: www.dskcirp.com 
Email ID: ip.dskdl@gmail.com 

E-mail Registration-Cum-Consent Form 

To, 
Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal 
Resolution Professional 
D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 
1187 /60 J M Road, Shivaji Nagar, 
Pune, Maharashtra 411005 
 
I/We the members of the Company do hereby request you to kindly register/update my e-mail address 
with the Company. I/We, do hereby agree and authorize the Company to send me/ us all the 
communications in electronic mode at the e-mail address mentioned below. Please register the below 
mentioned e-mail address / mobile number for sending communication through e-mail/mobile. 
 

Folio No:……………………. DP-ID:………………… Client ID:………………………………. 
 

Name of the Registered Holder (1st):……………………………………………………………… 
 

Name of the joint holder(s) (2nd): ……………………………(3rd):……………………………… 
 

Registered Address: ………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

………………………………………………………….. PIN: ..………………..…………….……… 
 

Mobile Nos. (to be registered):…………………………….…….. 
 

Email id (to be registered):…………………………….…………. 
 
 
 

 

Signature of the Shareholder(s)* 

* Signature of all the shareholders is required in case of joint holding. 

Regd. Office: DSK house, 1187/60, J.M. ROAD SHIVAJINAGAR, PUNE – 411005 (MAHARASHTRA) 
Address for communication: Office No 40, 2nd Floor, Sanas Plaza, Bajirao Road, 1302 Shukrawar Peth, 

PUNE - 411002



Form No. SH-13 Nomination Form 

(Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debentures) Rules, 2014) 

To, 
Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal 
Resolution Professional 
D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 
1187 /60 J M Road, Shivaji Nagar, 
Pune, Maharashtra 411005 
 

I/We the holder(s) of the securities particulars of which 
are given hereunder wish to make nomination and do hereby nominate the following persons in whom 
shall vest, all the rights in respect of such securities in the event of my/our death. 
 
1. PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in respect of which nomination is being made)- 

 
Nature of 
securities 

Folio No. No. of Securities Certificate No. Distinctive No. 

     
 

2. PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE/S— 
 

(a) Name: 
(b) Date of Birth: 
(c) Father’s/Mother’s/ Spouse’s name: 
(d) Occupation: 
(e) Nationality: 
(f) Address: 
(g) E-mail id: 
(h) Relationship with the security holder: 

 
3. IN CASE NOMINEE IS A MINOR– 
 

(a) Date of birth: 
(b) Date of attaining majority: 
(c) Name of guardian: 
(d) Address of guardian: 

 
Name:   
Address:  
 
Name of the Security Holder(s):   
Signatures:   
Witness with name and address:  



 

Instructions: 

1. Please read the instructions given below very carefully and follow the same to the letter. If the 
form is not filled as per instructions, the same will be rejected. 

2. The nomination can be made by individuals only. Non individuals including society, trust, body 
corporate, partnership firm, Karta of Hindu Undivided Family, holder of power of attorney cannot 
nominate. If the Shares are held jointly all joint holders shall sign (as per the specimen registered 
with the Company) the nomination form. 

3. A minor can be nominated by a holder of Shares and in that event the name and address of the 
Guardian shall be given by the holder. 

4. The nominee shall not be a trust, society, body corporate, partnership firm, Karta of Hindu 
Undivided Family, or a power of attorney holder. A non-resident Indian can be a nominee on re-
patriable basis. 

5. Transfer of Shares in favour of a nominee shall be a valid discharge by a Company against the legal 
heir(s). 

6. Only one person can be nominated for a given folio. 
7. Details of all holders in a folio need to be filled; else there quest will be rejected. 
8. The nomination will be registered only when it is complete in all respects including the signature of 

(a) all registered holders (as per specimen lodged with the Company) and (b) the nominee. 
9. Whenever the Shares in the given folio are entirely transferred or dematerialised, then this 

nomination will stand rescinded. 
10. Upon receipt of a duly executed nomination form, the Registrars & Transfer Agent of the Company 

will register the form and allot a registration number. The registration number and folio no. should 
be quoted by the nominee in all future correspondence. 

11. The nomination can be varied or cancelled by executing fresh nomination form. 
12. The Company will not entertain any claims other than those of a registered nominee, unless so 

directed by a Court. 
13. The intimation regarding nomination / nomination form shall be filed in duplicate with the 

Registrars & Transfer Agents of the Company who will return one copy thereof to the members. 
14. For shares held in dematerialised mode nomination is required to be filed with the Depository 

Participant in their prescribed form. 

 

 



NOTE REGARDING ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTS AT ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: 
 
Item No. 1 (a) & (b) 
 
To consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company (standalone and 
consolidated) for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and the reports of the Directors and 
Auditors thereon 
 
As per Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, where a company has one or more subsidiaries, it is 
required to prepare a consolidated financial statement of the company and of all the subsidiaries in the 
same form and manner as that of its own which is to be laid before the Annual General Meeting of the 
company along with the laying of its financial statement under Section 129(2) of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

 
As per the details available, the Company is having Four subsidiaries i.e. DSK Developers Corporation, 
DSK Woods LLC, DSK Southern Projects Pvt Ltd & DSK Infra Pvt Ltd (“said Subsidiaries”), of which Two 
domestic subsidiaries have complied with annual fillings with Registrar of Companies upto 31st March 
2016. Further, the RP does not have access to the information(s)/detail(s)/record(s)/document(s) of the 
said Subsidiaries. Hence, the consolidated Financials for the FY 2020-2021 have not been prepared. 
Accordingly, the Standalone financial statements have been placed before the Members at the annual 
general meeting for their approval. 

 
After considering all other agenda items, it is proposed to adjourn the annual general meeting sine die 
to be reconvened after consolidated accounts for financial year 2020-2021 are ready for adoption by the 
members. 
 

For D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 
      (Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 

Date: August 16, 2021 
Place: Mumbai  

Sd/- 
                Manoj Kumar Agarwal 

                     Resolution Professional 
       IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
To,  
The Members 
D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) (Herein after referred as “the Company/Corporate 
Debtor”) 
 
The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated September 26, 2019 allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company and Mr. 
Manoj Kumar Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 was appointed as the 
Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Corporate Debtor. The appointment of Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal 
was confirmed/approved as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the Corporate Debtor by the Committee of 
Creditors (“CoC”). As per Section 17 of the Code, from the date of appointment of the IRP the management of 
affairs and powers of the board of directors of the Company were suspended and stood vested with IRP/RP of 
the Corporate Debtor. 
 
In exercise of the powers of the Board of Directors by the Resolution Professional of the Corporate Debtor as 
per Section 17(1)(b) of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, hereby present the Thirtieth Annual Report on 
business and operations of the Company along with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2021. 
 

1. Financial Results: 
 
Performance of the Company, on standalone basis, for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 is as 
summarized below: 
         (Amount in “Lakhs”) 

Particulars Year Ended 
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 

Income from Operations - 5.64 

Total Income - 5.64 

Total Expenses 320.42 3,303.47 

Profit / loss before Tax (320.42) (3,297.83) 

Tax Expense - - 

Net Profit / loss after tax (320.42) (3,297.83) 
 
The revenue from operations for the year ended 31st March, 2021 is Nil as compared to Rs. 5.64/- (Rupees in 
Lakhs) for the previous year ending 31st March, 2020. 
 

2. Indian Accounting Standards: 
 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its notification in the official Gazette dated February 16, 2015, 
notified the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) according to which, certain class of companies, which inter - 
alia included all listed companies whose accounting period begins on or after April 1, 2016, are required to 
comply with Ind AS. Ind AS has replaced the existing Indian GAAP prescribed under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. For the Corporate Debtor, Ind 
AS is applicable form April 1, 2016, with a transition date of April 1, 2015 and IGAAP as the previous GAAP. 
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Accordingly, Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2020-21 have been 
prepared as per IND AS. 
 

3. State of Company’s Affairs:  
 
Search and seizure operations were conducted by the Enforcement Directorate(ED). During this search and 
seizure and during the process of investigation, Economic Offence Wing of Police Dept. has taken in its custody 
physical and electronically maintained records of the Company. 
 
Investigation is going on against the Company under various laws including the Maharashtra Protection of 
interest of Depositors Act (MPID), Economic Offences Wing (EOW) –Pune, Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016, Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002. The matter is sub-judice and the impact of the outcome, if 
any, is uncertain at present. 
 
The Company has received 3 Resolution Plans which were put to vote before the Committee of Creditors 
(“CoC”). The  Committee of Creditors ( CoC ) has approved the resolution plan submitted by Consortium of 
Ashdan Properties Pvt Ltd, Classic Promoters & Builders Pvt. Ltd and Atul Builders, with a requisite majority of 
the voting share as per the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code , 2016 (IBC). The resolution professional is in the 
process of submitting the resolution plan as approved by the CoC to Adjudicating Authority for necessary 
approval under Section 31 of the IBC. 
 
There were no business operations during the CIRP period. 
 

4. Change in the nature of business: 
 
There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review. 
 

5. Corporate Governance: 
 
The Company is committed to maintain high standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to the Corporate 
Governance requirements set out by SEBI. The Report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms an Integral part this Annual Report. 
Requisite Certificate from the Auditors of the Company confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance is attached to this Annual Report as ‘Annexure- 1’.. 
 
A certificate from a practicing Company Secretary on compliance(s) with the corporate governance norms 
forms part of the Corporate Governance Report. 
 

6. Dividend: 
 
During the year under review, since the Company is under CIR Process and due to current year losses, no 
dividend on the equity shares of the Company has been recommended. 
 

7. Transfer to reserves: 
 
The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to the General Reserves. 
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8. Transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund: 
 
Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act, read with Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, (including any statutory modification(s) and / or 
reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), Company is required to transfer dividend and the shares 
for which no dividend was claimed from consecutive seven years to the IEPF Authority established by the 
Central Government. 
 
As the company is under CIRP and due to non-availability of proper records and documents, the unpaid 
dividend and underlying shares has not been transferred to IEPF.  
 

9. Issues/Allotment 
 
i) the Company has not issued/allotted Equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or 

otherwise;  
ii) the Company does not have any ESOP scheme for its employees / Directors; 
iii) the Company has not bought back any of its securities; 
iv) the Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares; 
v) the Company has not issued any Bonus Shares. 
vi) during the year under review, the Company has not issued/ allotted any kind of Equity Shares. 
  

10. Public Deposits: 
 
During the year under Report the Company did not accept any fresh deposits from the public and shareholders 
covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

 Deposits accepted during the year: Nil 
 Outstanding deposits as on 31st March, 2021: 73,120.285 Lacs 
 Deposits remained unpaid as at the end of the year: 16,570.627 Lacs (this is based on the no. of claims 

received by depositors) 
 Deposits remained unclaimed as at the end of the year: Nil 
 There has been default in payment of matured Fixed Deposits or Fixed Deposit interest during the year.  
 There are no deposits which are not in compliance with the requirement of Chapter V of the Act.  
 Fixed deposits which have matured have remained unpaid: 16,570.627 Lacs (this is based on the no. of 

claims received by depositors) 
 
Further pursuant to public announcement issued by the Interim Resolution Professional(“IRP”)/Resolution 
Professional (“RP”) calling upon the stakeholders for submission of proof of their claims, fixed deposit holders 
have filed a claim with the IRP/RP and the same has been admitted by the IRP/RP after due verification based 
on the available data. 
 
Total number of depositors as at the end of the Financial year 2021 is 1323 (This is based on the no. of claims 
received from depositors) and above figures as per the data available with the Company. 
 

11. Material Changes and Commitments, If any, affecting the financial position of the Company, occurred after 
the balance sheet date and as at the date of signing this report 
 
Except for the consolidation of the CIRP of the 4 (four) subsidiaries i.e. DSK Developers Corporation, DSK Woods 
LLC, DSK Southern Projects Pvt Ltd & DSK Infra Pvt Ltd (“said Subsidiaries”), there are no material changes and 
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commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred after the Balance Sheet Date and as at 
the date of signing of this report. 
 

12. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments: 
 
Details of loans, guarantees or investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are given in 
notes to the standalone financial statements forming part of the Annual Report. 
 

13. Particulars of contracts or arrangements made with related parties: 
 
All the related party transaction under provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been entered 
into by the Company are at arm’s length price and in ordinary course of business. 
 
There are no materially significant related party transactions entered into by the Company with Promoters, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons, etc., which may have potential conflict with 
the interest of the Company at large or which warrants the approval of the shareholders. The details of the 
transactions with Related Party, if any are provided in the Company’s financial statements in accordance with 
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). 
 
Since, there are no material related party transactions, there is no requirement of providing details of related 
party transactions in Form AOC-2 as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). 
 

14. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies: 
 
As per the details available, the Company is having Four subsidiaries i.e. DSK Developers Corporation, DSK 
Woods LLC, DSK Southern Projects Pvt Ltd & DSK Infra Pvt Ltd (“said Subsidiaries”), of which Two domestic 
subsidiaries have complied with annual fillings with Registrar of Companies upto 31st March 2016. Further, the 
RP does not have access to the information(s)/detail(s)/record(s)/document(s) of the said Subsidiaries. Hence, 
the Company is unable to provide a report on the performance and the financial position of the subsidiaries 
associates and joint venture in Form AOC-1 as required under Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 
As per the details available, the Company does not have any ‘Associate Company and/or Joint ventures’ within 
the meaning of Section 2(6) of the Act. 
  

15. Listing of Securities: 
 
The Shares of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited (NSE). No listing fees have been paid for the financial year. 
 
The Shares of the Company were placed in Z category by BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited. 
 

16. Directors’ Responsibility Statements: 
 
The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) had admitted the petition for initiating the Corporate 
Insolvency Resolution (CIR) Process under the provisions of the Insolvency Bankruptcy Code 2016 (IBC). Further, 
pursuant to the aforesaid NCLT order (Communicated on 21st November 2017) and pursuant to Section 17 of 
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the IBC the powers of the Board of Directors stood suspended and such powers were vested with the IRP/RP Mr. 
Manoj Kumar Agarwal. 
 
In light of the aforesaid and pursuant to the requirements under sub section (3)(c) and (5) of Section 134 of the 
Companies Act 2013 with respect to Directors' Responsibility Statement it is hereby confirmed by the 
Resolution Professional that: 
 
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along 

with proper explanation relating to material departures; 
 

b) accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period; 

 
c) proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities; 

 
d) the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 
 
e) Internal financial controls to be followed by the Company have been laid down and ensured that such 

internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and 
 

f) proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 
17. Declaration of Independent Directors: 

 
The Company is under CIRP and accordingly power of the Board has been suspended. Further, the Company has 
not received declaration(s) from any independent director as required to be obtained under section 149(7) of 
Companies Act 2013. 
 

18. Board Evaluation: 
 
The provisions of section 134(3)(p) of the Act read with rule 8(4) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for 
having formal self-annual evaluation by the Board of Directors is applicable to the Company. However, the 
Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) and the entire Board is suspended, hence no 
formal evaluation of the Board has taken place. 
 

19. Committees of Board: 
 
After the commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) the powers of the Board of 
Directors including Committees of the Company stands suspended. 
 
Further, as per Regulation 15(2B) of SEBI LODR, the roles and responsibilities of the Committees specified in 
regulations 18, 19, 20 and 21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) 
Regulations, 2018 after the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) shall be fulfilled 
by Resolution Professional and powers of the Board of Directors stands suspended. Thus, no meetings of the 
Committees were held after the Commencement of CIRP. 
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20. Details pertaining to remuneration as required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
At present, there are no employees on the payroll of the Company and further the company is under Corporate 
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (IBC). 
 
In view of the above, the particulars of ratio of remuneration of each director to median remuneration of the 
employees of the Company for the financial year under report, percentage increase in remuneration to each 
Director and Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”), etc. more particularly described under Section 197(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, are not applicable. 
 

21. Vigil Mechanism: 
 
The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism in form of whistle blower policy. At present there are no 
employees on the payroll of the Company and also Company’s business operations are also closed. 
 

22. Risk management: 
 
Pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR”) the Company has not constituted a Risk Management Committee. The 
Company has adequate Risk Management policy. 
 

23. Directors & Key Managerial Personnel (KMP): 
 
During the year there were no changes in the composition of Board of Directors of the company.  
 
As per Section 17 of the Code, from the date of appointment of the IRP/RP the management of affairs and 
powers of the board of directors of the Company were suspended and stood vested with IRP/RP of the 
Corporate Debtor. Further, on initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under the provisions 
Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder 
(“the Code”), the powers of Board of Directors of the Company are suspended and same are being exercised by 
the Resolution Professional, and thereafter any change in Management of the Company is restricted by the 
Code. 
 
Further, as per Regulation 15(2A) of SEBI LODR, the provisions of regulation 17 shall not be applicable during 
the insolvency resolution process period in respect of a listed entity which is undergoing corporate insolvency 
resolution process under the Insolvency Code and that the role and responsibilities of the board of directors as 
specified under regulation 17 shall be fulfilled by the interim resolution professional or resolution professional 
in accordance with sections 17 and 23 of the Insolvency Code. 
 

24. Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial control with reference to the financial statements 
 
Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are 
stated in Management Discussion and Analysis, which forms part of this Report. 
 

25. Number of Board Meetings and Committee meetings: 
 
In terms of Section 17 of the Code, on commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), 
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the powers of the Board of Directors stands suspended and the same are being exercised by the Resolution 
Professional. The management of the affairs of the Company has been vested with Resolution Professional, 
therefore no meeting of Board of Directors or Committee was held after the Commencement of Corporate 
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). 
 

26. Auditors: 
 

a) Statutory Auditor: 
 
The Company at its 26th Annual General Meeting, ratified all the resolutions passed for the appointment of M/s 
R.C. Jain & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditor of the Company by the Committee 
of Creditors (“CoC”) constituted under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with other applicable 
rules and regulation made thereunder. Resolution Professional appointed M/s R.C. Jain & Associates LLP, 
Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditor of the Company to hold office for the period of Five years i.e. 
from the Financial Year 2017-18 to 2021-22 respectively pursuant to the provision of Section 139 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The Auditors’ Report and notes to the financial statements referred in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory 
and therefore do not call for any further comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Auditors’ Report is enclosed with the financial statements in this Annual Report.  

 
b) Cost Auditor: 

 
The provisions of section 148 of the Act read with rule 3 of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 
are not applicable to the Company.  
 

c) Secretarial Auditor & Secretarial Compliance Report: 
 
The provisions of section 204 of the Act read with rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the Company has appointed M/s 
Mihen Halani and Associates as the Secretarial Auditor. 
 
The observations referred by the Secretarial Auditors are self-explanatory in nature and therefore do not call 
for any comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 
 
Pursuant to circular No. CIR/ CFD/ CMD1/ 27/ 2019 dated February 08, 2019, issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) the Company has obtained Annual Secretarial Compliance Report from a 
Practicing Company Secretary (PCS) on compliance of all applicable SEBI Regulations and circulars/ guidelines 
issued there under and the copy of the same has been submitted with the Stock Exchanges within the 
prescribed due date. 
 

27. Annual Return: 
 
Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014, the Annual Return for F.Y. 2020-21 is available on Company’s website at https://www.dskcirp.com/ 
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28. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: 
 
The Company has no information to furnish with respect to conservation of energy, technology absorption, 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo, as are needed to be furnished under section 134(3)(m) of the Act read 
with rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
  

29. Significant / Material orders passed by the regulatory etc.: 
 
Except as disclosed in this report and commencement of CIRP under the Code, no material orders were 
passed by Regulators/ Courts / Tribunals during the period impacting the going concern status and Company’s 
operations in future. 
 

30. Disclosure under the Sexual Harrassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013 
 
The Company has in place Policy on Prevention of sexual harassment in line with the requirements of ‘The 
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013’. The Policy 
provides for protection against sexual harassment of women at workplace and for prevention and redressal of 
such complaints. During the year, no complaints were reported.  
 

31. Corporate Social Responsibility: 
 
The provisions of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 
are not applicable to the Company. 
 

32. Secretarial Standards: 
 

The Company complies with Secretarial Standard issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India wherever 
applicable.  
 

33. Acknowledgement:  
 

Your RP wish to place on record their appreciation of the contribution made by the employees of the Company. 
The RP wish to convey their appreciation to the Banks dealers and other business associates and the 
shareholders for their continuous trust and support. 
 

For D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 

 
 
 
Date: 16/08/2021 
Place: Mumbai   

                                                                                          Manoj Kumar Agarwal 
Resolution Professional 

                                                                  IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 
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Mihen halani & associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 

A-501L, Jaswanti Allied Business Centre, Next to Khwaish Hotel, KanchPada,  
Ramchandra Lane Extension Road, Malad (West), Mumbai – 400 064, 

: 022 – 6236 0279,: mihenhalani@gmail.com 
 

FORM MR-3 
Secretarial Audit Report 

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the 

Companies Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
To, 
D S KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LTD 
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 
CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by D S Kulkarni Developers Limited (“hereinafter called the company”). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me/us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the D S Kulkarni Developers Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, 
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report 
that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 
2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 according to the provisions of: 
 
i. The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made there under; 
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the Rules made there under; 
iii. The Depositories Act, 2018 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; Not 
Applicable during the period under review 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”); 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018; 
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e) The Securities And Exchange Board Of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; 
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 - Not 

Applicable during the period under review, and 
i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 -Not Applicable 

during the period under review. 
 

vi. We have relied on the representations made by the Company and its officers for systems and mechanism 
formed by the Company for compliances under other various applicable Acts, Laws, Rules and Regulations 
to the Company. 

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of following: 

(i) the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”); 
(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s). 

     
During the period under review, we report that: 
 
1. The Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under Insolvency and Bankruptcy 

Code. On a petition filed by Bank of Maharashtra against the Company, which was admitted vide an Order 
dated September 26, 2019 of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Mumbai, under the 
provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“the Code”).  
 
The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated September 26, 2019 allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company and 
Mr. Manoj Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 was appointed as the 
Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Company. Further, Mr. Manoj Agarwal was appointed as the 
Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the Company by the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). As per Section 17 of 
the Code, from the date of appointment of the IRP the management of affairs and powers of the board of 
directors of the Company were suspended and stood vested with IRP/RP of the Company. 
 

2. No documents, data or other requisite documents/information’s/details/records were available for our 
verification and accordingly we cannot comment on the compliance status of the company with the 
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.  

 
3. The Board of Directors of the Company is not duly constituted and there is no proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. We are unable to report that the changes in 
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out 
in compliance with the provisions of the Act.  

 
4. As no details are received from the company, we are unable to verify whether adequate notice is given to 

all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven 
days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 
5. We are unable to report that Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are 

captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 
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6. Further, we are unable to report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 
7. Further, as stated above, since we have not received any documents/ details/ informations/records from 

the Company, we cannot comment on the compliance status of the Company with all the applicable laws 
including Companies Act, 2013, statutes, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. 

 
8. We also report following observation during audit period: 
 
It may be noted that as per the provisions of IBC Code and provisions of Regulation 15 (2A) and (2B) of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (SEBI 
(LODR)) as amended from time to time, the provisions specified in regulation 17, 18, 19, 20, 21 shall not be 
applicable during the CIRP. The conditions as specified in said regulations of the SEBI (LODR) shall not be useful 
during the CIRP and the roles and responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the Committees, specified in 
the respective regulations, shall be fulfilled by the Interim Resolution Professional or Resolution Professional, 
as the case may be. 
 

i. We would like highlight following non-compliances during the period under review; 
 

Sr. 
No 

Compliance Requirement (Regulations 
/ circulars / guidelines including 

specific clause) 

Deviations 

1.  Regulation 6(1) of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015- A listed entity shall 
appoint a qualified company secretary 
as the compliance officer. 

The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
of the Company Mr. Rohit Purandhare, has 
resigned w.e.f. 23rd March, 2018 and the 
vacancy is yet to be filled by the listed entity. 

2.  Regulation 27 (2) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015] 

Non filing of Corporate Governance Report for 
all the quarters during the Review Period. 

3.  Regulation 13(3) of SEBI LODR 
Regulations, 2015 

Non filing of Investor Complaints for all the 
quarters during the Review Period except for 
March 2021. 

4.  Regulation 31 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 

Non filing of Shareholding Pattern for all the 
quarters during the Review Period except for 
March 2021. 

5.  Regulation 7(3) and 40(9) of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 

Non filing of; 
 
1) Compliance Certificate under Regulation 7(3) 
of SEBI LODR Regulation, 2015 for the half year 
ended March 2020 and September 2020 
2) Certificate under Regulation 40(9) of SEBI 
LODR Regulation, 2015 for the half year ended 
March 2020 and September 2020. 

6.  Regulation 29 (2) of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 

Non Filing of Prior Intimation 
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7.  Regulation 47 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 

Advertisements in Newspapers 

8.  Regulation 30 of SEBI LODR Regulations, 
2015 - The Listed entities to disclose all 
events or information which are 
material, as soon as reasonably possible 
and not later than twenty-four hours 
from the occurrence of event or 
information 

Non filing of Disclosure of events or information 

9.  Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 

The listed entity has delayed in submitting 
Unaudited Financial results for the quarter 
ended on December 2020. 
 
Further, the Company has not submitted 
unaudited financial results for the quarter and 
year ended March 31, 2020 and for the quarter 
ended June 2020, and September 2020. 

10. Regulation 33(3)(d) of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 

The listed entity has not submitted Audited 
Financial results along with Audit report for the 
quarter and year ended March 2020. 

11. Regulation 23 (9) of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 

The listed entity has not submitted any 
transactions with related party for the half year 
ended on March 2020 and September 2020. 

12. Regulation 14 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 

The listed entity has not paid the Listing fee to 
the recognized stock exchanges for the FY 
2020-21 where the shares of the listed entity 
are listed. 

13. Regulation 24A of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015  

The listed entity has not submitted the Annual 
Secretarial Compliance report for the financial 
year ended March 2020. 

14. Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 

Delay in sending copy of 26th, 27th, 28th and 29th 
Annual Report and Notice of AGM to the 
shareholders 

15. Regulation 46 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 

Non Maintenance of Functional Website 

16. Regulation 36(5) of SEBI LODR 
Regulations, 2015 

The listed entity has not mentioned the terms 
of appointment, material changes in the fee, 
basis of appointment, etc. with respect to 
appointment of M/s. R.C. Jain & Associates as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company, in 26th AGM 
Notice. 

17. Regulation 76 of SEBI (Depositories and 
Participant) Regulations, 2018 

The listed entity has not submitted 
Reconciliation of Share Capital Reports for all 
the quarters of the Review Period. 

18. SEBI circular no. 
SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated 
November 26, 2018 

The listed entity has not given the Disclosure of 
Large Corporate Entity 

19. Regulation 30 (2) of SEBI (Substantial The listed entity has not received yearly 
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Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011 [SEBI (SAST) 
Regulations, 2011]  

disclosures of shareholding from promoters and 
promoters groups. 

20. Regulation 31 (4) of SEBI SAST 
Regulations, 2011 

The listed entity has not received disclosures of 
encumbered shareholding from promoters and 
promoters groups. 

 
ii. No documents, data or other requisite documents / information’s / details / records were available 

for our verification and accordingly we cannot comment on the compliance status of the company with 
the provisions of the following Rules and Regulations; 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Regulations / Provisions of the Regulations / Circular 

1 SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
2 SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
3 SEBI (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
4 SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 
5 SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 
6 Following Regulations of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015; 

- Regulation 23 
- Regulation 22 
- Regulation 24 
- Regulation 39 
- Regulation 40 
- Chapter V and VI 

7 SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2019/140 dated November 21, 2019 
 
Search and seizure operations were conducted by the Enforcement Directorate(ED). During this search and 
seizure and during the process of investigation, Economic Offence Wing of Police Dept. has taken in its custody 
physical and electronically maintained records of the company. 
 
Investigation is going on against the company under various laws including the Maharashtra Protection of 
interest of Depositors Act (MPID), Economic Offences Wing (EOW) –Pune, Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016, Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002. The matter is sub-judice and the impact of the outcome, if 
any, is uncertainable at present. 
 

For MIHEN HALANI & ASSOCIATES 
Practicing Company Secretary 

Date: 13/08/2021 
Place: Mumbai 
UDIN: F009926C000783853         Mihen Halani 

    (Proprietor) 
   CP No: 12015 
   FCS No: 9926 
 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” herewith 
and forms as integral part of this report. 
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APPENDIX A 
 
To, 
D S KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LTD 
CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, 
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 

Company. 
 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 
5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is 

the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test 
basis. 

 
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 

For MIHEN HALANI & ASSOCIATES 
Practicing Company Secretary 

Date: 13/08/2021 
Place: Mumbai 
UDIN: F009926C000783853         Mihen Halani 

    (Proprietor) 
   CP No: 12015 
   FCS No: 9926 
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ANNEXURE 1 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 
The Corporate Governance policy of the Company contemplates compliance with statutes, transparency in 
dealings, simplification and standardization of processes and bonding with customers, which will help the 
Company to achieve its business objectives while maintaining business ethics and professional standards. In 
pursuit of business excellence, the affairs of the Company are administered, directed and controlled in a 
manner which helps to enhance stakeholders’ value by adopting conducive business practices, objectivity, 
accountability and integrity. Environmental aspects are given due importance in the conduct of the Company’s 
business. 
 
Under Section 17 of the IBC 2016 the powers of the Board are suspended and the same are vested on the 
Resolution Professional, Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
 
The business of the Company was being managed by the Board of Directors. However, pursuant to initiation of 
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stood 
suspended with effect from Order dated September 26, 2019 and the Powers of the Board remains vested with 
the Resolution Professional Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 
 COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 
The Company is currently under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) by the Order of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench 
dated September 26, 2019. As per Section 17 of the IBC, 2016, the Powers of the Board of Directors stands 
suspended and such powers shall be vested with Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal (IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-
P00714/2017-2018/11222) appointed as the RP with respect to the Company. 

 
As per Regulation 15(2A) of SEBI LODR, the provisions as specified in Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015 related to “Composition of Board of Directors” shall not be applicable during the Insolvency Resolution 
Process period in respect of a listed entity, which is undergoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process. 
 
As per the data available, during the Financial year the Board of Directors of the Company consists of seven 
directors of which five are independent directors and the rest two are whole-time directors individually titled 
as Chairman and Managing Director and Executive Director respectively. The constitution of the Board and 
other relevant information are given below: 
 

Director DIN Whole time 
/ 
Independent 

Shareholding Number of other 
directorship held 

Committee position 
held in other 
companies 

Mr. D S 
Kulkarni 

00394027 Promoter & 
Chairman & 
Managing 
Director 

60,00,469 7 - 

Mr Shirish 
Kulkarni 

01850287 Promoter & 
Executive 

15,20,000 6 - 
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Director 
Mrs Hemanti 
Kulkarni 

AFOPP4761N Executive 
Director 

- - - 

Mr 
Vijaykumar 
Jagtap 

02555240 Independent 
Non-
Executive 
Director 

- 2 - 

Mr Sahindra 
Jagannath 
Bhawale 

07352920 NA - 14 - 

Mr Rohit 
Subhash 
Purandare* 

AUJPP6312P Company 
Secretary 

- - - 

*Rohit Subhash Purandare, Company Secretary and Compliance officer of the company resigned w.e.f. 
09.03.2018. Hence, office of the compliance officer stands vacated. 
 
(i) As per the information available, the Company does not have any nominee director appointed by any 
institution, lender or equity investor. 
(ii) The Resolution professional unable to comments whether the Company entered into any business 
transaction with independent directors. 
(iii) The Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016 (IBC) by the Order of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench dated 
September 26, 2019. As per Section 17 of the IBC, 2016, the Powers of the Board of Directors stands 
suspended, the all the committees of Board of Directors stands dissolved on September 26, 2019 when NCLT 
Passed order for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). Hence, the limit of committee 
memberships under Reg. 26(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“Listing Regulations”), chairmanship/ memberships of the Audit Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee is not required to disclosed. 
(iv) A declaration regarding adherence to the Code of Conduct is given separately by the Resolution 
Professional. 
 

DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE – Not Available 
 

 INFORMATION ON BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated September 26, 2019 allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company and 
Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 was appointed as 
the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Company. The appointment of Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal 
was confirmed/approved as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the Company by the Committee of 
Creditors (“CoC”). As per Section 17 of the Code, from the date of appointment of the IRP the management 
of affairs and powers of the board of directors of the Company were suspended and stood vested with 
IRP/RP of the Company. 

 
Since no other data/information/documents available with the Company Mr. Manoj Agarwal is unable to 
give the comment on valid constitution of the with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non- Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
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 NUMBER AND DATES OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

After the Commencement of Insolvency Resolution Process In terms of Section 17 of the Code, on 
commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the powers of the Board of Directors 
stands suspended and the same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional. The management of the 
affairs of the Company has been vested with Resolution Professional, therefore no meeting of Board of 
Directors or Committee was held after the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 
(CIRP). 

 
Committees of Board 
 
As per Regulation 15(2B) of SEBI LODR, the provisions as specified in Regulations 18 (Audit Committee), 
Regulation 19 (Nomination and Remuneration Committee), Regulation 20 (Stakeholder’s Relationship 
Committee) and Regulation 21 (Risk Management Committee) under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 shall not be 
applicable during the Insolvency Resolution Process in respect of a listed entity which is undergoing corporate 
insolvency resolution process under the Insolvency Code. 
 
CONSTITUTION AND COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
 
A qualified and independent Audit Committee of the Board required to be constituted in line with the 
provisions of Reg. 18(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations 2015 read with 
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board has duly constituted Audit Committee in compliance with 
the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LODR. 
 
However, as per the provisions of the Code and provisions of Regulation 15 (2A) and (2B) of the SEBI (LODR) as 
amended from time to time, the provisions specified in regulation related to Audit Committee, shall not be 
applicable during the corporate insolvency resolution process and the roles and responsibilities of the board of 
directors and the committees, specified in the respective regulations, shall be fulfilled by the interim 
resolution professional or resolution professional of the Company. 

 
 NUMBER AND DATES OF MEETINGS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
After the Commencement of Insolvency Resolution Process In terms of Section 17 of the Code, on 
commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the powers of the Board of Directors 
stands suspended and the same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional. The management of the 
affairs of the Company has been vested with Resolution Professional, therefore no meeting of Board of 
Directors or Committee was held after the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 
(CIRP). 

 
CONSTITUTION AND COMPOSITION OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 
The Board has duly constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee as required under the applicable 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LODR. 
 
 
However, as per the provisions of the Code and provisions of Regulation 15 (2A) and (2B) of the SEBI (LODR) as 
amended from time to time, the provisions specified in regulation related to Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, shall not be applicable during the corporate insolvency resolution process and the roles and 
responsibilities of the board of directors and the committees, specified in the respective regulations, shall be 
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fulfilled by the interim resolution professional or resolution professional of the Company. 
 
 NUMBER AND DATES OF MEETINGS OF THE NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 
After the Commencement of Insolvency Resolution Process In terms of Section 17 of the Code, on 
commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the powers of the Board of Directors 
stands suspended and the same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional. The management of the 
affairs of the Company has been vested with Resolution Professional, therefore no meeting of Board of 
Directors or Committee was held after the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 
(CIRP). 

 
CONSTITUTION AND COMPOSITION OF STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
 
The Board has duly constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee as required under the applicable 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LODR. 
 
 
However, as per the provisions of the Code and provisions of Regulation 15 (2A) and (2B) of the SEBI (LODR) as 
amended from time to time, the provisions specified in regulation related to Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee, shall not be applicable during the corporate insolvency resolution process and the roles and 
responsibilities of the board of directors and the committees, specified in the respective regulations, shall be 
fulfilled by the interim resolution professional or resolution professional of the Company. 
 
 NUMBER AND DATES OF MEETINGS OF THE STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 
After the Commencement of Insolvency Resolution Process In terms of Section 17 of the Code, on 
commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the powers of the Board of Directors 
stands suspended and the same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional. The management of the 
affairs of the Company has been vested with Resolution Professional, therefore no meeting of Board of 
Directors or Committee was held after the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 
(CIRP). 

 
SECURITIES TRANSFER COMMITTEE 
 
The Board has duly constituted Securities Transfer Committee. 
 
 NUMBER AND DATES OF MEETINGS OF SECURITIES TRANSFER COMMITTEE 

 
After the Commencement of Insolvency Resolution Process In terms of Section 17 of the Code, on 
commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the powers of the Board of Directors 
stands suspended and the same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional. The management of the 
affairs of the Company has been vested with Resolution Professional, therefore no meeting of Board of 
Directors or Committee was held after the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). 

DEBENTURE COMMITTEE 

The Board has duly constituted Debenture Committee. 
 
 NUMBER AND DATES OF MEETINGS OF THE DEBENTURE COMMITTEE 
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After the Commencement of Insolvency Resolution Process In terms of Section 17 of the Code, on 
commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the powers of the Board of Directors 
stands suspended and the same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional. The management of the 
affairs of the Company has been vested with Resolution Professional, therefore no meeting of Board of 
Directors or Committee was held after the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
The Board has duly constituted Finance Committee. 
 
 NUMBER AND DATES OF MEETINGS OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
After the Commencement of Insolvency Resolution Process In terms of Section 17 of the Code, on 
commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the powers of the Board of Directors 
stands suspended and the same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional. The management of the 
affairs of the Company has been vested with Resolution Professional, therefore no meeting of Board of 
Directors or Committee was held after the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE (CSR Committee) 

The Board has duly constituted CSR Committee as per the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 
 
 NUMBER AND DATES OF MEETINGS OF CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

 
After the Commencement of Insolvency Resolution Process In terms of Section 17 of the Code, on 
commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the powers of the Board of Directors 
stands suspended and the same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional. The management of the 
affairs of the Company has been vested with Resolution Professional, therefore no meeting of Board of 
Directors or Committee was held after the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). 
 
SHAREHOLDING OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: Nil (as per the available information) 

CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
As per the available information, before the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency and Resolution Process 
(CIRP) the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors/Management Personnel (‘the Code’), as adopted 
by the Board, is a comprehensive Code applicable to Directors and Management Personnel. 
 
A declaration to this effect signed by the Resolution Professional of the Company is contained in this annual 
report. 
 
DISCLOSURES REGARDING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS:  

The Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under the provisions Section 7 of the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder (“the Code”), and the 
powers of Board of Directors of the Company are suspended and same are being exercised by the Resolution 
Professional, and thereafter any change in Management of the Company is restricted by the Code. 
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REMUNERATION POLICY: 
 
Since no employees of the Company are on payroll, remuneration policy is not applicable to the Company. 
 
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS: Since no employees of the Company are on roll, remuneration policy is not 
applicable to the Company. 
 

OTHER INFORMATION: 
 
 To expedite the process of share transfer, transmission, split, consolidation, rematerialization and 

dematerialization etc. of securities of the Company, the RP had delegated the powers of approving the 
same to the Company's RTA namely Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., Mumbai under the supervision and 
control of the Company Secretary/Compliance Officer of the Company, who was placing a summary 
statement of transfer/transmission, etc. of securities of the Company at the meetings of the said 
Committee. 
 

 In pursuance of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the RP is taking preventive steps 
for Prevention of Insider Trading for complying with the requirements under the SEBI (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and the requirements under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 
Name, Designation and address of the Compliance Officer 
 
No employees are available as the Company is under CIRP. 

# Further, Rohit Subhash Purandare, Company Secretary and Compliance officer of the company resigned 
w.e.f. 09.03.2018. Hence, office of the compliance officer stands vacated. 
 
GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 
 

AGM/Date/time/ Venue Details of Special 
Resolutions passed 

27th AGM (the adjourned AGM) on 6th January, 2021 at 4.30 p.m.
through video Conferencing 

Nil 

28th AGM (the adjourned AGM) on 7th January, 2021 at 3.15 p.m.
through video Conferencing 

Nil 

29th AGM (the adjourned AGM) on 7th January, 2021 at 4.30 p.m.
through video Conferencing 

Nil 

 
POSTAL BALLOT 
 
During the year under review, No Special resolution was passed through postal ballot. 
 
BSE LISTING CENTER 
 
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) has also launched a web based system for corporate to make their 
periodic submission of compliances online. Your company is also filing the all possible quarterly, half yearly and 
yearly filing and all the intimation/ disclosures through the BSE Listing Center. 
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NEAPS: NSE ELECTRONIC APPLICATION PROCESSING SYSTEM 
 
Your company is also filing the all possible quarterly, half yearly and yearly filing and all the intimation/ 
disclosures through the NEAPS platform. 
 
PROCESSING OF INVESTOR COMPLAINTS IN SEBI COMPLAINTS REDRESS SYSTEM (SCORES) 
 
SEBI has commenced processing of investor complaints in a centralized web based complaints redress system 
“SCORES”.  

However, the Company does not have access to the user id and password. Further the RP have provided 
agmfordskdl@gmail.com email Id to complain their complaints. Furthermore, RP has also requested the RTA, to 
resolve the concern queries of stakeholders and read out the points of Investors correspondence as mentioned 
in the report. 
 

PRICE SENSITIVE INFORMATION 
 
All price sensitive information and announcements are communicated to the Stock Exchanges, where the 
Company’s shares are listed, for dissemination to the Shareholders. 
 
OTHER DISCLOSURES: 
 

(a) DISCLOSURES ON MATERIALLY SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS THAT MAY HAVE POTENTIAL 
CONFLICT WITH THE INTERESTS OF THE COMPANY AT LARGE 
 
There were no materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the 
interests of the Company. 
 

(b) FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMMES FOR BOARD MEMBERS 
 
The Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) and the entire Board is suspended, no 
formal evaluation of the Board has taken place. 
 

(c) WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 
 
The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism in form of whistle blower policy. At present there are no 
employees on the payroll of the Company and Company’s business operations are also closed due to initiation 
of CIRP. 
 

(d) MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY –  
 
As per the details available, the Company is having Four subsidiaries i.e. DSK Developers Corporation, DSK 
Woods LLC, DSK Southern Projects Pvt Ltd & DSK Infra Pvt Ltd (“said Subsidiaries”), of which Two domestic 
subsidiaries have complied with annual fillings with Registrar of Companies upto 31st March 2016. Further, the 
RP does not have access to the information(s)/detail(s)/record(s)/document(s) of the said Subsidiaries. Hence, 
the Company is unable to report on the performance and the financial position of the subsidiaries associates 
and joint venture in Form AOC-1 as required under Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 
Details of percentage holding of the Company in the subsidiary companies as on 31st March, 2021 is as follows: 
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Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Subsidiary Company Registered 
in 

Holding percentage 

1 DSK Infra Pvt. Ltd India 100% 

2 DSK Southern Projects Pvt. Ltd. India 100% 

3 DSK Developers Corporation USA 100% 

4 DSK Woods, LLC USA Wholly owned subsidiary of DSK 
Developers Corporation 

 
(e) COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE 

 
The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated September 26, 2019 allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company and Mr. 
Manoj Kumar Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 was appointed as the 
Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Corporate Debtor. The appointment of Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal 
was confirmed/approved as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the Corporate Debtor by the Committee of 
Creditors (“CoC”). As per Section 17 of the Code, from the date of appointment of the IRP the management of 
affairs and powers of the board of directors of the Company were suspended and stood vested with IRP/RP of 
the Corporate Debtor. 
 
The RP strive hard to comply with the Corporate Governance requirement as per SEBI (LODR) 2015. 
 

(f) DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Your Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards laid down by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) including the Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 201while preparing financial statement. 
 
The Report of Resolution professional is also available on both the Stock exchange where securities’ of the 
Company are listed. 
 

(g) MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report is set out in a separate section included in this Annual Report and 
forms part of this Report. 
 

(h) RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 
As per the information available with the Company, the Company has adequate Risk Management policy. 
 

(i) RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 
 
All the related party transactions under provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been 
entered into by the Company are at arm’s length price and in ordinary course of business. 
 
There are no materially significant related party transactions entered into by the Company with Promoters, 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons, etc., which may have potential conflict with 
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the interest of the Company at large or which warrants the approval of the shareholders. The details of the 
transactions with Related Party, if any are provided in the Company’s financial statements in accordance with 
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). 
 
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
 
Company has received the Certificate from the Secretarial auditor of the Company i.e. Mihen Halani & 
Associates regarding non-disqualification of Directors which is forms part of this annual report. 
 
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FROM THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY 
 
Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary, confirming compliance with conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated under Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, is annexed to 
the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report. 
 
CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION 
 
Directors, CFO, including other top management personnel are  in judicial custody and CS of the Company had 
resigned from the Company before commencement of CIRP. So declaration on compliance with the Code of 
Conduct and Ethics duly signed by the Chief Executive Officer is not available. 
 
UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS / REFUND AMOUNTS AND TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION & PROTECTION FUND 
 
Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act, read with Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, (including any statutory modification(s) and / or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), during the year under review the un-paid/unclaimed 
dividend for the financial year 2010-11, & financial year 2014-15 and shares for which no dividend was claimed 
from consecutive seven years were required to be transferred to the IEPF Authority established by the Central 
Government. The list shareholders whose shares and dividend were transferred to IEPF Authority are not 
available on the website of the Company, as the Company is in the process of CIRP. 
 
Members who have not yet en-cashed their Final Dividends from financial year 2010-11 and 2014-15 and 
thereafter are requested to make their claims to the Company / RTA. Members are requested to quote folio 
numbers / DP ID – Client ID in all their correspondence. 
 
In case the members have any queries on the subject matter and the Rules, they may contact the Company’s 
RTA. The members / claimants whose shares and / or, unclaimed dividend, etc. have been transferred to IEPF 
Authority may claim the shares and unclaimed dividend by the members have any queries on the subject 
matter and the Rules, they may contact the Company’s RTA. The members / claimants whose shares and / or, 
unclaimed dividend making an application to IEPF Authority in IEPF Form-5 (available on www.iepf.gov.in). The 
member / claimant can file only one consolidated claim in a financial year as per the IEPF Rules. It is in the 
members’ interest to claim any un-en-cashed dividends from IEPF and for future dematerialization of their 
shares and opt for Automated Clearing House (ACH) mode, so that dividends paid by the Company are credited 
to the investor’s account on time. The table given below gives the dates of dividend declaration since 2007-08 
amounts and the corresponding dates when the said amounts are due to be transferred to the Investor 
Education & Protection Fund. 
 

Year Type Date of Declaration / refund Due date of transfer 
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2008-09 Dividend 29th September, 2009 28th October, 2016 

2009-10 Dividend 29th September, 2010 28th October, 2017 

2010-11 Dividend 29th September, 2011 28th October, 2018 

2011-12 Dividend 26th September, 2012 25th October, 2019 

2012-13 Dividend 27th September, 2013 26th October, 2020 

2013-14 Dividend 30th September, 2014 29th October, 2021 

2014-15 Dividend 29th September, 2015 28th October, 2022 

 
SECURED REDEEMABLE NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDs) 
 
The Company’s Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) offered for subscription to public 
under the Prospectus dated 28th July, 2014, were allotted on 6th September, 2014 and are listed on BSE on 
10th September, 2014. The ISIN details for these NCDs are as under: 
 

Series 
/Tranche 

ISIN Scrip 
Code 

No. of 
NCDs 

Face 
value 

(in cr.) 

Rate of 
Interest 

Interest 
Interval 

Date of 
Redemption 

Option I INE891A07011 935190 1,03,444 5000 12.50%* Quarterly 06/09/2017 
Option II INE891A07037 935192 46,851 5000 NA Cumulative 06/03/2020 
Option III INE891A07045 935194 849 25000 12.65%* Annually Staggered 

Redemption*
* 

Option IV INE891A07029 935196 68,852 5000 12.75%* Monthly 06/09/2021 
 

* Additional Coupon of 0.25% p.a. for women, senior citizens, shareholders, servicemen, ex-servicemen or DSK 
employees. 
 
** Under Option III, the payment of principal together with the interest accrued on the residual face value will 
be paid as under. 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Partial Redemption Dates % to Face Value 

1 6th Sept, 2016 10 
2 6th Sept, 2017 15 
3 6th Sept, 2018 20 
4 6th Sept, 2019 25 
5 6th Sept, 2020 25 

 
On initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under the provisions Section 7 of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder (“the Code”), the powers of 
Board of Directors of the Company are suspended and same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional. 
All the decisions with regard to redemptions are now being vested with RP and Proposed Resolution plans with 
the consent of Other Committee of Creditors. 
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
 

(a) Company Registration Details 
 
The Company is registered under The Companies Act, 1956 with the Office of Registrar of Companies, Pune, 
India. The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 
is: L45201PN1991PLC063340. 
 

(b) 30th Annual General Meeting 
 

Date &Time Venue 
21st day of September, 2021 at 3:00 p.m. Through OAVM 

 
(c) Financial Year 

 
Financial year is commencing from 1st April to 31st March and financial results will be declared as per the 
following schedule. 
 

(d) Date of Book Closure: 
 
From 14th September, 2021 to 21st September, 2021 (both days inclusive) for the Annual General Meeting 
scheduled to be held on 21st day of September, 2021. 
 

(e) Details of Shares (as per available data) 
 

Types of shares : Equity Shares 
No. of paid up shares : 2,58,01,008 (as available on MCA portal) 
Market lot of shares : 1 share 
 

(f) Dividend Payment Date : Not Applicable 
 

(g) Market Price Data 
 
Since the company is suspended from trading, the data of Market Prices are not available. 
 

(h) Stock Code 
 

Name of Stock Exchange Code no. 
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE), Mumbai 523890 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSEIL) DSKULKARNI 

 
(i) Shares Held in Physical and Dematerialized Form : 

 
The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialized mode. As on 31st March 2021, 83.53% shares 
were held in dematerialized form and balance 16.47% shares were held in physical form. Those shareholders 
whose shares are held in physical form are requested to dematerialize the same at the earliest in their own 
interest. The demat security code (ISIN) for the equity shares is INE891A01014. 
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(j) Distribution of Shareholdings as at 31st March, 2021 and Categories of shareholders as at 31st March, 
2021: 
 
Since the Company is suspended from trading on stock exchange and the RP does not have exact details of 
distribution of Shareholding and Categories of Shareholder, the RP is unable to comment on the Reliability of 
the Data. As the same being prepared according to the available information. 
 

(k) Share Transfer System: 
 
All the shares related work is being undertaken by our RTA, Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., Mumbai. To expedite 
the process of share transfer, transmission, split, consolidation, re-materialistion and dematerialization etc. of 
securities of the Company, the Board of Directors has delegated the power of approving the same to the 
Company’s. 
 
The Company has obtained and filed with the Stock Exchange(s), the half yearly certificates from a Company 
Secretary in practice for due compliance with the share transfer formalities as required under Clause 47(c) of 
the Listing Agreement and Clause 40(9) of SEBI ( LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
 

(l) Pan Requirement for Transfer of Shares in Physical Form 
 
The Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) for securities market transactions & off market/private transactions involving Transfer of Shares in 
Physical Form of Listed Companies. Therefore it shall be mandatory for the transferee(s) to furnish a copy of 
the PAN Card to the Company/Registrar & Share Transfer Agents for Registration of such transfers. 
Members/Investors are therefore requested to make note of the same & submit their PAN Card copy to the 
Company/ Registrar & Share Transfer Agents. 
 

(m) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants/Any other Convertible Instruments 
 
The Company has Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) outstanding instruments of the 
captioned type. 
 

(n) Investor Correspondence 
 
Registrar & Transfer agents - Link Intime India Private Limited, C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S. 
Marg, Bhandup (West) Mumbai – 400 078, Ph No. 022 -256963838 
 
Equity: 
ganapati.haligouda@linkintime.co.in 
Contact: Mr. Ganapati Haligouda 
 
Debenture: 
dsk.ncd@linkintime.co.in 
Contact: Mr. Dhanaji Jondhale 
Debenture Trustee  : GDA Trusteeship Ltd. Catalyst Trusteeship Ltd. 
GDA House, 1st Floor, Plot No.85 S No. 94 & 95, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road, Kothrud, Pune-411038. 
Ph No. 020-25280081, dt@gdatrustee.com 
Contact: Ms. Shamala Nalawade 
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(o) Nomination Facility 
 
It is in the interest of the shareholders to appoint nominee for their investments in the Company. Those 
members, who are holding shares in physical mode and have not appointed nominee or want to change the 
nomination, are requested to send us nomination form duly filed in and signed by all the joint holders. 
 

(p) Change in Shareholders details 
 
In case you are holding your shares in dematerialized form (e.g. in electronic mode), communication regarding 
change in address, bank account details, change in nomination, dematerialization of your share certificates or 
other inquiries should be addressed to your DP where you have opened your Demat Account, quoting your client 
ID number. In case of physical holding of shares, any communication for change of any details should be 
addressed to our R&T agent of the company M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., as per address mentioned below. 
 

(q) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) 
 
Based on the information available on stock exchange, Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. (Link Intime) is the Registrar 
& Transfer agent of the Company were looking after the work relating to transfers of Equity Shares and looks 
after the work relating to transfers of Debentures. 

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd 
 

C-101, 247 Park, 
L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 400 083 
Tel: +91 22 49186270 
E-mail id - rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 

(r) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report 
 

The Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report of the Company prepared in terms of SEBI Circular No. 
D&CC/FITTC/CIR-16/2002 dated December 31, 2002, reconciling the total shares held in both the depositories, 
viz. NSDL and CDSL and physical form with the total issued/paid-up capital of the Company were submitted to 
the Stock Exchange(s) every in March 31, 2021 quarter only. The Company had not appointed any consultant for 
compliance matter of the Company. 

For D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 

 
Date: 16/08/2021 
Place:  Mumbai 

                                                                                          Manoj Kumar Agarwal 
Resolution Professional 

                                                                  IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY THE BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 
WITH COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNE.  

  
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT 

Schedule V (D) of Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 
 
On initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under the provisions Section 7 of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder (“the Code”), the powers of 
Board of Directors of the Company are suspended and same are being exercised by the Resolution Professional 
(“RP”).  
 
The RP further certify that the Company has not received affirmation on compliance with rules of Code of 
Conduct, and also due to non-availability of various data/informations/Documents RP unable to confirm that 
the Code of Conduct are as per the requirement of Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2021. 
 
 
Sd/- 
Manoj Kumar Agarwal 
Resolution Professional 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 13/08/2021 
 
 
*NOTE: We do not have details/informations/records of compliances under Corporate Governance to be 
followed by the Company, as the Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under 
Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2016. Mr. Manoj Agarwal, Resolution Professional is unable to comment 
on the authentication of data available on the available information/ record/ details found during the course 
of preparing the Corporate Governance report. It is further informed that the directors of the company are 
behind bar and no employees of the company is available to provide the details and all information of the 
company are seized by various Government Authorities. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated September 26, 2019 allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company and 
Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 was appointed as 
the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Company. The appointment of Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal 
was confirmed/approved as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the Company by the Committee of 
Creditors (“CoC”). As per Section 17 of the Code, from the date of appointment of the IRP the management 
of affairs and powers of the board of directors of the Company were suspended and stood vested with 
IRP/RP of the Company. 

Under Section 17 of the IBC 2016 the powers of the Board are suspended and the same are vested on the 
Resolution Professional, Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal. The Moratorium Period as stipulated under Section 14 of 
the IBC Code, 2016 is in force. 

The RP invited Resolution plans for revival of the Company from the prospective Resolution Applicants. The 
Committee of Creditors approved the Resolution Plan submitted by Resolution Applicant – The CoC members 
have approved the Resolution Plan submitted by Ashdan Poperties Pvt. Ltd., Classic Promoters & Builders 
Pvt. Ltd. and Atul Builders- Consortium with requisite majority of the voting share as per the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2016. The Further action to be taken by the Company shall be informed to the Stock 
Exchange of the timely manner where the securities of the Company are listed. 

Economic Overview: 
 
The Indian Government is on the fast track of financial reforms. The Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) with its 
helping hand is supporting the Government to bring down inflation. It is perceived that the Government and 
RBI are working in tandem with each other to accelerate the tempo of development. Economic 
development benefits everyone. 
 
The public and private sector projects which were stalled are now seeing the light at the end of a dark 
tunnel. Government is quickly moving towards the era of ‘Minimum government and maximum governance’ 
by digitisation, simplification of procedures, shortening various forms, leveraging technology, transparency 
in public interface, etc. The Government has also taken a number of initiatives for improving ‘Ease of Doing 
Business’. The emphasis has been on simplification and rationalization of the existing rules and introduction 
of IT (information technology) solutions to make governance more proactive, efficient and effective 

Real Estate Sector Overview and Outlook: 
 
It may be noted that the Central Government passed the Real Estate Regulation and Development Act, 2016 
which got notified on 26th March, 2016.  
 
Tepid home sales, rising inventory levels and weak sentiment pulled down India’s property markets in 2015. 
The sector awaits the return of investors and customers, who seem to be waiting for prices to stabilize and 
developers to honour project delivery schedules before they take the plunge. 
 
Many steps by the Government/regulators have been seen to stabilise real estate sector, be it in the form 
of formation of REITs and InvITs, regulatory changes, reduction in interest rates or easing FDI norms. Real 
estate has always been an attractive sector for private equity providers and NBFCs. 
 
With the Government’s efforts in pushing start-ups, new projects and overall economic growth, commercial 
real estate seems to be better placed than residential real estate. 
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Opportunities: 
 
With the Government’s and RBI’s steps for economic reforms, the industry is positive for revival of 
economic growth across all sectors. Be it regulation or execution, government is trying to be transparent 
and at the same time vigilant. 
 
The Government’s ‘Smart City Mission’ will help to revive real estate in the cities which have been 
recognised in Smart City project. Also under Sardar Patel Urban Housing Mission, 30 millions housing will be 
built in India by 2022 for economically weaker sections and low income group. 
 
The concept of Smart Township is now shaping the concept in which company has been operating for a long 
time. 
 
The start-ups boost and ease of doing business will lead to more entrepreneurs and new projects which may 
lead to development of new industrial corridors and as such development of residential avenues.  
 
The relaxation of FDI norms for real estate will see boost in investment in real estate sector. This move 
should boost affordable housing projects and smart cities across the country. 
 
Since the numbers of new launches have reduced, developers are concentrating on completing the existing 
projects. It is giving confidence to the buyers that the launched projects will be completed and as such it is 
expected to boost demand. 
 
Further, as mentioned above as the Company is in Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIR Process”) 
hence outlook, opportunity and threats, developments, risk and concerns and ratios has not been provided 
separately as required under Listing Regulations. 
 
Financial Performance: 
 
The financial performance of the Company for the year 2020-2021 is described in the Directors' Report 
under the head Financial Result. 
 
Outlook: 
 
The recent passage of the IBC (Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code) has been a major change in the environment 
for the company. The Company is expecting positive outlook post approval of the resolutions plans 
approved by the Committee of Creditors. 
 
Internal Control System: 
 
Since the Company in under CIRP, the business operations of the Company are shut. The Company is 
optimistic about the resolution plans received by the Company and looking forward for positive results. 
 
Cautionary Note: 
 
The statements forming part of this Report may contain certain forward looking remarks within the meaning 
of applicable laws and regulations. The actual results, performances or achievements of the Company 



D S Kulkarni Developers Limited  
 

 

depend on many factors which may cause material deviation from any future results, performances or 
achievements. 

Significant factors which could make a difference to the Company’s operations include domestic and 
international economic conditions, changes in Government regulations, tax regime and other statutes. 
 
The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward looking 
statements on the basis of any subsequent developments, information or events. 
 

For D S Kulkarni Developers Limited 
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 

 
 
 
Date: 16/08/2021 
Place:  Mumbai 

                                                                                         Manoj Kumar Agarwal 
Resolution Professional 

                                                                  IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 
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Mihen halani & associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 

A-501L, Jaswanti Allied Business Centre, Next to Khwaish Hotel, KanchPada,  
Ramchandra Lane Extension Road, Malad (West), Mumbai – 400 064, 

: 022 – 6236 0279,: mihenhalani@gmail.com 
 

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

To, 
The Members, 
D S KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LTD 
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 
CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 
 
We have examined all the publically available information and the details of the compliance of conditions 
of Corporate Governance submitted by the Company of D S KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LTD ("the Company') 
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) for the year ended on March 31, 2021, as per 
the relevant provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirement) Regulations, 2015. ("SEBI 
Listing Regulations") 
 
The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination was limited to review of the procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the 
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit 
nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 
 
We would like to inform that, the Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code. On a petition filed by Bank of Maharashtra against the Company, which 
was admitted vide an Order dated September 26, 2019 of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal 
(“NCLT”), Mumbai, under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“the Code”).  
 
The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated September 26, 2019 allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company and 
Mr. Manoj Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 was appointed as the 
Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Company. Further, Mr. Manoj Agarwal was appointed as the 
Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the Company by the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). As per Section 17 of 
the Code, from the date of appointment of the IRP the management of affairs and powers of the board of 
directors of the Company were suspended and stood vested with IRP/RP of the Company.  
 
Search and seizure operations were conducted by the Enforcement Directorate(ED). During this search and 
seizure and during the process of investigation, Economic Offence Wing of Police Dept. has taken in its 
custody physical and electronically maintained records of the company. 
 
Investigation is going on against the company under various laws including the Maharashtra Protection of 
interest of Depositors Act (MPID), Economic Offences Wing (EOW) – Pune, Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016, Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002. The matter is sub-judice and the impact of the outcome, 
if any, is uncertainable at present. Accordingly, no documents, data or other requisite 
documents/information’s/details/records were available for our verification and accordingly we cannot 
comment on the compliance status of the company with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021. 
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We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company 

 
For MIHEN HALANI & ASSOCIATES 
Practicing Company Secretary 

Date: 13.08.2021 
Place: Mumbai 
UDIN: F009926C000783875        Mihen Halani 

    (Proprietor) 
  CP No: 12015 
   FCS No:9926 
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Mihen halani &associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 

A-501/L, Jaswanti Allied Business Centre, Kachpada, Ramchandralane Extn. Rd, 
Malad (West), Mumbai – 400 064, : 022 – 6236 0279 : mihenhalani@gmail.com 

 
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
To, 
D S KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LTD 
(Company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 
CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 
 
The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated September 26, 2019 allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company and 
Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00714/2017-2018/11222 was appointed as 
the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Corporate Debtor. The appointment of Mr. Manoj Kumar 
Agarwal was confirmed/approved as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the Corporate Debtor by the 
Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). As per Section 17 of the Code, from the date of appointment of the IRP 
the management of affairs and powers of the board of directors of the Company were suspended and stood 
vested with IRP/RP of the Corporate Debtor. 
 
In exercise of the powers of the Board of Directors by the Resolution Professional of the Corporate Debtor 
as per Section 17(1)(b) of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, hereby present the Thirtieth Annual 
Report on business and operations of the Company along with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2021. 
 
Further, Search and seizure operations were conducted by the Enforcement Directorate(ED). During this 
search and seizure and during the process of investigation, Economic Offence Wing of Police Dept has taken 
in its custody physical and electronically maintained records of the Company. 
 
Investigation is going on against the listed entity under various laws including the Maharashtra Protection of 
interest of Depositors Act (MPID), Economic Offences Wing (EOW) –Pune, Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016, Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002. The matter is sub-judice and the impact of the outcome, 
if any, is uncertainable at present. 
 
We have examined the relevant publically available information of D S Kulkarni Developers Limited having 
CIN L45201PN1991PLC063340 and having registered office at 1187 /60 J M Road, Shivaji Nagar, Pune, 
Maharashtra 411005 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), and information produced before us by the 
Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule 
V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information provided to us, we hereby state that the Company is under 
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code.  
 
Further, we have not received any documents/details/informations/records from the Company & its 
officers, and hence we are unable to comment that whether the Directors on the Board of the Company for 
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the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, Reserve Bank of India or any such other Statutory Authority 
 
Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility 
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our 
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

For MIHEN HALANI & ASSOCIATES 
Practicing Company Secretary 
 

Place: Mumbai                                           
Date: 13/08/2021 
UDIN: F009926C000783842                   Mihen Halani 

     (Proprietor) 
    CP No: 12015 
    FCS No: 9926 
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622-624, The Corporate Centre, Nirrnal Lifestyle, LBS Marg, Mulund (West), Mumbai - 400 080. 

Tel. : +91-22-2562 8290 191/6770 0107 E-mail: info@rcjainca.com 

Independent auditors report
 
To the members ofD. S. Kulkarni Developers Limited
 

1. Report on the audit of standalone Ind AS financial statements 

We were engaged to audit the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of D. S. Kulkan;i 

Developers Limited (the Company), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, the statement 

of profit and loss, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then 

ended, and summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

2. Management's responsibility for the standalone Ind AS financial statements 

D. S. Kulkarni Developers Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under Insolvency 

and Bankruptcy Code (the Code). Its affairs, business and assets are being managed by the Resolution 

Professional appointed by the Hon'ble NCLT Mumbai vide its Order dated 26th September 2019 under 

the provisions of the Code as Interim Resolution Professional and subsequendy as per section 22 of the 

Code as Resolution Professional of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Limited. The matter against the Corporate 

Insolvency Resolution Process is pending for admission before the Hon'ble NCLT vide CP 1633/2019. 

Under provisions of section 17 of the Code, the powers of Board of Directors of D. S. Kulkarni 

Developers Limited are currendy under suspension and the same are being exercised by the Resolution 

Professional of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Limited. 

In view of ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the Resolution Professional is responsible 

for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) with respect to the 

preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of 

affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with dle 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraUDS 

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS fmancial 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error. 

In preparing the f111ancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

: M - 272, Near Arya Sarna] Bhawan, Gautam Nagar, Bhopal - 462 023 
Telephone: 0755-2600646 Email: hmjainca@rediffmail.com; hmjainca@hotmail.com 

Aurangabad Branch: Su-Shobha, Plot No.7, Mitra Nagar, Behind Akashwani, Near Maratha Datbar Hotel, Aunmgabad - 431 00 1 (MAH.) 
Telephone: 0240-2357556/9922455556 Email: sskasliwal@gmaH.com 

\Vebsite : www.rcjainca.com 
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operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Under section 20 of Code, it is incumbent upon 

Resolution Professional to manage the operations of the Company as a going concern and the financial 

statements have been prepared on going concem basis. 

The written representations with regard to these financial statements provided to us during the course of 

our audit, have been signed by the Resolution Professional appointed by the Hon'ble NCLT Mumbai vide 

its Order dated 26th September, 2019. 

3. Auditor's responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our 

audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards afld 

matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the 

Rules made thereunder. 

The Financial Statements provided to us for review have been signed only by the RP. Section 134(1) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 requires such signature to be undertaken by (a)the chairperson of the company 

where he is authorized by the board, or by two directors out of which one shall be managing director: and 

(b) the chief executive officer, the Chief Financial officer and the. Company Secretary, wherever they are 

appointed. Since the CIRP has been initiated, the RP, pursuant to his appomtment, has been vested with 

the management of the Company and the powers of the board of directors of the Company stand 

suspended. Therefore, the Financial Statements have been signed by the RP alone. Though the powers of 

the Board of directors are Suspended, none of such directors of the Company were available/ agreeable 

to sign the said Financial Statements. 

The positions of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company, as on the date of 

Signing of the Financial Statements, were vacant. We understand that the office of the Chief Finance 

Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company is vacant before the start of the year under audit. The 

Company has not appointed such key managerial personnel as required under section 203 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointments and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. As such, the Financial Statements may suffer from issues of accuracy, 

veracity, sufficiency, completeness and reliability, as none of the key managerial personnel of the 

Company other than RP has signed the Financial Statements. 

For the purpose of this audit review, we have relied upon the Financial Statements provided to us by the 

RP. It is observed that the RP has inserted a note as part of notes to accounts, set out in Note 2.32 of 

financial statements, as per which he has assumed that the data/information provided by the officials of 

the Company and the records of the Company made available to him are in conformity with the 

applicable laws and present a true and fair view of the position of the Company and has not perso:1ally 

verified such information; and that he should be absolved from the accuracy, veracity and sufficiency or 

completeness of information provided to him by the officials of the Company based on which the 

Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared. As per the said note, the RP has signed the 

fmancial statements only to facilitate the CIRP process without any liability of the same. To the extent to 

which the RP has disclaimed his liability with respect to accuracy, veracity, and sufficiency or 
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completeness of information provided to him by the officials of the Company, the Financial Statements 

may suffer from issues of accuracy, veracity, sufficiency, completeness or reliability. Relevant observations 

upon the extent of veracity of the Financial Statements have been made in the below paragraphs. 

Our objectives are: 

a.	 to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the f111ancial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement whether due to fraud or error 

b.	 to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 111 

accordance with the SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users taken on the basis of 

these f111ancial statements. 

As part of the audit in accordance with SAs, we exercised professional judgment and maintained 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

a.	 identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the fmancial statements, whether due to fra",d 

or error, designed and performed audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit evidence 

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

b.	 obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are als0 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls 

system in plakhe and the operating effectiveness of such controls 

c.	 evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management. 

d.	 considered the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, we concluded that a material uncertainty does exist related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern. Hence, we 

drew attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the f111ancial statements. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 

future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern or vice versa. 

e.	 evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the fmancial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the fmancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation. 

f.	 communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit f111dings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identified during our audit. 
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Because of the matters described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we were not able to 

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do 

not express an opinion on the fmancial statements. 

4.	 Basis for disclaimer of opinion 

(D	 In view of irregularities and suspected fraudulent transactions and defaults under 'Insolvency Bankruptcy 

Code 2016', the Company is under 'Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process'. As at the date of this 

report, we are not in receipt of any litigation/investigation reports conducted by investigative authorities. 

(ii)	 In view of the fact that matters relating to abovementioned financial irregularities are sub-judice and 

litigations/investigations by respective authorities are yet to be completed, we are unable comment on the 

consequential impact, if any, on the fmancial statements of the outcome of such litigations/investigations 

/ enquiry by law enforcement agencies and outcome of related litigation and claims. 

(iii)	 In view of the ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the outcome of which cannot be 

presently ascertained on the matters listed below, we are unable to comment whether the Company will 
be able to continue as a going concern. Consequently, we are unable to comment as to whether the going 

concern basis for preparation of these fmancial statements taken by the Company is appropriate. 

(iv)	 There are proceedings going on against the company under various laws such as The Maharashtra 

Protection of Interest of Depositors Act (MPID), Economic Offences Wing (EOW) - Pune, Insolvency 

and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and other economic laws. Various agencies have moved against the Assessee 

Company and its directors, viz. Directorate of Enforcement (ED), Serious Fraud Investigation Office 

(SFIO) and other agencies. The original documents/agreements has been seized by ED and are not 

available for carrying out necessary audit. 

(v)	 Other matters [including those listed in paragraph 4(iv) above], limitations with regard to availability of 

necessary audit evidences including original documents and information, satisfactory explanations and 

justifications required for audit for the years ended 31 March 2021. In view of the limitations and 

uncertainties involved, we had expressed our inability to express an opinion on the financial statements 

for the audited period. Our disclaimer of opinion on the fmancial statements is also because of th,;; 

possible effects of the above matters on the figures for the current year and on the corresponding figures 

for the year ended 31 March 2020. 

(vi)	 We are unable to comment on the necessary adjustments / disclosures in these financial statements in 

relation to the following items, in view of non-availability of certain necessary information / 

documentation / satisfactory explanations relevant to the current year audit ­

(a)	 Lack of reconciliation of consumables and spares consumed (included under purchases of stock in trade) 

with related sales; and 

(b)	 Sale of few finished flats but not recognized due to non-availability of agreements for which the closing 

stock shall show and inflated cost value; 
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(c)	 Lease rental agreements for various land given on lease on which rental expenses are recognized for the 

current year, are not provided and hence without sufficient appropriate audit evidence we are unable to 

comment on accuracy of rental expenses so recognized; 

(d)	 Employee details / Salary register on which salary expenses are recognized for the current year, are not 

provided and hence without sufficient appropriate audit evidence we are unable to comment on accura_y 

of employee cost so recognized; 

(e)	 Bank statement/Interest statements of few Banks accounts/Fixed deposits taken from the banks, that 

were made available by the banking authorities have been accounted for, the rest were not completely 

made available by the banking authorities inspite of many representations; 

(f)	 Debenture statements and Loan statements from few banks based on which interest expenses have been 

recognized were not made available, for which we have taken the base of previous year in case of l'Tor.­

Convertible debentures. 

(g)	 Statutory liabilities due as at 31 st Mar' 2021 are verified based on the tally data maintained and provided by 

the management. Various representations to Government authorities for the login credentials or data 

available of the said company have been made, based on which the said recognition shall be verified for 

its accuracy but the same was not available; 

(h)	 Ledger confirmations from various parties which were available has been verified and accounted for; the 

rest including related parties had not been made available based on which inter balances shall be verified; 

(i)	 Original documents / agreements were not made available in most cases and hence we had to carry out 

our audit procedures on the tally data provided and management representations. As explained to us by 

the management, all the original documents had been seized by Directorate of Enforcement (ED). 

G)	 Report from EOW for its investigation done and report of forensic audit conducted have not been 

provided to us based on which our opinion shall have a material impact. 

(vii) Attention is drawn to Note 7 of the financial statements i.e. unsecured loans to related parties where 

provision has been made for bad and doubtful debts of Rs. 4,173.84 Lakhs, out of Rs. 6,959 Lakhs which 

are loans given to subsidiary company, M/s. DSK Developers Corporation. Out of total 4,173.84 lakhs, 

Rs. 229 Lakhs is doubtful Interest component. The basis of the provision of doubtful debts is not 

provided to us. 

(viii)As part of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the Company has received certain claims 

aggregating to Rs. 2,79,561 lakhs till 27th March 2020 from certain vendors and customers. As informed to 

us by the management, the Company has terminated most of the contracts with the said customers / 

vendors. 

(is)	 Attention is invited to note 9 of the financial statements wherein it is stated that Inventory is n,t 

physically verified. We have relied on management for the figures provided in respect of inventory. 

Current year changes in Work in Progress are not supported by any evidences except the data entered by 

the management. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the impact of the above on the financial 

statements. 
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(x)	 Trade receivables include receivables of Rs. 83 lakhs in respect of related party (Nikhil Kulkarni & Co.) 

for the purpose of sale of assets which is outstanding since March 2016. It also includes Vat receivable 

from Flat holders of Rs. 219 Lakhs since long which is not backed by any evidences. 

(xi)	 Attention is invited to note 6 of financial statements wherein Long-term investment in equity instruments 

of subsidiaries amounts to Rs. 200 lakhs. The total amount of investment in subsidiary companies 

amounting to Rs. 1909.73 lakhs has been provided for diminution of investments in previous years itself 

which has not been backed by the explanation and hence, we are unable to comment on the 

completeness, existence and accuracy of this amount. 

(xii) The Company needs to strengthen its internal control systems, in particular its IT controls and those 

relating to existence of contract work-in-progress; reconciliation of consumables and spares consumed 

with related sales; accounts receivables including periodic reconciliations v.rith customers, age wise analysis 

and application of receipts from customers; physical verification of inventories; accounts payables 

including vendor selection process and periodic reconciliations with vendors; classification of costs 

relating to items of purchase of traded goods including costs incurred towards warranty and certain 

contract expenses; and disposal of property, plant and equipment. We are unable to determine 

consequential impact, if any, of these aforesaid weaknesses on these financial statements. 

(xiii)Attention is drawn to the Note 12 of the Financial Statements wherein the advances made to the relatives 

and third parties are doubtful in nature. The same has been recorded based on the accounting and buoks 

maintained by the management. 

(xiv)Attention is invited to Note 15 of financial statements wherein various Project Loans, Corporate Loans, 

Vehicle Loans and other loans have been verified by the statements as much were provided to us by t'l.e 

management. Since the statements for Debentures loans were not available or provided to us, the amount 

outstanding has been derived by recording the similar amount of accrued interest expense as that of 

prevlOus year. 

(xv) As per the provisions of Sec 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, post the transfer of dividend declared to an 

unpaid dividend account, if still remains unpaid for a period of 7 years from the date of such transfer ~ha.ll 

then be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund and the company shall send a statement 

of the details of such transfer to the authority which administers the said Fund. Attention is invited to 

Note 23 of financial statement wherein the unclaimed dividend outstanding in the books of company 

comprises from the FY 2009-10 till FY 2014-15. 

(xvi)Various representations and reminders have been made to government authorities for the login 

credentials or the data available with themselves pertaining to the Company. Since the required data was 

not available to us, the statutory compliances and dues outstanding have not been verified to its accuracy. 

We are unable to determine consequential impact, if any, of these aforesaid weaknesses on these financial 

statements. \Vhereas the dues accounted for the period from 1st April 2020 to 31't March' 2021 has been 

duly verified. The dues recorded were fully paid to the government upto the date of Financials 
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(xvii)	 Contingent Liabilities disclosed under Note 23 have been continued to be similar as that of previous
 

year. In addition to the same, Cenvat Credit availed in non-current assets and income tax dues as
 

extracted from the claims made by the authority has been disclosed as a contingent liability as there is a
 

contingency and estimated value needs to be recorded.
 

(xviii)	 The Company has not complied with the requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 that are as follows:
 

(a)	 Failed to flle its fInancial results for the period ended 30 September 2017 and subsequent periods till date.
 

The financials results have been flled from the quarter Dec' 2020.
 

(b)	 Governance reports have been submitted latest till Dec' 17. 

(c)	 Annual reports have been timely submitted upto FY 2015-16 and thereafter submitted upto 31 st march,
 

2020.
 

Consequently, we are unable to comment on the impact, if any, of this non-compliance on the financial 

statements. 

In view of our observations in paras 4(i) to 4(xv) above, we are unable to determine the adjustments, that 

are necessary in respect of the Company's assets, liabilities as on balance sheet date, income and expenses 

for the year, the elements making up the statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement and 

related presentation and disclosures in the financial statements. 

5.	 Disclaimer of opinion 

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we 

have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. 

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

Material uncertainty related to "going concern" 

\YJe invite attention to 'Annexure A' to our report which expatiates the facts and circumstances that 

indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern. Having regard to the totality of the facts and circumstances stated in the said 

Annexure, it is our considered opinion that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern only 

if it is able to raise funds for payment of staff salaries, payment of statutory liabilities and for servicing its 

debts on the due date and if it is able to comply with the provisions of the Real Estate Regulation Act, 

2016. Our opinion about the financial statements for the year under review is not modified in respect of 

this matter. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of~ur 
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audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 

separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matters listed in 'Annexure B' to this report have been 

communicated to the management and discussed with the management. 

6.	 Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

(i)	 As required by the Companies (Auditor s Report) Order, 2016 (the Order), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub- section (11) of Section 143 of the Act and except for the effects, if 

any, of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we enclose in the 

"Annexure C", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

(ii)	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a)	 described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we were unable to obtain all the informatic.n 

and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our 

audit; 

(b)	 due to the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we 

are unable to state whether proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as appears from our examination of those books; 

(c)	 the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the cash flow statement and the statement of changes 

in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account as maintained; 

(d)	 due to the effect of the related matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we state 

as below­

(i)	 the financial statements do not comply with IND AS 8, IND AS 16, IND AS 17 and IND AS 113 as 

specified under Section 133 of the Act; 

(ii)	 we are unable to state whether the fmandal statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 

(other than those referred to in paragraph 6(ii)(dW) above) specified under Section 133 of the Act; 

(e)	 the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph above may have an adverse effect 

on the functioning of the Company; 

(f)	 the basis of written representations to be received from the directors as on 31 March 2021, and taken C.n 

record by the Board of Directors that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act except that the then Managing 

Director (no longer with the Company), has not provided such representation to the Company. 

Accordingly, we are unable to comment as to whether the aforesaid individual was disqualified as on 31 

March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(g)	 the reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as 

stated in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph above; 
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(h)	 with respect to the adequacy of the internal ftnancial controls over financial reporting of the Company 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 'Annexure D', and 

(i)	 with respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor's report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information ancl 

according to the explanations given to us: 

1.	 view of the related matters described in paragraph 4, basis for disclaimer of opinion, we are unable to 

state whether note 23 to the standalone financial statements discloses the complete impact of pending 

litigations on the fmancial position in the standalone financial statements of the Company; 

11.	 view of the related matters described in paragraph 4, basis for disclaimer of opinion, we are unable to 

state whether the Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting 

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts (the Company does not have any 

derivative contracts); and 

111.	 there has been delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

For R C Jain & Associates LLP
 
Chartered Accountants
 
FR~:103952~/~100156 

ob 
M raJoisher
 
(Partner)
 
Membership ~o. 115080
 
Date: 29th June, 2021
 
UDI~: 21115080AAAAAV6509
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Independent Auditors' Report of Even Date
 
To the Members ofD. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd.
 

On standalone Ind AS financial statements
 
Annexure A - Material uncertainty related to "going concern"
 

The Directors' Responsibility Statement in the Board's Report states that the accounts have been prepared on 

a "going concern" basis. However, whether the Company is a "going concern" as at the balance sheet date is a 

question of opinion which must be answered having regard to the totality of the facts and circumstances of the 

case. Accordingly, we state below the facts and circumstances which may have a material impact on this issue. 

A.	 Financial facts & circumstances 
1.	 Default in repayment of instalments of loans obtained from banks & financial institutions and in 

payment of interest on such loans: 

During the year under review, the Company has been generally unable to service the loans obtained from 

banks & fmancial institutions in accordance with the contractual terms contained in the sanction letters 

issued by such banks & fmancial institutions i.e. the Company has been generally unable to repay 

instalments and pay interest on the due date. We wrote a letter to each bank / fmandal institution in order 

to obtain information about delay in payment of interest & repayment of loan instalment, status of the 

account as at the balance sheet date & the overdue instalments / interest as at the balance sheet date. The 

amount of overdue instalments / interest as stated in the Annexure C to the statutory audit report is 

derived from the replies we received from the banks / fmandal institutions, if any, or, in the absence of 

such replies, from the information available in the Company's records. 

2.	 Default in repayment of fixed deposits obtained from the public and in payment of interest 
thereon: 

The Company has defaulted in repayment of fL'{ed deposits and in payment of interest thereon. Please ref('t 

Para (v) of Annexure C to our statutory audit report for details. 

3.	 Default in payment of statutory dues on account of tax deducted at source, self-assessment tax, 
Mabarashtra Value-added tax, service tax, employees' provident fund dues etc.: 

The Company fued its return of income under the Income Tax Act for Assessment Year 2016-17 (FY 

2015-16) on 30/11/2016. As per the said return, an amount of Rs.1251.68 lacs are payable by the Company 

on account of self-assessment tax and interest. However, till the date of this report the Company has paid 

Rs. 45 lacs only and the balance Rs.1206.68 lacs are still unpaid. The Income Tax Department has treated 

the said return as invalid u/s 139(9) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, on the ground that self-assessment tax 

has not been paid and has asked the Company to show cause why prosecution should not be initiated for 

such default. 

The Company has not paid as required by law the tax deducted at source for the previous years except for 

the year under review under various sections of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 
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The Company has also not paid as required by law the amounts payable on account of service tax, 

employees' provident fund dues, ESIC dues, employees' profession tax, Maharashtra Value added tax, and 

contribution to gratuity fund managed by LIe. 

The details of these statutory liabilities are stated in Annexure C to our statutory audit report. 

4.	 Dishonour of cheques issued by the Company and consequent criminal cases against the 
Company under Section 138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act 

Based on the information available from previous year, we are informed that during the previous year under 

review, 1,220 cheques issued by the Company were returned unpaid for want of adequate balance in the 

Company's accounts. The aggregate amount of such cheques is Rs.70.14 crores. Out of the 1220 cases of 

dishonour, complaints u/s 138, NIA 1938 were filed in 51 cases of which the aggregate amount is Rs.11.41 

crores. The Company subsequently paid Rs. 21.04 crores against some dishonoured cheques before or aft;r 

filing of complaints. 

5.	 Rejection of dividend proposed by the Board of Directors for FY 2015-16 at the Company's Annual 
General Meeting: 

When the Company's financial statements for FY 2015-16 were finalized in May 2016, the Board (\f 

Directors recommended to the Annual General Meeting to be held in September 2016 that a dividend of 

Re. 1.25 per share be paid to the holders of the Company's equity shares. The total outflow on account of 

dividend and additional tax thereon would have been Rs. 388.17 lakhs. However, the resolution at the 

Company's Annual General Meeting held on 29/09/2016 was not passed and the proposed dividend was 

not declared. 

6.	 Delay in payment of salaries to staff: 

As at the date of this report, the Company has been unable to pay some of its staff for full year in addition 

to four months of previous year. The unpaid employee remuneration as at the balance sheet date is Rs. 

557.67 lakhs. 

B.	 Other facts & circumstances 

7.	 Resignation of staff and delay in appointment of replacements: 

According to the statistics provided by the HR Department for previous year, the Company had 514 

employees on 01/04/2016. During the FY 2016-17, 259 employees resigned whereas only 54 new 

employees joined the Company. Consequently, the Company had 309 employees as at 31/03/2017. No 

new data of the current employees available to us. 

8.	 Progress of incomplete construction projects 

Relying on the management representations, the construction activity in all the major construction sites in 

and around Pune had slowed down considerably. 
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9. Rating by credit rating agency 

The credit rating of the Company has been down-graded by CARE from BBB+ to D in respect of long­

term bank facilities and to C Negative in respect of Fixed Deposit Programme and to C Negative in respect 

of non-convertible debentures as per their communications dated 22/03/2017. 

10. Pending litigations 

The Company and its promoters face and are likely to face litigations on account of dishonour of cheques 

and defaults in payment of statutory dues, fIxed deposits, bank loans and generally dues payable to 

suppliers. 

11. Non Maintenance of Records 

The company has not maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of fIxed assets. 

12. No Documentary Evidence 

No documentary evidence was provided as to the details of the periodicity and extent of physical 

verifIcation of Fi.'{ed Assets carried out by the management. Accordingly, we are unable to comment 

whether there are any material discrepancies and on the manner in which they have been dealt with in the 

books of account. 

13. No Evidence for Physical Verification 

There is no evidence of physical verifIcation by management of inventories available on record. Hence we 

are unable to comment on the reasonability of verifIcation process and also on the discrepancies, if any. 

The land valuation report provided to us is for the year 2016 and it does not match with the workings 

provided to us regarding the area and value of land held as inventory. 
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Independent Auditors' Report of Even Date
 
To the Members of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd.
 

On standalone Ind AS financial statements 

Annexure B - Key Audit Matters 

The following key audit matters are emphasized in order to interpret these financial statements 

1. Compliance with the provisions of the Real Estate Regulation Act, 2016 

Government of India has enacted the Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act 2016 and all the 
sections of the Act came into force with effect from May 1, 2017. Under this Act, Government of 

Maharashtra has established Maharashtra Real Estate Regulatory Authority (Maha RERA), vide 
Notification No. 23 dated 8th March 2017, for regulation and promotion of real estate sector in the 

State of Maharashtra. Consequently, Government of Maharashtra also promulgated the Maharashtra 

Real Estate (Regulation and Development) (Registration of Real Estate Projects, Registration of Real 
Estate Agents, lUtes of Interest and Disclosures on Website) Rules, 2017 and other Rules. The last date 

for registration of on-going projects under Real Estate Regulation Act was 31st July 2017. These 

changes in the regulatory environment applicable to real estate development companies axe so radical 
that no such company can continue in business without complying with the new regulations. 

2. Commitments for DSK Dream City Project & Other Projects 

The Company has made commitments in respect of its on-going projects. The Company's success will 
depend upon its ability to raise funds for meeting these commitments. 

3. Requirements of Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Company has been facing capacity issues due to loss of key employees while meeting the need for 
servicing information requirements and providing clarifications to multiple investigating agencies, 

providing information to enable the ongoing asset monetization and restructuring activities and meeting 

'going concern' requirements. Further, fmancials statements from the respective subsidiaries have not 
been available to us. On further investigation, it was found that out of 4 subsidiaries being DSK 

Developers Corporation, DSK Woods liC, DSK Southern Projects Pvt Ltd & DSK Infra Pvt Ltd, 2 

domestic subsidiaries have complied with annual fillings with Registrar of Companies upto 31 sl March 

2016.1n view of the above, the Financial Statements of the subsidiaries have not been available or shall 

not be available before the Annual General meeting of the Company. Accordingly, the Company is 

unable to provide its Consolidated Financial Statement and salient features of the Financial 

Statements of the Company's Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures in Form AOC-1 as required under 
Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
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4. Advances given to unrelated parties 

During the year, the Company has given advances aggregating to Rs. 0.38 lakhs to unrelated parties for 

the purpose of construction & development of real estate projects. However, by the balance sheet date 

the said parties had not raised invoices for the work performed by them. 

5. Default committed by DSK Global Education & Research Ltd. (DSKGER) 

The Company is surety for the loan advanced by Central Bank of India (CBl) to DSKGER. The said 

guarantee was given when DSKGER was a subsidiary of the Company and it continued even after 

DSKGER ceased to be a subsidiary. The said contingent liability appears in Note 23 to the financial 

statements. On 12/04/2017, CBI has issued a notice to DSKGER u/s 13(2) of the Securitisation & 

Reconstruction of Financial Assets & Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002, for payment of the 

amount outstanding on 11/04/2017 i.e Rs. 8200.39 lacs within 60 days from the date of receipt of 

notice which remains unpaid till date. 

6. Possible contractual liability 

The Company is unable to reasonably quantify the possible liability that may anse due to non­

performance of the terms of contracts between the Company and its customers & suppliers. 

7. Transaction Audit Report 

The transaction Audit has been conducted by the Transaction auditor i.e. M/s. BDO India UP, as per 

the provisions of Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016, involving an amount of Rs. 450.30 crores. 

A miscellaneous application, based on the said report have been flled with the Hon'ble NCLT, Mumbai 

Bench on 18.11.2020 for further directions. 
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Independent Auditors' Report
 
To the Members ofD. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd.
 

On standalone Ind AS financial statements 

Annexure C Referred to in Paragraph (i) under the heading "Report on other legal and 
regulatory requirements" of Our Report of Even Date 

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of section 143(11) of Companies Act, 2013, we enclose, on the basis of our opinion, 
our examination on the relevant records and according to the information and explanation given '"0 

us, in the "Annexure C" a statement on the matters specified in Paragraph 3 & 4 of the said Order. 

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 

a)	 The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets during the fmancial year under review. 

b)	 The Resolution Professional has physically verified all the fixed assets during the financial 
year 2020-21 for the Valuation of Assets under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016. As informed to us, material discrepancies were noticed on such verification and the 
same have been dealt with in the books of account. 

c)	 As per the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable 
properties owned by the Company whether held in the name of the company or not is 
uncertain since the same has been sealed by the ED. 

(ii) Inventory 

The Resolution Professional appointed by the NCLT order has done Physical Verification of 
inventory during Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process. The projects for which they are 
not aware about its presence, are being carried forward in the books as Work in Progress. 

(iii) Loan granted to related parties 

a)	 Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis of disclaimer of opinion 
paragraph 4 of our main report, the Company has not granted any fresh loans, secured or 
unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained uls 
189 of the Act. The amount of loan granted in previous stand to be outstanding till the 
balance sheet date as follows: 

Number of parties Amount of loans given 
Balances ('Lacs) 

31-03-2021 I 31-03-2020 
12,249.08 I 12,249.08Two 
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b)	 The rate of interest and other terms and conditions of loans, secured or unsecured, 
granted by the Company, are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company; 

c)	 In respect of the loans, secured or unsecured, given by the Company, the terms of 
repayments of the principal amount and the payments of the interest have not been 
stipulated. Hence whether the repayment is overdue or not cannot be decided. However, 
the Company had made provision of Rs. 4,713.84 Lacs in the previous years for 
loans whose recovery may be doubtful. 

(iv) Compliance with section 185 & 186 

a)	 The Company has not made investments, granted loans, offered guarantee and security in 
compliance with the provisions of Section 185 & Section 186 of CA, 2013. The limit 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 for granting loans has been exceeded thereby 
violating the provisions of the Act. 

b)	 The Company has obtained an opinion from a professional stating that provisions of 
Section 185 of the Companies Act 2013 are not attracted in the matter of giving a 
guarantee to the bank which has advanced a loan to one of the related parties viz. D.S. 
Kulkarni & Co. 

(v) Deposits 

As at 31st March 2020 the Company had outstanding deposits of Rs. 27.37 crores. During the 
FY 2020-21 and up to the date of this report, no. of depositors have not been increased also 
the amount of deposit accepted have remained unchanged. However, no Order has been 
passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of 
India or any court or any other tribunal in this regard. 

(vi) Cost Records 

The company has not maintained the cost as required by the Companies (Cost Record & 
Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Government u/s 148(1) of the Act. The 
Company has also appointed a cost auditor. The last date for completion of cost audit is 
28/09/2017. 

(vii) Payment of statutory dues 

a)	 There have been instances of delay in depositing with the appropriate authorities 
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, TDS, 
Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth Tax, Service tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, cess and 
other material statutory dues applicable to it. 

The details regarding payment of Rs. in Lacs 
statutory dues are as follows: 
Particulars Total dues as Dues for 

on 31/03/2021 more than 6) 
months as I 

on 
31/03/2021 
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1. Tax deducted / collected at source 1,325.09 1,318.48 
2. Service Tax 289.17 289.17 
3. Gratuity 216.34 216.34 
4. Leave Encashment 63.94 63.94 
5. Maharashtra Value-added tax 470.16 470.16 
6. Provident Fund 87.37 87.37 
7. Employees' State Insurance 11.23 11.23 
8. Profession Tax 3.90 3.90 
9. Goods and Service Tax 25.32 18.52 

b)	 There are no disputed amounts outstanding in respect of Provident Fund, Investor 
Education and Protection Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Sales-tax, Wealth Ta'C, 
Service tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable 
to it as at the last day of the Financial year. The disputed amounts in respect of income 
tax are as follows: 

Forum where dispute is pending Assessment 
Year 

1. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 2004-05 
2005-062. High Court ofJudicature, Mumbai 

3. High Court o£Tudicature, Mumbai 2006-07 
4. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 2007-08 
5. High Court ofJudicature, Mumbai 2008-09 
6. High Court ofJudicature, Mumbai 2009-10 
7. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 2010-11 
8. High Court ofJudicature, Mumbai 2011-12 
9. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai 2012-13 

318tAs at 
March' 21 
(Rs. in 
Lakhs) 

I 67.25 
152.02 
311.45 
418.80 
116.00 
156.93 
99.95 
35.47 
36.15 

318t 

March' 20 
(Rs. if! 
Lakhs) 

As at 

67.25 
152.02 
311.45 
418.8) 
116.00 
156.93 
99.95 
35.47 
36.15 

The ITAT Pune decided the Company's appeals for AY 2004-05,2005-06,2006-07,2007­
08, 2008-09, 2009-10, 2010-11, 2011-12 & 2012-13 in favour of the Company. However, 
the Dept has ftled a reference with the High Court ofJudicature at Mumbai. 

c)	 During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund in accordance with the provisions of section 124(5) tHe 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of the Companies (Declaration & Payment of Dividend) 
Rules 2014, made thereunder. The unpaid dividend remains outstanding in the books 
from FY 2009-10. 

(viii) Default in repayment of bank loan 

a)	 The Company has defaulted in repayment of dues to debenture holders as on the balance 
sheet date and as on the date of this report. The Company has also delayed repayment of 
dues to fmancial institutions and banks during the year. The details of overdue interest 
and overdue principal of the Company's borrowings are as follows: 
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Bank / Financial Institution Amount overdue as on 31/3/21 
Interest 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Principal 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

1. ICICI Housing Finance Co 441.19 8,944.5 
2. State Bank of India 21.19 12,579.81 
3. Syndicate Bank 809.24 7,667.00 
4. Union Bank of India 2,804.99 6,292.86 
5. Bank of Maharashtra 458.28 6,292.00 
6. IDBI Bank 1755.90 4,723.66 
7. India Bulls Housing Finance 823.91 5,666.35 
8. Vijaya Bank 0.00 2,131.45 
9. Sangli Urban Cooperative Bank Ltd. 0.00 205.69 
10. The Kalyan Tanata Sahakari Bank 140.35 1,336.72 
11. Tata Capital Housing Finance Ltd 94.48 713.53 
12. Bajaj Finance Ltd 202.13 1,403.31 
13. Aditya Birla Finance Ltd 176.82 936.47 
14. STCI Finance Ltd 640.51 2,689.45 
15. HDFC Bank Ltd. 0.02 1.2S 
16. Toyota Financial Services 0.43 7.07 
17. Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd. 0.00 0.58 

(ix) Application of proceeds of term loans / public offer 

The company has applied the term loans obtained during the year towards the purpose for 
which the loans were obtained. During the year under review, the Company has not raised 
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). 

(x) Fraud 

No material fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the fllla:'1cid 
year under review. 

(xi) Managerial remuneration 

The Company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration during the year. Hence t.e 
contents of paragraph 3(xi) of CARO, 2016 are not applicable to the Company. 

(xii) Nidhi Company 

The contents of Paragraph 3(xii) of CARO, 2016 are not applicable since the Company is not 
a Nidhi Company. 

(xiii) Related party transactions & compliance with 5.177 & 188 

For want of complete records, we are unable to comment about the transactions with related 
parties and to express our opinion whether these transactions are in compliance with Sections 
177 & 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the available details thereof have been disclos_d 
in the flllancial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 
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(xiv)	 Preferential allotment / private placement of shares or convertible debentures & 
compliance with S 42 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment/private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures 
during the year. 

(xv)	 Non-cash transactions with directors etc. & compliance with S.l92 

Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis of the disclaimer of opinion 
paragraph of the main report, according to the information available as at present and 
explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected 
with him. 

(xvi)	 Compliance with S,45IA of RBI Act 

The contents of paragraph 3(xvi) of CARO, 2016 are not applicable since the company is not 
required to register itself with RBI under section 45IA of the RBI Act. 

For R C Jain & Associates LLP
 
Chartered Accountants
 
FRN:I03952~/~100156 

.~ 
MeUJoisher
 
(Partner)
 
Membership No. 115080
 
Date: 29th June, 2021 <:Y
 

UDIN: 21115080AAAAAV6509
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Independent Auditors I Report
 
To the Members of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd.
 

On standalone Ind AS financial statements 

Annexure D Referred to in Paragraph (b)(vi) under the heading "Report on other legal and 
regulatory requirements" of Our Report of Even Date 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal fmancial controls over financial reporting of D. S. Kulkarni Developers 

Ltd. ("the Company") as of 31st March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 

based on the internal control over fmancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal FLl1ancial 

Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICA!'). 

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and effIcient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation 

of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal fInancial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 

of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 

Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 

Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
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financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 

material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

fmancial controls system over fmancial reporting and its operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 

fmancial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 

controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the fmancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over fmancial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of fmancial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

company's internal fmancial control over fmancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

a)	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 

and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 

management and directors of the company; and 

c)	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisitic" 

use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the fmancial 

statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over fmancial reporting, includin!j th': 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

fmancial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

fmandal control over fmancial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were generally 
operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. However, by the end of the year the efficacy of the IFC system 

was adversely affected because of resignation of staff responsible for operating the system and 
delay in appointment of suitable replacements. 

For RC Jain & Associates LLP
 

Chartered Accountants
 

FR~: 103952~/~100156 

A~ 
MeI)a Joisher
 

(Partner)
 

Membership ~o. 115080
 

Date: 29th June, 2021
 

UDI~: 21115080AAAAAV6509 



D. S. KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED 
CIN: lA520lPN1991.PLC063340 

Stan<!.llonc Balance Sheet as III 31st March 2021 

P'lniclliars 

I ASSETS 
1 Non-C urrcnt Assets 

\,t) Propl'r! \, pl.ull ,tnJ l'yulpml'1ll 
(c) 1111 L'SI1l1l'l1t propert\' 

(d) Othl'c Intangible assets 

(0 hnanclal J\ssets 

i) 'n\'(:~tme11l~ 

11) I !lan~ 

(~ Other on-Current l~~l'tS 

Tut.ll on-Current sscts 

2 CurreLlt As 'C IS 

(t) Iml'lltOrK's 
(b) Financial. \sscts 

i) Tradl' Hccci\abics 

Ii) Cash ,tnJ Ca~h l'yuh'a1l!nts 

IU) Loans 

\c) ( hhl:! (:urrcnl \sselS 

Total Current Assetl> 

Tut,11 Asse ts 

Il EQllrTI AND LIABILITIES 
1 Equity 

(a) hace capital 

,1. ()d1Lrl''luil~ 

LIABILITIES 
I on-Current Liabilities 

1'1 11,1 11 Cl 011 h.lbdltlD 
t) BClIT(t\\'lngs 

Ih' I)t fcrrt·J fa\ habilllll'S (Ne t) 

Ic) ()thl'r non-current liabilities 

2 CurreOl lil<hi:ities 
(a) foJnanclal iJabllwl's 

I) 1\()rr()W\llg~ 

11) TraJl' parables 
III) (lrhu fill;lllcialltablillil·s 

1,1 (trill r currelll liahllltil's 
fC) I 'r(J\ ISJ(JIIS 

Total Eqlli ty and LiHhilities 

Contingent Liabilities not provided for: 
Corpor,I(C information and statcment of accounting policies 

1111 H~'III 'ill II' 11. II .. II 11lIPll~rtll",II"II" ,11tH' lin,IIH'l.d :'l lIlIlH.ll1 .... 

\s I'"r IJlIf ,tlIJIl rejll.n I II Lilli d,lll' 

Por R C Jain & Associates 
Chartcrctl Accountants _ 

p;~ R,g;,,,,,io~l'iSS~ 

&J\'3~~ fvT. No ~) 
:..---- -1 (,) 115080 (/) 

l\te ' ftJoisher ~. J:: 
Partner b 
Membership No. II * -
I»),u,'c; Mumb.ti 

Ua1C: 2911. J IItlC, 2021 
l DIN: 21115080AAAAAV6509 

Notcs 
As at 31 March 2021 
(AmI. in Rs. Lakhs) 

As at 31 March 2020 
(Amt. in Rs. Lakhs) 

J 
4 

5 

6 
7 
H 

10 
II 

12 

13 

14 
15 

I (I 

17 

18 

19 
Z() 

21 
22 
2J 

24 
1,2 

347.10 
2,724.91 

5.46 

284.95 
7,890.18 

1,061.05 

12,313.66 

1,57,I('H.OO 

2,663.88 
75.51 

22,289.46 

4.90 

1,82,201.75 

1,94,5 15.42 

2,580.10 
23,936.31 

26,516.41 

n.12(J.29 
42.Ml 

Z,091.57 

75,254.54 

10,396.0 I 
5,694.tl2 

7ll,02HA6 
2,12ll.HI) 
4,5(1-1.29 

92,70.14.47 

1,90.1,515...J2 

35,204.35 

For OS Kulkarni Dcvlopcrs Limited 

507.57 
2,724.91 

5.46 

284.95 
7,890.18 
1,034.33 

12,447.41 

1,57,168.00 

2,663.88 
39.24 

22,281.41 

1,82,152.53 

1,94,599.95 

2,580.10 
24,256.73 

26,836.83 

.\120.29 
42.68 

2,091.57 

75,254. 54 

10,395.92 
5,463.20 

70,028.20 
2,113.98 
4,507.211 

92,508.58 

1,94,599.95 

35,204.35 

(\ ulfllpall)' ullLll'r ( .(l('l'mnlL· Insolvenc' " . Process by 
N( '1:1 (),'lkr lblll'd \~(lth SLlltt'mbl'r, 20 I ( \) W\'A :'4 

~ <J'I PrO"'; ~"V 
h ~ ;; (/J~ Rcgn.No. 6111' ~ / \ l- .~ 1B81fIPA-OOll '5J~1 

.. .c.;. 0 \P-P007l41 :;, l> 
~ cl(:. 2017-201BI ~ ,... 

Mr. Manoj Agur\val ~:;.- 11222 * 
IkWSII,IIICJ II \10 1111 \ I / I P \-011 1/ I P-I'OO ~ '/ )""' i~t:I I~? 
(J'hl' affairs, bUSllll'SS and prop<:rt)' of 1)S K"ulkal;pJ \~cvl()pers Limited 
Ml' 1lt'lIlg fIlOlllagl'ti bl· tlte Hl'~()lu[tllll profc~~ional \\"ho act as agent of 

die' ( :IIIIII',lII1 <mil \\lIltolil <111.1 pL'rsIl/lolllmbiltty.) 

Place: M IInlbai 
Dale: 29th June, 2021 I 



D. S. KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED 
crN: L-l5201P 1991PLC063340 

rlltement of Profit anti Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

Pilrticu);lrs 

I. Reyenu,· from op~I~lti!ln~ (GI'()~~) 

n. Other IIlCOOlt' 

Toml Revenue (I + II) 

Ill. E.pen '<.'s: 

lV, 

Y. 

YI. 

Yn. 

I'll rehas" "f ~I' Ie], ·1I1·'I'r;ld, 

(,h.lng<" IIlI11\l',1I"nn of 1'l1l1s]1l'd (;oods, \\ ork'IIl-Jlrogn'ss alld 
I:-I"d, III 11.,.1, 

Fmplo\'l" lk'll'fir. l"rl'n~t' 
l ffic,'~" ad01m t':\pel1sc~ 
I lIlancc Ctbts 

Deprcciation ami .1tnortizatiol1 c:\pense 

Corporat social re$ponsibilit) ex! enst'~ 
Total e. pen 'e' 

Profit/(Io ') before e.ception.u item and laX (1- IV) (III-IV) 

Exceptional Items 

Profit/(Io ') before ta.,\: (V-VI) 

T <C' expen e: 
Currenr ~ 

\djumnL'nr (If Depreciation on accounr of transitional prm·ision of 
rhl' ('JompaniL'~ cr, 2013 

Deferred t<l! 

Total 
Profit (Lo ) for the period from continuing operations (VII-

111. VIII) 

IX. Profir/(loss) from discontinued operations 

X. Tax expense of discontinued operations 

Xl. 
Profit/ (los .. ) from Dlscominued operations (after tax) (X-XI) 

XII. Profit/ (loss) for the period (IX + XII) 

XIII. Other Comprehensive Income 
\ (i) I [,'nh filM \\111 nIH IX' rl'cla~"I{jcJ co profit or lo~s 

(a) Rt'mC:lsUfemenr of Defined Iknefit t'clll'l1ll' 

(D Income ta:\ rclaang to ltcm~ thar will nor be reclassified to 

profil Of I"" 
(b) gainS anJ los~(:s from Inn'Hmt'nt~ In t'lluir), Illstrun1l'nts 

JCSI).,'Ililll'J <II lim l'lIlue rilrou)!.h OIhef comprdll'Il>IH' mCOllll' 

(i) Inol11w fax n:bfll1)4 10 "un~ thai wdJ nor Ill' rl'clilS~lfil'd I" 

protit "r I."" 
Total 

B 0) I terns rhat will be reclassified to profit or loss 
(Ii) Incom(: [aX rclaang to HC1l1S that will be rt'c1asslfieJ to profit 

or loss 

Total 

Notes 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

31st March 21 

(Amt. in Rs. Lakhs) 

-

-
159.94 

om 
160.47 

-
320.42 

(320.42) 

-

(320.42) 

-

(320.42) 

(320,42) 

(320.42) 

31st March 20 

(AIm. in Rs. Lakhs) 

5,64 

5.64 

-
-

-
79.44 

2,711.30 

512.73 

-
3,303.47 

(3,297.83) 

-

(3,297_83) 

-
i 

I 

(3,297.83) 

(3,297.83) 

(3,297.83) 



Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIII+XIV) 
XIV. (Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income 

for the period) 

XV. Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation): 
(i) Haslc 

(ii) Dilurcd 

XVI. Earnings per equity share (for discolllinued operation): 
(i) Basic 

(ii) Dduted 

Earnings per equity share (for discontinued & continuing 
XVII. operation): 

(i) Basic 

(ii) Diluted 

The accompanylllg notes arc an integral part of these financial statements . 
. h per our audit report of el'en date. 

For R C Jain & Associates 

Partner 
Membership 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 29th June, 2021 

UDIN: 21115080AAAAA V6509 
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(320.42 (3,297.83 

For DS Kulkarni Devlopers Limited 
(A company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process by 
NeT:r Order dated 26th September, 2019) 

Place: Mumbai 

Datc: 29th J unc, 2021 



C ush F low F ro m Ope rat ing Ac tivi t ies 

I,l" I'lIlfi, bdnrl' 1:1, & 1,:,tl'aord'l1an' Itt'ms 

I~' /.I '/I/rt/{I' 10 If,Y/lhl/r PBT fa IW CrlJh /lou',': 

, Ikl''',("I.III''" 

II 1 "" ,,,',I I ,,,r,,d,mn' 

'" 11I't"" " I)""knd Ih'Il",d 
O pcl.u ing Prull! heforc WorkIng Capita l Changes 

) II t!: ((1/,11(// ddjMIII/(IlfJ 

I Incr~asl' (Decrense) in Short Term BorrowinRS 

iI Increa" (1)t'clease) in Other Current Liabilities 

,II Innt.I,,· (I )'l'r"aSl') III Slum l'nm Provisions 

II' Incr,';I'" (1)"c,,,,;\';c) III (hher Financial LiabI litieS 

\ Inert;I,,· I kn"."l) ,n I rall, Pal'abl", 

\I \ I IInl,I",1 I k, n',I'l' ill IIIll'lItOl'll'S 

\" 'locH"',r ' I )vn",IS<' ,n RlTCII ;lhks 

\ III (Incrc,lSc) l)<!crca,;e 1Il Shorr term Loans & r\,h'ances 

(Increase) Decrease in Other non-current assets 

:-;j (Incr<:'I,e) Decrease in Other current assets 

Ca h generatcd fro m Opera tion s 

, I neum, I ;1\ Paid 

et C.lsh from Openuing Ac tivities (A) 

Cash F low from Inves ting Ac tivitie;. 

I I'urcha,,· of I'ropl'\''', Plant and I ':'Iuipment 

II (Inn,·"",) I kt:rlaSt In I.II"g tcrlll J ,oan, & \d,ane.." 

III ,',Ii,' ,,' l'r"I"'I'II, PLuli ;,,," 1':'11IIr1l1"1II 
1\' :,a1t" of Inl't'''tmcllts 

\ IllIl'nsf &. I)III(I\-n" Rl'('('i",'" 

N Col h Ue ed in Inves ting Ac tivities (B) 
Cash Flow from Financing Ac tivities 

I I nlL'n:sf 1';111.1 

II IlIerl''':;' (I kcrl'a~l') 111 I\ornlll IIlg' 

III Illnl.", (I)u:rl'a",) III ( hiler 1()llg fCrln h,lblh lle" 

l' t Ca~h lI sed in Finan cing Ac tivities (C) 

l' t incrcilse/ deercas t' in cas h and cas h equivalents (A+ B+ C) 

Cash E quivalclll as at beginning of the year 

Cash EquivuJent a s lit end of the year 

'utl 10 the Cash lilo\\' Smtemen t: Cash anti Cash i2qu i"a lcnts IIlclutlt, 

( a,h ,Inti Hanh Iblanct's 

( OI'I'''f;\tt' infill'll1anlln & SfiHl' l11 cn f of aecOlll1 nng poitcre" 

I'll<' .1(('ornpaI11 Illg IlOll', arl' ;111 illfl')..'1·n l pM" o f rhl'st, fi nancial sra lelll ,· ll t,. 

\s J" r our ,Illdu rq'Orl ()f c\'l'1I dart' 

For R C J <lin Associates 

PI.lcc: J\1l1mhai 

D.lle: 291h J IInc, 2021 

UDI : 21 1150HOAAAAA V6509 

31-Mar-21 

Rs. in Lacs 
31-Mar-21 

Rs. in Lacs 
31-Mar-20 

Rs. in Lacs 
31-Mar-20 

Rs. in Lacs 

160A7 

O.1l1 

0,10 

6.91 

-2,99 

0.26 

23162 

-8.05 

-26.72 

-4.90 

-0.0 1 

-320.42 

16U.-t8 

-159,94 

196.23 

36,28 

-0,01 

36,27 

39,24 

75.51 

512.73 

1,223.22 

-5.64 

-183.89 

61.96 

5,05 

2,518.82 

75.35 

6.33 

-11 .45 

5.64 

-1,223.22 

133.31 

For DS Kulkarni Devlopcrs Limited 

Mr. Manoj Agarwal 

1~ l'g1 :; rr.ltlon no. Ii1HI / IP \ -001 

-3,297.83 

1,730.31 

-1,567.52 

2,472.18 

904,66 

5,64 

-1,089,90 

-179 ,60 

218,85 

39.24 

( rill' affairs, bll~1I1CSS anJ property ulkarnl Dcl'iopcrs 

Lll11ltl'J arc belllg managcJ by the Resolution professional \Vho 

act as "gent of the Company only without any personal liability,) 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 29th J unc, 2021 



D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd, 

CIN: L45201PN1991PLC063340 

Notes to the Standalone lnd AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31-03-21 

j Corporate information 

D, S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd. is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the 

Comparut!s Act, 1956. Its shart!s art! listt!d on two rt!col,Tt1ised stock exchangt!s in IndIa i.e BSE & NSE 

I ts shares are listed on tht! Bombay Swck Exchange (ESE) in I ntlJa. The Company is engaged in the business of real 

t!statt! Jt!vdopmt!nt in I nwa . 

-\n appllcatJon for mitiation of corporate insolvt!ncy resolution process ('CIRP') of D S Kulkarni Devleopers Limited was 

aurrurteu by tht! Hon'ble National Company Law TrIbunal, l\Iumbai vide oruer dated 26 September 2019 under the 

Il1s()I\'l~nc\' and Bankruptc), Cout!, ~016 ('IBC') and ht!nce currently, Ricoh is under CIRP. Mr. Manoj Agarwal (IBBI 
n'glstratl()n number (IBBI / IP \ -00 I/ IP P00714/20 I ~- 18/ 11 ~2~) was appointed as Interim Resolution Professional ORP,) 
ndt thIS orJer 

AccorJmgly, tht! RP had bet!n managmg rht: opt!rauons of tht! Company, as a going conct!rn, inviting, vetting and 

admlttJng tht! claims against the Company and managing/supt!rvising the operations of the Company as part of CIRP. 

The srandalone finanCIal statements are prepared for the year ending 31st March 2021. 

The I~D .\S financial Wltt!mt:nts wt:rt! approvt:d by the Resolution Porfessional in absence of properly constituted Board 

of Directors, whose powers remain suspended during Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ('CIRP'). 

~ SIgnificant accounting policies 

~ . Ol Date of adoption of Ind AS: 

The nct worth of DSKDL as per the audited standalone B/S as at 31 / 03/2016 exceeds Rs 500 cr. Hence, the date of 

adoption of IND _A.S for the Company & its subsidiarie~ is 01/04/ 2016 (Rule 4 (1)(ii)(a) of the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,) 
The company needs to prepare standalone financial statements following IND AS for the Company & its subsidiaries for 

fmancial year ending 31/03/2021 (Rule 4 (9) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.) 

2112 Ind AS Financial Starements for FY 2020-21 
l'he InL! \:, f1l1anClal sratemenr, ()f rht: Company \\'!l1 be: as foliows 

lJalance sht!et as at 31 / 03 /20~0 and 31 / 03/2021 

II Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended 31 / 03/2020 and 31 / 03/ 2021 

ill Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 / 3/ 2020 and 31/3/2021 

IV Notes to Financial Statements 

2.(J.) Ind AS which a re not applicable to the Company: 
Inti AS 26 _ Accounting & Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans: This Ind AS is not applicable since the 

('''I11P<l11l IS n(ll 111 bllSlIlt:SS ot otterIng Renrellll'nr Bellefil Plans 

u I11d AS 29 _ Financial Reporting in the Hyperinflationary Economies: This Ind 1"\S is not applicable since the 

Compan) J()e~ not opt:rate In Hyperinflationary Economies. 

ill Inti AS 41 _ Agriculture: This lnd £\S IS not applicable since the Company is nor engaged in agriculture. 

1\' Ind AS 102 _ Share-based Payments: This lnd AS is not applicable since the Comp:my has not entered into 

c()nlmets whIch retlUlre share-based paYl11el1fs. 

" Inti AS 10,> _ Business Combinations: Tlw; Jild .\:' is nol appheni>k since tht: C()mpany has not entert!d into an" 

.l1ran).\l' llll'ni' of Iht, 1l,llUl"l' ()f I11l'I')!,l'rs &. ,,,. dl'Il1L'rgl'I'S 

"1 Inti AS 104 _ Insurance Contracts: rhls InL! .\S IS not apphcnblt: SlOee the Company is not engaged in rhe business 

()f IssLung Il1suralll.:e c(Jnrracrs. 

\"u Inti AS 106 _ Exploration & Evaluation of Mineral Resources: ThIS Ind ,\S is not applicable sinct! the Company is 

not engagt!d Jl1 [he bUSIness of explorauun of llunt!fal ft!SOLlceeS 



I'ill lod AS 108 - Operating Segments: Thl~ Iml \S IS not applicable since the Company is engaged only in one 
sl'!.!,n1l'llt, l1al1wl \ , I"e;:al l'srat e;: ul'I'I"I, )pme;:l1t 

I' I nd AS 114 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts: This Ind .\S is nor applicable since the Company does not conduct 

r~rl rq4ularl"d ,\(;lJVllleS 

10-1 Basi of preparation 
On Septl'mbl'r 26, 2019 the J Jon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) had ac.lmmed the petition for initiatins 
il1< (tlrp"r;!ll i I1sl)l\'l'I1CI' Rl'solurtol1 (ClR) PrOCl'SS unde;:r the prol'lsions of the Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 2016 
(111('). lIndl'r thl' ClR Process, a resolutIon plan IS to be prepared and approvec.l by the COC FlIIther the resolution 
pl<ln approvcu by tht.: C<)C Will also need NCLT approval. .\s the Company IS under resolution process, the financial 

statemt!nts have bet!n presented on a "going concern" basis. 

II . \cconhngl)', the Compan) has prt!pareu financial statemwts which comply in all material respects with the relevant 
pr()\''',I()I1S or the ,\Ct Hnd wuh [he Ind r\S applicable for periods enc.ling on 31st March 2021, together with the 
comparauve periou data as at and for the year ended 31 st March 2020, 

llJ These financlal stalemenrs have been presenteu In accordance with the provisions of Division II of Schedule III to 

rhe Companies .\cr, 2013, 

IV rhese financial statemenrs are prepared under the hisrorical cost convention, unless required / permitted otherwise by 
appltcable Ind. \S, 

\. ThiS IS the firsr set of the Compan)"s standalone financial starements in which Ind .-\~ 115, Rt!vt!nue from contracts 
\\,11 h custol11er:;, ha~ been appi.Jeu, 

\ ' 1 \, 1'l:'Jlurl:d by Se;:clion 128(1) o{ the ,\CI, tht!sl: financial statements art! prt!part!d in accordance with the accrual 
method of accounting with revenues recognized and expenses llccountt!d on their accrual including provisions / 
lldlustmenrs {or cOI11I11Jflt!d obi.Jgatl<Jlls and ;\mounr~ detem1Jl1t!d as payable or rect!ivable dUring the pt!riod 

I'll The preparauon of financial statt!mt!nts In conformiry with Indian AS rt!lluut!s tht! management to make judgements, 
cstlmates and assumpuol1s, thar affect the appi.Jc<ltlOI1 o{ accounung poliCies and the reported amounts of assets and 
i.JahllltJes and disclosures of contingt!nt liahiltties at the date of rhe enu of ('he rt!porting perioc.ls and the reported 
amounts of revenues anu expenses for the reporting pt!rious .• \lthough these estimates are based on the management's 
bt!S1 knowledge of CUl'l't!nt events and actions, llncel'tainry about these assumptions and estimates could result in the 
outcomes rell'.lll'lng a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods, Actual 
results may differ from these estimates Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, 
ReVISIOns to llccountll1g estimates are rt!cogl1lsed 111 rht! year In which the estimate is rev:ised, 

"llJ The standalone finanCial statements are pl'est!nted 111 INR and all values are rounded to the nt!arest lacs (INR 
1,00,000), t!xct!pt when otherwise II1dicart!u. 

2.05 1nd AS 1 - Presentation of FinanciaJ Statements: 
The identification of an entiry's significant accounting policies is an important aspect of the ftnancial statements. Ind 
AS 1,117 rellWres disclosure of the sigruficant accounting policies comprising 

a rhl' measurement haSis (or hast") used 111 prcpanng the finanCial sraremt!nts and 

I) rlw "rlw!' accounting poliCies usnl I hm ml' relevant to all undel'srantill1g of the financial statements. 

11 • \s l'ellulrcd by i nu ,\S 10 J the Company has uscd the same accollnllng poiJCtes In Its openll1g Inu AS balance sheer 
and throughout all pt!l'iods presented in ItS subsellut!nt I nu . \S financial statements (the first annual financial 
'tall'O)ents III which an enrity adopts ind ,\S by ,In l!xpliclf and unreserved statement of compiJance With lod i\S). 
Tho'l' ,ICWUnlli1g pohclcs comply wah each lnu . \S l!ffective at the end of Its first Inu AS reporting period, except as 
~pccified in lnd AS 101 (e,g" when the exceptions in Ind AS 101 prohibit retrospective application or the Company 
l1\'atls Itself ()f one of Ind .\S 101 's voluntary t!xemptions). The Company does not apply difft!rent verSlOns of Ind A!' 
Ihat were cffecrtl'e Ht l'arlil!r dates The COl11pall\ mal' apply H IW\\, Ind .\S that IS not yet mandatory if that Ind ,\S 

IWrlnll' l'al'lI "pplicart"ll 



III urren! versus non-curren t classification - Ind AS 1.60 

2,06 Ind 

,I I'hl' (.1l1l1pany prcscllls asst'rs and haltJlllil's 111 thl' bHiancl' sht't't based on current / noo·curn:nt classification. 

b , \n a~sel IS treated as curret1[ when It is: 

~ Expected to be reahsetl or 11llended 10 be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 

~ I reid primarily for the purpose of tradll1g 

~ Expected 10 be realised wlihin twelve months after the repornng period, except work-in-progress of 
real est..lL de elopment projects, 

~ Cash Ill' l<lsh l'llLllvaknl L1l1k'ss l'l'S! l'Il'll'd fl'Om being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
twd\'l.~ months after I he reporling pel'lod 

C t\lI other assets arc c1asslued as non-current. 

d .\ hablltly Is Ireated as current \\ hell 

~ II Is l'''peclcd III IJ~ st'tlkd In nlH'maillpcranng cycle 

~ lr IS held pnl11anh (or Ihe purpost' of tradll1g 

... 1 t IS due to be set tied within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

~ Thl'rl i, 1111 1I11cIIIIlltlllll1al nghl II) dert'!' Ihl' sl'llkml'nt of the liabilil)' for at least twelve months after 
the rl'POl'tm).!. period 

c The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

f Deferred tax :lssers and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

g Thc opcratmg cycle is the time between rhe aCl.juisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
;lnd cash cl.lluvlllents . The Company has identified 3-5 years as its operating cycle. 

2 - Inventories 

1m entories to be valLled at the lower of cost <lnd net realisable value. 

u Costs incurred 111 construction of each project are accounted for as follows: 

a Con truction materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories 
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on ftrst in, ftrst out basis. 

b Finished tenements and work in p rogress: cost 1I1c1udes cost of direct materials and labour and a 
proportion or overheads bast:d on the normal operating capacity. Cost is deterrruned on first in, first out basis. 

c Traded goods: cost 1l1c1udes cost of purchase and other costs 1I1curred 111 bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. 

1lI Ininal cost of inventol'les includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges, recognised in OCI, 
in n·'pcet or rill' purchases of raw materials . 

1\' • ' cr rc;thsable value IS the csrimafetl selling price in rhe ordinary course of business, less esnmated costs of completion 
alld t hc esUI11111 cd costs neCl:SS;lr), [() make the sale. 

The management of th e compa ny h as valued the inve tno ri es at Cost com plying with the requirements of 

IND AS 2 

~ ()~ Ind AS 7 - Cash and cas h equiva le nts 
lnd AS 7 18 allows entities to repoft cash flows from operacing activities using either direct method or indi-ect 
merhod. The regulation 34(2)(c ) of Chapter IV of Securicies & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
DI 'clmun: Relluirements) Regulations, 20 15, n:'luires listetl companies to present cash flow from operating actiyicies 
only untler indin:cr melhod. The Compan\' presenrs irs cash flows using indirect method. 

11 (noulI workmg CHPlI'aI adJLISIt11CnrS Hml olhl'l' adjus lments ll1cluded in rhe accompalwing statement of cash flo ~'s 
rdll'\:1 Jll(' change tn bahlnces bl'(Wel'l1 3 l j03/2020 <lml 3 1/03/2021 

111 Thl' CIlI11P,lJ1\ has I'l'concllL:d prlllil beforc la" 10 11l't cash !lows from opernnng <tni\'ltll,:s, lIowever, rt:conciliacion of 
profil ,Iflt'r I,,: l~ ,L).,U )\Lct'plable under lnd .\S ~ 

w Cash and cash eyuivalenr in the balance shcet wt11prise cash nr banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an 
urtgtllal marurllY or three mOlll hs or Icss. \\ hlch :Ire subJecl to all insl).!.l1lfkant risk of changes in yalue. 

1'01' t11l' purposL' l)f Ihl' srantl,llont, sl'IlIen1t'nr of cash f1nws, I.'ash anti cash elllllvalt'nts c,>nsist of cash and short-term 

.1'1'".11' •• 1' til Ii lin! .tlll)\ l', Ih'l lIe lIl1l'1.1I1dlllg 1),ll1k ll\'ll'dr.1J't~ as Ihey an' I,.()nsld",red an intt:gral part of the 

( (jll1pa!1l', cash 111<1 11 Ilgl' 111 t'll 1 



2.08 lnd AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

TIll' CUlllpalll ',.. J>wfil & L"ss Stall'll1l'1l1 prl"l'I1I' profit / loss fnlm ordman aCr1\'iril'!'. The extra-ordinary or exceptional 
IIl'm, (Jr ch'\I1gcs In dccounnng eSllmall'S and polH:Il" dUring the year under rl'view arc disclosed separately as per lnd AS 8, 

2.09 Ind AS 10 - Events after Reporting period 

These financial statements consiuer appropriately the impact of events which occur after the reporting period but 
iJeforl' Ihe finanCIal slatements arc appw\'ed and whIch have an effect on the balance sheet and profit and loss 
sldten1ellt. 

11 The Company recognises a liabIlity to makt: cash or non-cash distriblltJOns to eqwty holders of the parent when the 
distribution IS authortsed and thl' distributIOn is IlO longer at the ulscretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws 
111 India. a dlstnbllfl(Jn IS authOrised when It IS approvetl by the shareholders .• \ corn:sponding amount is recognised 
dtrt:~crly lJ1 equity 

III Non-cash ilistributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement 
recognised directly in equity 

iv Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying 
amount of the assets distnbuted is recol,>n1sed in the statement of profit and loss . 

2, J() Ind AS 12 - Income taxes 

Tax expense comprises current and deferred rax. 

II (UlTl'l1t IIlC(Jml I<lX assers anti 1t>liJtiIul's arc measured al the amoulll expected ro be recovered from or paid to the 
laxal!on ;llIthoritles. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable 
l1)come, 

III Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
11,lbdll1CS and Ihclr carrying amounts for finanCIal l'cp"rring purposes at the reporting date. 
Defl'fred tax assets are recoglUsed for all ueuuctible tempOral)' dIfferences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and 
alll unuseu tax losses. Deferred tax assets an: to be n:cogmsed to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
ill a\'atlabk' against which thl' deducnbk Il'mp"nlrl thfferences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and 
unused tax losses can be utihzed 

IV T he Company has not recognised any deferred tax asset/ li ability in add ition to last year as the Comp any is 
malcing losses and probable that taxable profit will be available against w hich the d eductible temp orary 
d ifferences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can b e utilized . 

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses 

\' Expensl's and assets arc recogntsl'd net of thl' amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except: 
~ \Vhen the tax l1)curred on II purchase of assets or sen'lces is nor recoverable from the taxation authority, in which 
l.ase, rhe tax paId IS recowused as parr of rhe cost of aCllulslUon of the asset or as part of the expense item, as 

'lpp iIcabil' 

~ \\ hen recel\'ables anu pal'ables are sratl'd wnh the amount of tax Included 

\ '1 1 he net amount of tax recoverable from, or p,l),able to, the taxanon authOrity IS Included as part of receivable~ or 

pa\'ables III the balance sheet. 

2,11 Ind AS 16 - P ro perty Plan t and Equipment 
l'ndlT the prl'\ ICJUS C; \ \P (Intltan C; \ \P), prE were carried In the balance sheer at cost of acqulslUon less 
aClumuJ;\tl'd dl'prt'clatlOn anu accumulated Impalrment losses, If an)'. In exe rc ise of the option vested in the 
Comp any a~ p er P a ra 29 of lnd AS 16, the Co mpany has ch osen the cost model as per P ara 30 of Ind AS 16 
for all item s o f PPE. Accordingly, the Company has not revalued the PPE at 1st April 2015 , 

u Undcr thl' Ind .\~ compiJanr Schedule Ill, tanu anu buildmg arc prestnttd as [WO separate cla~ses ofPPE, In contrast, 
paragraph 37 of Inu \S 16 appt'U's [0 bt ha\'lng fle~lbjiJt) to [real land and buildmg either as one class or as two 
~eparatl' cla~ses. (t also states that a class of prE is a ~roupmg of assets of a sLmilar nature and use 10 an entlry's 
operations. However, in accordance with Para 58 of Ind AS 16 and based on the nature, characteristics and 
n ks of land and building, the management has determined that they constitute two separate classes of 

p rope rty for presentation in the financial s tatements , 



III The Comp;:lny has recogmzed items of properry, pl;:lnt & eqUIpment (PPE) in accordance with lnd AS 16,07 only if it 
IS pwbabh.: that future economic benefits aSSOCiated with the Item will flow to d1e entity and if the cost of acquisition 
or construction of the items of PPE c;:ln be measured reliably in accordance with Ind AS 16,10-16.27, 

IV The cost of PPE Items I11cludes the cost of n:placl11g part of the plant and equipment if the recogn1tlon criteria are 
met \,\ 'hen significant parts of plant amI eqLUpment are requireu to be rerlaceu at intervals, the Company depreciates 

them separate!) baseu on their specific useful uves. 

" \\ 11en a major inspection IS performeu, its cost is recogniseu in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a 

replacement if the recognition criteria are sausfieu, 

\'1 The present value of the exrecteu cost for the uecommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the 

respective asset if the recognition critena for a provision are met. 
\'Il \, relluired bl Schedule 11 to I he Companies :\ct, 2013, the management estimate every year, on the basis of 

technical assessment, the useful life anu residual value of items of PPE, if the ~Isefullife / residual value are diffe"ent 

(rom that speCifieu 111 Schcuulc II 

vw Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets in accordance 

with chedlile II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

1:-' ,\11 item of PPE am] any ~ignificant part initially recogniseu is ul.!recognised uron disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expecteu from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the 
lI1come statement when the asset is derecognised, 

2 12 lnd A 17 - Leases 
I The ueterml11ation of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at 

the inception of the lease, The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the 
use of a speCific ;:Isset or assets and the arrangement conveys a fight to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not 
explicitl), specified in an arrangement. 

II A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantiall; to 
the lessee all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership is classified as a finance lease. A lease in which the lessor 
does not transfer substantially to the lessee all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset is classified as an 
()peratll1g lease 

111 InITIal Uuect C(),ts JI1cllrred 111 negotiating and arrangll1g an operating lease are auueu to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recogl11sed over the lease rerm on the same basts as rental income. 

1\ ,\ leaseu asset IS ueprecJated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there IS no reasonable certainty that the 
Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated 
useful ute uf the asset anu the lease term. 

v Where the Company is the lessee, 

a finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased 
property or, if lower, at the presenl v:llue of the mmimLlm lease payments, 

b 1t'~ISl' pm'mellts are apporrioneu ber'lveen finance chargl.!s and reuuction of the lease liability so as to achieve a 
constant rate of interest 011 the rt'mal11ing balance of the liability, 

c finance charges are recogniseu in finance costs in thl.! statement of profit anu loss, unless they are direcdy 

lIttributable to llualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Compan)"s general 
poltcy on the borrowing costs, 

U contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods In whIch they are incurreu, 

e operating lease payments are not recognised as an expense in tbe statement of profit antlloss on a straight-line 
baSIS over the leasl.! term because thl.! pa\,ments to the lessor ;11'e structureu to mcreaSe in tine with expecteu 
gl'l1l'rall11l1aflon 10 compl'I1Sal,' fill' Ihe b;sor's l'xpected 1IlI1nri()nal'\' cost increases, 



1'1 \\ 'hl'n' tilt' COmpiltW IS Illl' lessor, 

1'111.1111.1.' k-ol'" lIl<.'t,l1ll' IS 11111 ,dllll,llnltt, ;It:t:lIlI!1nl1g pl'nllds SII ;IS 10 rdlct:t a constant periodic rate of return 

(JI1 Illl' 111.'1 ItlVl'SttlW111 olltstnmhng 111 respecl of thl: !t:IlSl' 1)l:CHlISl: thl: Company does not, having regard to the 

tolallty of facts & Clrcumstant:l'S, follow till: pollC), of srnllghl lining of It:ase rent mcome, 

b I'l'l1lid IJ1 co t11l' fl'Ol11 opel'allllg ll'asl' IS l'el'()gnlsl'd over Ihl' tl:rm of the relevant lease, 

l' l'Ot1lIt1gl't1I n'ms ~\I'l' rl'cognised ns I'l'Vl't1l1l' in the period in which they are earned, 

d .1t11011I1IS dlle from It'SSt'!:s undt'l' f.nann' leflst's are recorded as receivables at the Company's net investment in 

Ille kits!:s, 

I.' In accordance With Ind ,\S 17 lease payments under an operating lease are not recognised as an expense I 
InCOt11e on a srr;ught ,!Jne basis over the lease term becHlIst! the payments [() the lessor are structured to 

InCl't!nSt' 111 \tne wilh expected genl'ral 1I10ation to compell$ate for the lessor's expecteu inflatIOnary ~ost 
1I1Crl\il~t'S. 

The Compan) ha' not recognised any lease rentals in the books due to lack of agreement and other evidence 

in re ord 

.2 U Ind A J9 - Employee B'll filS 

I he C\)mpal1\, 1$ rctlulrcu to nS$C~S the nalu!'1.' of il~ employee benefits and make the relevant disclosures 

u Rt,tirt'ml'nt benefit in the Corm or providenl fund is a defineu contribution scheme, The Company has no obligation, 

orl1l.'1' than the contriburion payable to the provident fund, The Company recognlzes contribution payable to the 

prm'ldcnt fum] scheme as an l:xpense, when an employee renuers the related service, If the contribution payable to the 

scheme (or service receiveu before the balance sheet uate exceeds the contribution already patd, the deficit payable to 

the $cheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already patd, If the contribution already paid 

l'XCl'I'US rhe contribution due for services l'ecdved before the balance ~heet date, then excess is recognized as an asset 

ttl the extent that the )Ire-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund, 

111 rhl' Cnmpanl' operates a defined benl.'fit gratuity plan in r ndia, which requires contributions to be made to a 

separately admini~tereu fund managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India, The cost of proViding benefits 

unuer tbe uef1l1eu benefit plan is determineu using the projected unit credit method, The Company has not made 

provision for the entire amount calculated by LIC in respect of its liability under the aforesaid plan and also 

not paid the entire amount. 

1\ Past ~er'!ice costs are recogniseu in profit or loss on the earlier of: 

~ The uate of the plan amendment or curtailment, and 

~ fhe date that the Company recognises related restructming costs 

\' . \"t Interest is calculated by apph'ing the discount nlte III the net defined benefit liability Of asset, The Company 

recognises the following changes in the nct defined benefit obligation as an expense in the standalone statement of 

profit anu loss: 

~ Service costs compnsing current serVlct; costs, past-service costs, gain~ and IO$ses on curtailments and nonroutine 

"t'fllt'ments; anu 

~ t't lllterl.'st expense or lllcome 
1\' The Company IS also I'Clluired ro ~rate its polic)' COl' termination benefits, employee benefit reimbursements and 

belll fit fisk ,hanng. Since these are not app licable to the Company, the disclo mes related to uch benefits 

have not been made. 

2 1-1 Ind AS 20 - Governmen t g ram s 
(JOI'crnmcnl grants Hn: rccognlseu wh(!!'l' rhcre IS rea~onablt! assu!'ance that the grant will be receiveu and all artached 

conditlOlls will bl' compli~d wuh, 

II \'<11l'n the granr relales to an expense item, II is recognisl'd a~ II1coml! on a systl'maric basis over the periods that the 

rl'\;IIt'u (;osr" for whIch It IS mtl!ndl.'d [0 C()mpl'I1Sall!, Me l!xpensl'(l 

III \Xl1l'n tlw grant reian.'s to an asser, II IS I'l'co).llw;cd ilS in,oml.' In l'lilial amounts oycr the expected useful life of the 

fl'latl'u It,,cr. 

1\' W111'n till' Companr rcceiws grants or non-t11Olll'tary assets, thl' aSsl't and thl.' grant are recorckd at fair value amounts 

amI rl'leasl'u to prr )[jr or loss over the expecll'd uSl!fullifc in a pattl'l'l1 of consumptlOn of the benefit of the underl;,ing 

.ISSl'l I.l' h) 1'1.Iual annu:-tl instalments , 



\\hl'll l()ans Of similar aSslstal1l:e are pWYlued by g()Yl:rnments or related institutions, with an interest rate below th . 
CLlW.:11t apphcable market rau.:, thl.! effecl of tlus favourable intl.!rest is rcganled as a government grant. The loan or 
assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference 
between the initial carrying valul.! of the loan and the procet:ds re;:ceive;:d, The loan is subsequently measured as per the 

accoL1ntin~ policy applicable to financial liabilities, 

\,1 The Company has chosen to present grants rdated to an expense item as other income in the statement of profit and 

loss 

However, the Com pan has not received any grant from the Government during the year under review. 

2,15 lnd AS 21- Effect of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 
1he Company's standalol1l;: financial statements arl;: present(;:d in INR, which is the company's functional currency. 

ti Transactions in foreign currencies arc initially recorded by tht: Company at the functional currency spot rates at the 
oale the rransaction first l{ualifil.!s for recogniuot1. Ilowever, for practical r(;'asons, the Company uses an average rate if 

the average approximates thl.! actual rate at the date of the transaction. 

111 :'\{()11l'ran <lssets and habtiiril's del10miniltnl in foreign currencies art: rranslatcd at the functional currency spot rates of 
lxchange at the rep()l'Ung datt.:' . 

IV Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the 
l'xceptiot1 of tht.:' following: 

a Exchange differences anslng on monetary items that form part of a reporting entity's net investment in a 
foreign operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or 

the indiVidual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. 

b Exchange differences arising on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Company's net 
lIlv(;:srment of a foreign operation an' recognised in OCl 1111til tht: nt:l investment is disposeu of, at which d:ne, 
thl.! cumulauvc amount IS n.:classified to profit Of loss , 

c Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in 
OCI. 

IJIl-monetHn' itcms that are meilsLIrt.:'d 111 tt.:'nns of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
l'xchange rates ;H the dates of the 1I1iti,,1 transactlOI1S, on monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency 
arc translatt:d using the exchange rates at tht: date wht:n the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising 01. 

translation of non-monetaq items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on 
the change lO fair value of the item (i,e., tramlari()11 differencl!s on itl!ms whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in 
OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively), 

\'1 The Compao\' considered the two options available under Inwan GAAP, AS 11 -The Effects of changes in Foreign 

Fschangl' Ra«:~ with regard to accounting for exchange differences arising on lonA-term (i.e. having a term of 12 
1l1onrhs or more at the date of m originauon) foreign currency monetary items and decided to recognize such 

l.C'.'change differencl!s as income or expense in profit Of loss 111 the period in which they arise. The Company 
continues thi accounting practice b ecause it is in compliance with Ind AS 21, 

2.16 Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Cos ts 
Borrowing cost~ consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, 
BOIT()\\'Ing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

13orwwl11g costS directly arrnburable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset tha­

nect:ssanl~' takt's a subsranrjal perIod oi nmt.:' to )4(;'1' rt:au) for irs Int(;'t1Lkd use or salt: are capitalised as part of the cost 

of the asser 

11 ,\ ~IU.ll1l)111g a:.'l.!l IS all asset th.\! l1t:cl!~~anl) re~ILlil'l:s a SlIbst,ll11ial periuu o[ tunc to get rl!auy for Its intended use or 

ale 

ill Borw\\,1I1g cost: that are attributable to the aCtlwsitlon, construction or prouucuon of L[ualifring assets are capitali2ed 
as part of the co~r of such assets. /\1\ othl!r burrOWing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which those 

are lOcurred. 



~,17 Ind AS 24 - Related party and Disclosures 

I'll" ( 11l11p.111I h;l, ILiL-IlIIJlnl r"I:lInl pmllL'" as rL'LllIll'l'd III Ind \:-, ~4 

u 111 (ompbance \\,Ith I nu ,~~ :24, Ihe Comp,llll' has rec()gnlZ\;d 1l1dependent directors & Investor directors as key 
management personnel. 

2,18 Ind AS 27 & lnd AS 110 - Consolidated and separate Financial Statements 

1 As required by Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has not prepared consolidated financial 
statements which comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2020, 31 
March 2021 due to lack of information or books from the said subsidiaries. 

u Consolidated financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries have not been been prepared by combining 
'}Il a 11IlL' II l ~ h11l' baSIS by addl11g logel hn thL' b()ok \'alues of like ltems of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenses after 
tull \, d.ln1Jn<ltlI1g 1I1tra-group balances, intragroup transactions and unrealised profits and losses because of 
un<l\'ailabllit\' of data for cons()bdated fmanclal statements and ItS subsidiaries 

2,19 Ind AS 2 & Ind AS 111 - Investment in associates and joint ventures _ 

i An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence, 

u Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial anu operating policy decisions of the investee, but is 
not control or joint control over those policies, 

ill .-\ loint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have 
fights to the net assets of the joint venture, 

1\ I, .1111 l! Introl I~ rill' contractual'" agrn:d ~hanng of (ont['()1 of an ~lrrangement , which exi~ts only when decisions about 
I hL rell'vant actl\ lues rellwre unanimous conscl1l of the parties sharing control. 

v The considerations made In determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to 
determine control over the subsidiarie~, 

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, 
\Xlhen necessaq, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Company, 

\ '1 ll,e Company's investrnent~ in irs associate and joint venture are accounted for using the eqwty method, 

\ IJ l' noel' the eLJui~ mCLhod, the in\'estment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying 
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Company's share of net assets of the associate or 

loint venture since the acquisition date, Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying 
amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually, 

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment 
loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture, At each reporting date, the Company determines whether there 
is objective evidence that the investment 111 the associate or joint venture is impaired, If there is such evidence, the 
Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or 
JOlnt venture and its carrying value, and then recogl1lses the loss as 'Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture' 

in the statement of profit or loss, 

\ill fhcrarcment uf profit and loss reflects the Company's share of the results of operatlons of [he associate or joint 
\cllt ure , \111' change IJ1 ()cr or those IJ1vestecs is presented as part of the Company's OC1. In addition, when there 
has been a ~hange recogOlsed dIrectly in the etlwty of the associate or joint venture, the Company recognises 11:S • hare 

of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in et]wty. ~~realised gains and losses r~~;ulting, from 
transactIOns btrwten the Comp,\I1y and the associate Cll' joint ventun: are elit11Jnated to the extenr of the 111tereSt 111 the 

.ISS(ICI)!Il' (II' loint \'(.'l1ll1l'l', 

1.' I ran entiry's shart of losses or an associarc or II jOl11t venture tlluals or exceeds its interest !n the ,aSSOCiate o~ joint 

yent ure (WhlCh Il1c1uu<:s an)' long term Interest that, In sLlbst~nce, :orm parr of the ompany s net ~vesnnent 111 the 

assocIate (Jl jOll1t vcnture), the entity discontinues rl:cognlstng Its share of :urthcr lo~ses, ,\uJitional losses are 

I I [ tile '" t "Ilt tl,a t the Coml)anl has Incurred legal Ol' constructive obligations or made payments on 
recogl11~el on.l' (j ,,' ( • • , ' 

behalf of the aSMlClarc or jOll1t venture, If th<: aSSOll:lte or JOInt venmre subsellllcndy reports profits, the entlty 
, .. I't' "11al'" (If tllose I)wfits onl" after Its share of the [)wfits <::tlunls the share of losses not rcsumt's recognls1l1g s",' ) 

I'<::C( Igl11seJ 



· ' It> ()f tll~ Comlnny's "hare of profit or lo~s of an a~~ociate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the 
I hl' aggreg; ~ ~ . ' , 
Slmement of profit and loss, 

C I
")f 'j"rnJ'fiC'w( influence o"er the as~()ciate or joint control over the joint venture, the Company measures 

:-.1 pOI1 o~~ ( ~ ,.., , , 'f th " ' 
J 

" U'~ an)' retaJnt:u II1Vesunt!nt at Its fau' value, • \ny J.ifference between the canYl11g amount 0 e assoClate 
,\11 n:cugt ~~~ . ' . . d' - d 

, cure upon loss of sio-nificant influence or ,OInt control and the fill value of the retame Ulvestment an 
Of Jomt ven n" 

proceeds from J.isposal is recognisec.l111 profit or loss 

Xll The Company's inrereH 111 joint operations as per I nu .-\S 111.:W is n:cogniseu in the form of 

... . \ssets, incluuin~ its share of any assets hclu Jointly 

... LiabilIties, including Its share of any liabilltles incurred jointly 

... RC\'enue from the sale of its share of the ()urpur arising from the Joint operation 

... _ hare Ilf the revenue from the sale of (he IlUrplll by the jOlnt operatlOll 

... L:-.penses, mclllwng Its share or an\, expenses ll1curreu jOln!l~ 
During the financial years under review, the Company may have some interest m any associate or joint 

venture which is not determined due to lack of information or records maintained. 

220 lnd 32, Ind AS 107 & lnd AS 109 - Financial Instruments: Presentation & Disclosures: 
\ financial ll1strument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

mstrument of another entity, 

u Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets: All financial assets are recognised initially at amortized 
cost plus, 111 the case of financial assets nor recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are 
mnburable to the actjuisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that re~Iuire delivery ~f a,ssets 

ill ubsequent ~easure~~~t of finan~ial assets: For purp()~es or" sub;et]uent ~easurement, financial assets are 

cia ~Sl fied 111 four ca tegones: 

a ... Debt instnlments at amortised cost 
b ... Debt instnlments at fair value through other comprehensive income (F\ 'TOCI) 
c ... Debt instrunlents, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
d ... Eywty instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

1\ Debt instruments at amortised cost: .-\ 'debt instrumenr' IS measureu at lhe amortiseu COSl if both the following 
Lt mum')\1:< are 1net 

.1 ... rhe asset is helu wlthl11 a bUSiness model whost' oi>ICCtl\'e IS to hold assets for collecting contractual cash 

flows, anu 

i> ... Contractual terms of the asset give me on specdied dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanJ.ing, 

This category is the most relevant to the Company. Mter initial m easurem ent, such financia l assets are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into accoun t any discount 
or premium on acquisition and fees or cos ts. The losses aris ing from impairment are recognised in the 
profit or loss. T h is category generally applies to trade and other receivables . 

Debt instrument at FVTOCL .-\ 'debt 111strument' is c1assifieu as at the F\ 'TOCI if both of the following criteria are 
met 

a ~ The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the 
financial assets, and 

b ... The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPl. 

Debt instruments includeu within the FVTOC I category are measmec..l initially as well as at e. h reporting date at fair 
valul:!. Fair value movemenrs are recoglUzl'u 111 the other comprehensive income (0 I). [Towever, the Company 
fl'l'0J.!,I1lZl·"; mTen:S( mCOlne, 1mp;urment losses c'· reversals anu r()[l'lgn exchange gal11 or loss in the P&L. n 
ul'rec()gnmon of rht' asset, CL111111~aTl\~~ ~l1n Ill' I( ~ss prl'Y lOllS!)" rcc()gt11sl'd 111 ( lC I IS J'l:ci:lssificu from the equity to P&L. 
lr1tl'rl'~( earned whtlsr holdl11g ]., I ()( j UdH 1nstrUmt'nr IS rL'pllrled as InrCL"l'Sr Income using rht' Effective Interest 
Ralt' (ElR) method, 

The Compan) doe not have any financial asset in (he form of debt instruments at FVTOCI. 



\"I Debt instrument at FVTPL: F\'TPl. is a n:sidual cfIleg()fY f()r debt inslruments. ,-\ny debt instrument, which does 
nllt ml'ct the critcria for categ()r1zal1ol1 as at amorl1zed cost or as F\'TC )CI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

In addmon, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or 
]'YTOCI criteria, as at F\'TPL. However, such election is allowed only if uoing so reduces or eliminates a 
measurement or recogl1ltion inconsistencr (referreu to as 'accounting mismatch'). 

Debf instrumems Il1cludeu wlrhlll Ihe F\ ''l'PL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the 

P&1. 

The Company ha not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. 
YU Equity inve IDlents at FVTPL: .\ll eljlllt) II1vestments in scope of Iml AS 109 are measureu at fair value. Equity 

insrrumems which are held for trading anu contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business 
combination to which lnd .\,'103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. 

Eyuin' insttuments included withl11 the F\'TPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the 
P&L. 

The Company does not have any financial asset in the form of equity instruments at FVTPL. 

nil Equity investments at FVTOCI: For all other etlu1ty instrument~, the Company may make an irrevocable election 
ro prt'sent in otht'r c()mprehen~ive income ~llbselluent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on 
an instrument-by-instmment baSIS. The classification IS maul' on in1tial recognition and is irrevocable. 

Ii fht' Company ut'clues to classify an eLjuity II1strument a~ at r"TOCl, then all fair value changes on the instrument, 
excludll1g dividends, are recognizeu in the OCr. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale 
of 1l1\'e ·tment. However, the Company may transfer the cwnulative gain or loss within equity. 

The Company does not have any financial asset in the form of equity instruments at FVTOCI. 

1..: ' Derecognition: A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar 
finanCial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's standalone balance sheet) when: 

.. rhe nghr~ ro receive cash flows from the asset have expireu, or 

.. The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay 
the rect!lved cash flows in full without material uelay to a thiru party unuer a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either 

(i) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 
(u) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset. 

\X'hen the Company has transferreu its rights f() receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 
arrangement, it e\'aluates if anu [0 what extent it has retaineu the risks anu rewarus of ownership. \,\·'hen it has neither 
rran~ferreu nor reraineu ~ubstantially all of the risks anu rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the 
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that 
cast', the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured 
on a baSIS rhar reflects rhe rights and obligations rhat the Company has rerained. 

C()nnnul11g II1vo]vement that takes the form of a /-,rtlarantee over the transferred asset is meastlreu at the lower of the 
()n,.,'1nal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required 
to rt'par 

The Company has not dcrecognized any financial asset. 



x Impairment of financial a et In accofllance wnh Ind _-\S 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) 
mudel for measuremenr and recogrution of unpatrment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

,. Financial assets that are debt mstrumenrs, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, 

trade receivablt$ and bank balance 

,. Financial a.-sets that are debt instrumenrs and are measured as at FVTOCI 

~ Lea.e recel\'ables under lnd .-\. 1 ~ 
~ rmJ~' rc:ct'1\ dbIe:. or a11\ to 1I1wlcTUai nghl III rc:Cl'IVc: cash or another finanCIal asset that result from transactions 
th.1I are \\ !fhm rhe cope of InJ -\. 11 anc.1 IntI . \:-, 18 (refern:tl 10 as 'contractual revenue receivables' in these fmancial 

~raremt'nt . ) 
~ Loan cnmrrurments which an.- nor measureu as at f'\'TPL 

~ frnanaal t,TUaranree contracts wruch are not measureu as at PVTPL 
The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognioon of impairment loss allowance on: 

~ Trade receivable' or contract revenue receivables; and 

~ .\U lea.e recei\'able: resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind .. \S 17 
1be appi.tcaoon of :101pi.tfied approach docs not relJulre the Comrany to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 
rcc0l-,'ru. e. mlpau-ment lu:;: alluwance based on lifet1l11e ECLs at c:ach reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

for recognmon of impatrment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether 
there ha' been a 'Ignificant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased 
l'11ificanrly. 12-month ECL is used to provide for in1pairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, 
hf~cime ECL is U!·ed. If, in a subsequ~nt period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer 

a -mnificant increa:e in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising in1pairment :oss 
allowance ba.ed on 12-month ECL. 

Liferim~ ECL ar~ the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
fmanaalm.-trum~m. The 12-month ECL IS a portion of tlle lifetime ECL which results from default events that are 

po. :ible wltrun 12 months after the rc:potrIng date. 

1 ( L 1 rhe difference be[\ve~n all comractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract 
and all rhe cash flows rhat rh~ ~nur)' c:xpc:cts to rc:celve (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. \'(!hen 
e umanng rh~ ca:h flows, an entity is reywred to conSider: 

~ _W contracrual terms of the financial Instrument (including prerayment, extension, call and similar options) over 
the expecn:d hfe of the fmancial mstrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument 

cannot b~ esumated reliably, then the c:ntity is relJ.uired to use the remaining contractual term of the fmancial 
m lrumenr 

~ Ca:h flow:; from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terffi~ 

.\ a pracucal cxpeillenr, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine in1pairment loss allowance on portfolio of 

it · trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of 

the trAdt" n:ctlvables and is adjusted for fUl'warrl-looking estimates .. At eveq reporting date, the historical observed 

default rates are updated and changes In thc: forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company 
e 'umate' the follOWing proviSion matrix at the rerorring date: 

Current I-3D days 31-60 days 

past due past due 
61-90 days past 

due 
More than 90 days 

past due 

Dd.lUIr [:Ill- (J.IS"" 1.60% 3.60°:0 6.60% 10.60% 
1.<"'1. llnpalrmcOl llll' all()wal1l..e (or reversal) rc:clIgnlzeu dunng lhl' pertod is recognized as income/ expense in the 

arc:menr of profit and I(/ss (1'&1.). ThiS ammmr is reflected under the head 'mher expenses' in the P&L. The balance 
sheer pres~ntatlUn fur various financlalu1srfllmc:l1ts is dtscribed bt:low' 

~ I'manual a~ cIs mcasurtd as ar amorrts(;u WSl. conrractual fCVc:Olle rec~!1vablt:~ and kase receivables: ECL is 

presenttd a an allowance, I.l'., as an tnregral part of the mensurement of those nsselS in the balnnce sheet. The 

allowance reJw;c' rhe m't carrpng amt/lI111 ntil rhe asset meets wrlte off crlleria, the Company does not reduce 

lmpalrmC:llI alluwlIll<.e from dw gfllss rarrpng amount, 



III- L(),m c()mrrurmenrs anti fll1ancial guaranrn: conrracrs: ECL I~ presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. a a 

11,11 II 111\ 
III- Debr I11strumenrs metl!'ured ar I'\~I (lei .-mce tinancI,l1 as!'ers arc alread, n:tlected at fair value, impairment 

allowance IS not further reduced frum Its \ alue. Rather, I:CL ,\11'lot\11l IS presented as 'accumulated unpairment 

amount' ill the OCI. 
For assessing increase in credit risk and unprurmt!nt loss, the Company comblOcs financial instruments on the basis of 

shared credlt risk charactemtics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable 'ignificant 

lOcreases in credit risk to bt! identified on a timdy basis. 

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCl) financial assets, i.e., 

financial assets \.vh.ich are credit impaired on purcha e / origination, The Company has made adequate 

provision for doubtful debts and ha not made any provision for ECL. 

.1 Embedded derivatives 

An embedded derivative IS a component of a hybnd (combint!d) instrument that also include' a non-derivative host' 

conlract - with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a 

standalone denvative .. An embedded denvatlve causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be re<'luired 

by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, 
r()l'l:ign exchange rate, Intlex of prices or rates, credit rating or credit imlex, or other variable, provided in the case of a 

nonfinancial val'iabk' that the variable is not speCIfic to a party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there 1S 

either tl change in Ih~' terms or rhe contract that slgmficanrl\' modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be reql11red 
01':\ rtdasSlficallOn of a finanCIal asset out of the fair value through profit or loss, 

If the hybriu contract contains a host that IS a financial asset \\·ttlun the scope of lnd ,\S 109, the Company does not 
separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements containeu in Ind S 109 to the entirt: 
hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded In all other host contracts an: accounted rOl' ns sepnrate derivntives and 
rn:()1'ded at f;ur value if theIr eCOl1orntL charaCII:rtstics amI nsks arc not closely related to those of the host contracts 
.IIlJ the host contracts al'(: not held for Iradlng or dl'~lgtlatl'd at li1ll' valuc though profit or loss . These embedded 

derivatives lire measured al rail' value wllh changes In fall' \'ahll' I'l'cogruscxl in profit or loss, unless designated ns 
effecuve hedgl11g instrurm:nts. 

The Company's financial instrument Llrc not <.I riv:ui\ 

xu Initial recognition and mea urem nt of m;lnci,lli.\biliti 

instrun nt, 

: Financialltabilities are classified, at initialrecogrution 

a ~ financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 

b III- loans anJ bormwillgs, 

c III- pa\'ables 

d ~ derl\'ati\'es designnred as hedgl11g lt1~trumenrs 111 an effective hedge 

\11 iinancial haht1ltles are recog11lsed l11iri:lll\' at fair value anJ, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of 
d11'l'u h arrriburable rransacrion costs 

The ompan "s financial liabilitie include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
0\ erdrafts, finan ial guarantee contracts but not derivative financial instruments, 

'111 inan ial guarantee contracts: hnancial f!;uarantee contracts l~sueJ by the Company arc those contracts that require 
l\ pal ml'nr I() be m.lde to rt'lmburse the holut'r for a los: It IOCur~ because the spccified dcbwr fails to make a payment 
\ Iwn dlle 111 acconlann' with Iht' terms (If <l Llt-bt instrument. hnancial fl,uarantee contracts arc recognised initially as a 
hablht), at fall' I'allle, adJusted r\ll' trans.\ctlOn CDstl' thar arc din:crly aruiburable to the issuance of the guarantee . 

• ub~t'yuent1)', lhe It.lbiIJt)' is measured at the higher of the amuunt of loss allowance determined as per impairment 
feyLUfcml'nt. of I nd ,\S 109 and [he amllllOt reco!(l1Ised less cumulative amortlsauon. 

1\ Dere ogl1Jtlon \ IlnalKlal ltablllt\' IS derel:()gnised when the obligation unuer the liability IS discharged or cancelled 
or t':ptrt~S . hen. n t':ISllllg finannal hallllir\' I~ replaced bl' another fwm rhe same lender on !'ubstantially different 
terms, ()\' rlw h:'rm ui an l',Ist1l1g liallllttv are sllhstantlall\, modIfied, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 

derl'c(jgJ1ltlon of till' ortfl,lnal It,llllllt'\ lind till' i'l'UI"nltHlll of a Ill'\\' ltabtllt),. The dIfference 111 the respective carrying 
amounts Is recogruseJ tn {he statement (If pwlil or loss. 



:\\ R> lassifi alion of finan inl as ts: Tht: Company delt:rmim::; classification of financial assets and liabilities on 
l11Hinl [CcognJllon .• \[ter initlal rccoh'11iuon, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments 

and financl111 li~lblllril's. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is maut: only if there is a 

,hang" in I h,' bUSllll'SS 11'1olkl for managll1g thosl' assets. Changes to the business moue! are expected to be infrequent. 

'11ll' Company's sl'nior mtln~lgell1el1t determines change in the business mouel as a result of external or internal 

rhangl's whidl arc significant to the COl11pan\'\ opcratiom. Such changcs arc eviut:nt to external parties. A change in 

thl' hllstnl"S mmkl (lCClll'S whcn the Company clther hq'>;1I1s or ceases to rerform an activity that is sigruficant to its 

operations. 1 r the Complll1y l'CcltlSSllil's lintlnClal assets, it applies tht: reclassification prospt:ctively from the 

reclaSSification date which is the first day or the immediately next n:rorting period following the change in business 

modd The Company Jot's not fl'state any previously recognist!d gains, losst!s (including impairment gains or losses) or 

intcrcst. 

I hl loll()wing t,lbk sho\\s \'ariou!i l't!das~lfictllion anu how thle), mc accounted for: 

riginal R d clas ification Accounting treatment 

1.1' ificali 

on 

. \morti:-cJ 

cost 

F\TPL 

. \ l11tH"tlst!J 

cost 

lyrOCl 

F\l1>L 

F\ 1'()CI 

F\'TPL 

mortised Cost 

. \morttst!u cost 

F\'TOCI 

F\'TPL 

Fail' value is measmeu at n:c1assificarjon uate. Difference between previous 

amortized cost and fair value is recognised in P&L. 

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. EIR is 

calculatt!d based on tht! new gross carrying amount . 

Fair value is measured at rt!c1assificauon date. Difference between previ?us 

amortist!d cost anu fail' value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to 
rt!c1assifica rjon . 

rail' value at reclassification datt: becomt:s its new amortised cost carrying 

amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value. 

Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always been measured at 

amortised cost. 

rail' value at reclassification date becomes its nt:w carrying amount. 0 other 

adjustmlenr is reyuired . 

• 4.sscts continue to be mt:asured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss previously 

ft:cognizt:d in OCT is reclassifit:d to P&L at the ft:classification date. 

The Company has not reclassified any fi n anc ial in s trument. 

X\' ! Offsetting of financial ins truments: Financial assets and flllancial liabilities are offset and the net amour.> is 

n :p()rreJ in [he sranualone balance sheer if rhere is a curn.:ntly enforceable It!gal right to offset the recogniseu amounts 

anu tht!re IS an intention to settle on a net basis, to realist! the asst!ts and settle the liabilities :imultaneously. 

The Company has not offse t any finan c ial asse t and financial liability . 

. "\'u Derivative financial in strume nts and h ed ge accounting - Ind AS 109 & 32 

Initial recognition and subsequent m e asurement: Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair 

\'Hlw: on Ihe dale on which a derivative Ie()ntract is entered into and an: subsetluently re-ffit:asured at fair value. 

Derlvativc:s are carried as finanCial assets wht!n tht! fair va lLIe is positive and as fll1ancialliabilities when the fair value is 

nq-\aDVl'. Thl:' purchase: contracts that n1l'et I hl' definition ol a dt:lwanve llt1dlef Int1\S 109 are recognised in the 

~ralement or profit and loss. Commolill\ contracts rhal are l'n1t'l'ed 1I1to Hllll continllt' to be held for the purpose of the 

l'l'll'IPt III' dcJt\lT) (II' a l1on·final1C1al lIem III ,1ccordaI1Cl' \\Ith Ihe ('1)l11palll'\ l', pecred pUfchast:, sale or usage 

n'LILlI n: nll' 11 I S :lrc: held al cost. 

.\11\' galJ1s or \OSSl':; arising [rom changl's in Ihe fair valuL' of dert\'<lflVl'S Hrl' lakt'l1 dlrL'cdy to profit or loss, except fOf 

the effective portion or cash flow ht!tIgcs, which is recognised in OCI and later rt:c1assifietl to profit or loss when the 

hedge itl'111 alT(;cls profit or loss 01' treated ,IS baSIS adjustme:nl if a lwdgled forl'cast transactIOn subsequently results in 

rhe relet )gl1l1l1)ll t)C a (Jun finanCIal asSe:1 <JI' o{)ll·financLallmbiltl) 



1'111' dll' 11IIrpfJ~l' 01 lH'dge aUIIlIJllulg, hedgl'~ iln' daslillieJ ,I 

~ hlil' \,lIhll' hnl14l'!\ wlwll Iwdglllg rIll' C:l(pll~ute III chllOge~ In the fair value of a recognised a 'set or liability 

fll all llIH1'C(IAllised (jrm c()mmJlmcni 

~ C!lsh flow heJges when hedgmg Ih(' expl)~ure to vanahtLry 10 ca:h flow, that is either attributable to a 

pari iClIl:!r n~k nllsoClatnl with n n:r(lgni~ed a~, ct or liahlilty 0r a highlv pmbable forecast transaction or the 

r'"Tlgll l.lInTI1C) /'lsI-: 111 all unn'clIgl1l ed firm c"mmllmenl 

~ I kdgl'S of a net 111Vl'~llm:nl in a fIH'l'lgn operaurm 

'I !Ill' Imlpllrlll of:t l1l'dgc: rc:la til IIl!\htp, the ( (lmpan)' (()rmallr JC'lgnates and document' the hedge relanon. hip to 

which I he Company wi~hes 10 apply hedge tlccounllOg and the ri 'k management objective and strategy for undertaking 

Ihe hedge, TIK' docUmet11allOn Includes Ih(; Company's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, 

the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged Hem or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio 

lind hll\\' the enlll) will as, es~ the dfectlVl:nl's~ of change:; III the hedging in ·trument's fair value 10 offsetting the 

exp"surl' In changes In till' hedged item's falf valuc or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are 
l'Xrec1l'd 10 be highly effective in achlevlOg off~cttlng changes 10 fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an on­

gfll11g basi~ 10 determl11e Ihar the) actuallr have been hJghl}' effective throughout the financial reporting periods for 
whKh thcI wcrl' de~lgnatcd 

liedgl" thai meet rhe stricl cmen;! fol' hedgl' accountlOg arc accllunteu for, as uescnbed below: 

Fair value hedge 

The change til the fall' value of a hedglOg instrUment IS recogruseu in the statement of profit and loss as 

finance costs, 1 he change 10 the fair vnlue of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as 
pan of the carrying value of the hedged Item and is abo recognised 10 the statement of profit and loss as 
finance cosr~. 

rm fair vnlue hedges rdating ro items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is amortised 
through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may 
bt.:).\111 ,IS soon as an adjustment eXists and no later than when the hedged item cease· to be adjusted fo­

changes 111 its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged. 

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 
\X/hen an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in 
the fair value of the firm commitment arrributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a 
corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit and loss. 

The Company does not have interest rate swaps that are used as a hedge for the exposure of change 
in the fair value fixed rate secured loans. 

u Cash flow hedges 

I'he effective portion of the gam or loss on the hedging instrUment is recognised in OCI 10 the cash flow 
hedgc reserve, while any ineffective portion IS rccognised immediately in the statement of profit and 10 . 

,-\mounts recognised as ocr are transferred to profit or loss when the heuged transaction affects profit or 
loss, such as when the hedged finanCIal Income or fmanclal expense is recognised or when a forecast s:U!" 
occurs \\!hen the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-ftnancial liability, the amounts 
recognised as ()CI are trnnsferred ro the tnitial carrying amount of rhe non-financial a:set or liability. 

If rhl' hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised ,,;rhour replacement or rollover (a; p:trt 
IIf the hed).,ring strategy), or if its designation as a hedgc is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meet: the 
cntl'na for hedgl' accounting, all}' cumulative !,raln or loss pre\'lously rccogni:ed In OCI rem.'lin: separately in 
eywr;' until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met. 

The Company docs not use forward currency contract a hedge of its expo ure to forei!m curren 
risk in fore cas t transactions and firm commitmenr ) a well as forward commodity Contra t for i 
exposure to volatility in the commodity prices, The ineffective portion relating to foreign curren 
contracts is recognised in finance COSts. 



\II lit 11'1 III \I 111'1 .lnVI III III 
I il'd~l'~ III ,I II 'I JIlW~IIIWIlI in ;I Clll'l'igll ()pt'ralioll, ilH:ludillg a heJ~e of II mOt1etal), item that is accounted for 
,IS 1',111 01 il1I' IIt'I II1WMIIlWllI, alt' ,IITOlIIlII'd Cor in 't\ way ~il11ilal' to cash flow hedgcs, Gains or losses on the 
Iwtil'llll' tl\~lnlllll't1t H'1.1tlnl 10 11\l' l'rCcuiV{' POiliol1 or Ihe hcdg I arc l'ccogt1iscd as ocr while any gains or 
h I~ 1'l'1,\lIIIg 10 Ilw lmll,'clt\(, 1'111111111 ;tIl' n'c()gnised 111 Ihe ~tl\lemelll ofpl'OEiI Of loss. On disposal of the 
11111'11

'
11 '!JW \'.1111I1I, IIIl l'III1Ht!illl\'1 \ ,till(' Ill ' ;Ill\' slich g;lIlls CH I()sses rccorded in clJuity IS reclassified to the 

1.11111\1'111 ,iI PrJ 1111 1111",~ (il~ 01 H'I'i.l s, Ilil'illillllllliIUSIIIll'III) 

'1'1\1' COllII'"" dm'!j 1101 II. I' II 100\11 liN H Iwdg-l' of ils ('XpOHUre to foreign exchange risk on its 

ill I In" III '" lOll I III IIh HIi,lril's. 

lIlt (,Ot\\IHIIl do' Htli \I " detiv,ltivl' finallcial instnul1 nts, uch as forward currency contracts, 
1\\1 ' Il' I 1.111 ... '.\1', ,\I\d fur.: <ltU l' OI\lIlH)(.liIY contract, LO hed Te its foreign currency risks, interest rate 
Ii I ,\lIt\ 'o f\1I1Hldit , pril' fisl,H, fl'Sp' tively, 

\ 111 1.<), \1\ Illw,,,,in' : , \~ J't'llllll"l'd hy lill! . \~ IO!) , II)HIl pJ'l)l'l"~sillg fces arc amortized over the period of the 

1I ' ~I'IIII\I' hl,11I 

As at 
2021 

2_1 lnu '33 - <urning P r hare 

31st March 

284.95 
30,179,64 

2,663.88 

75.51 

83,516.30 

5,694.82 

70,028.46 

As at 
2020 

31st March 

284,95 

30,171.59 

2,663.88 

39.24 

83,516.20 

5,463.20 

70,028.20 

B,I'1l' L'arnings pt'l" share arc cakulareu by uividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
sh;ul'holut'l's (aflel" ueuLlclin)!, preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity 
shom's ()lllsrandlng dLlnng the period , Partly paid e<"luily shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent 
Ihill IhL')' are el1llfleJ to participate in diviul:!l1ds rclativl:! to a fully paid I:!l]uity share during the reporting period. The 
\Vl'lghlt'J average number of cllui ty shares outstanding dming the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, 
borHls clemL'I11 ill 11 righls issue, share splil, and f(:verse sharI:! split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the 
Illunl>u' I)f ell Lilly shares outstanding, wilhOLlt a corresponding change in resources , 

II hn the puq)()SC of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareh"lul'rs and till' weighted averagl: J1Llmbcl" of sharl:!s outstanding durIng the period are adjusted for the effects of 
all dlluriVl' potenlial C(luitv shnes, exccpl where thl' rcs~llts an' anri-thl~lIive . 

.2 22 II d A 36 - Impairll1ent of Asse t 
I Tlw l'''IlJlI1I1\" :1:-,(' , Sl'~ ,\I l'ach I"Cplll"llllg dmL: whclher lhere IS illl inLiicHliull lhal an aHset may be impaired. If any 

mdil,lt!oll l I 'IS, or whell annual Imp:llfllll'lll Il'sting ror lin lISSl't is rl'lillirt:d, tht, company estimat(;!s the recoverable 
,1I1\'1l1l1l IIr lill ;1,.,,'1 Sud, l'l'clJl'l"I'abk' .li11IHII1I I, Ihc higher ()r ,111 asset's 0\' cashgel1crnting Llnit's (CGU) net selling 
lHlll' .lllll liS "aIm' tn llSl'. TIll' recowr,lbk' ammli11 IS detenmned for an individual assct, unless the asset does not 
gl'lIl'lill l' l",ls!l Inl1o\Vs lhal ilrc largcl), II1dcpcmle111 or IhoSI: from ()rh!::r ,lsHets or groups of assets. "'here the carrying 
llll1l1l1lll ,If lin aSSl'! or ( Gll excl'l"tls irs I"l'c()\'crablc amounl, thl' assel is considered ilTlpaircd and is written down to its 
1'l'l1J "I,dlit'llll111l1nr. 



I I I ' , " , 1t value using a pre tax uiscount 
I " II ' 'SIII11'lIl'd (ul\lrl' l"lsh ll(lw~ arl' llSC()lIlltl'l I() t1l'll pte~CI' '. ' 

I l"i~1t1!!, \,<1 lIl' 111 lIS~, 1l: l,,' I h ' I . fi t the asset In 
1I na~s" , I " , . "Ih' tlll1l' \"tillL' III' t1)()\1l') ;UK t l' n~<s speCllc 0 t,,· I . 'tlell' l\lrrenl 111.If\l'l ,IS'l'ssl11L1lh Ill' _ . , 

Lill' 11,lltl 'r 'lUll!!, )l'ICl' L'e(l'I1t markel IramaUI()i1S arl' lakl'll Illto ilU':()Ullt, il avadabk If no sue~ tl'ansae.aons 
dl'll'nnll llng .I~l:-e ,I ' I I I 111 dd IS useu These calculations are corroborateu by valuaaon mulaples, 
. b' luenul1eu, all appropuille va ua lOt () '" , . .' 

l,lI) Cd 'I ' rl'ces for publicly tnH.led companies or olher available fall' value lOulcawrs, 
l]UOle s 1are p . , , 

rhe comp:wy bases its impairment calculation on uctailcd bu~lgets at:d ~(),recast calculaaons w~ch are, prepared 

ill t Iv for each of the company's cash-gl'nel'flting unils 10 whICh the In<.ilvldual assets are allocated, These budgets 
separa e . . ' , ' (j , '" ., I' . I ) , ' " d' a Ion 1 term growth rate is 
anJ forecasl calculallOns arl' gem'rally C()wrlng a pel'lml of IVl ) e,\!s , ()t ongel pen.o s, g '. 
c:ti(ulatt'u (lnu appUeu to projecl t'tlture cash !lows alter the rlfth ),ear, I' or longer penot\s, a long-ter~ g~owth rate IS 

C<llculateJ and applieu to project future cash flows Hftef the fifrh year. To estimate cash flo~ p~oJecaons beyond 

Pl'rI\'lb w\l'red hI the mo:-t l'l'(l'l1t blldgl'I~ / l(II'L'Clsts, Ihe Company extrapolates cash flow ~ro!ectl()ns 111 the budg:t 

u~ing ,I stt'aJ) or ut'cillUng growth nlte Cur subsL'yuent years, unless an lOcrcaslOg rate can be Justified, In any cas~, ~s 
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countnes In 

whIch the eotm' operates, or for the market in which the asset is used, 

1\' lmp,lirmenl losses of continuing opcrfltiot1s, including impairmenl on inventories', are recognised in the statement of 

Jlwlit and loss, t'xcept for propl'l'lleS pre\'iously l't'vaJut'ti wi,h tht: revaluation surplus taken to OC1. For such 

propt'rtles, tht' unp ;.urmt'nl is n:nlgnlsed in ()Cl up 10 Iht' al11()ut1t of any previous revaluation surplus. 

\ iter Il11p;urt11t'nt, deprt'ciatiot1 IS pw\'iued on the rt'viseu carrying amount ()f rhe asset over its remaining useful life. 

\,1 For asset: excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that 

preYl()ush recognized impainm:nt losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, If such indication exists, the 

company estimates the asset's or cash-generating unit's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss 

i, re\'ersed only if there has been a change in rhe assumptions used ro uetennine the asset's recoverable amount since 

Ihe last 11l1pairmel1l loss was recognizt:d . The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not 

excet:d irs recoverable amount, n01' exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, 

haJ no lmpairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years, Such reversal is recognized in the statement of 

profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation 

mcrease. 

,-u Goodwill IS rested for impairment annually as at 31st March and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value 
may be impaired. 

'-Ill Imparrmenr is determined for g()odwill bv ;'Isst'ssing the recoverable amount of each CG U (or Company of CGUs) to 

which Ihl' go()d\\'dl !'l'latl's . \\lll'l1 the l't'()\'l'rablt' amount of the CGU is lL'ss than ItS carrying amount, an impairment 

loss is rec()),'11ised. I mpairmt:nt losst:s rt'hring to goodwill are not reverseu in future periods, 

L' I nranglble assets with indefinite useful lives are resteu for impairmenr annually as at 31 st t\{arch at the CGU level as 
appropriare, and when circumstances imllcate [hat the carryirlg value may be i~paired , ' 

x Ind ~ 3696 perffilts the annuallmpainnent resr for fl CGU to which goodwill has been allocated to be performeu a~ 
an\ nme uunng the year, proVided it is ar the same Lime each year, Different goodwill and intangible assets may be 
fCiled al ulffen:nt nmt:s. 

'22'\ Ind AS 37· Provisions, Co ntinge nt Li abilities and Contingent Asse t 

]>\'(1\ ISh illS ;In: l'ecogt11seu when, 

a Iht: Company has a present obhgau()11 (legal or constructive) as a r ·sult of a past vent 

b It is prob;'lble that an outflow or rt:sources embouying economic benefits will be required to settle tl1e 
obligatl<Jl1 anu 

c a reliable esam, tc can be made of the amount of the obugation. 

11 \\11l'n the Company l'Xpl'cts "oml' or all of a pl'O\ isiCln to bl' rellnbursL'd, for example, under an insurance contract 
the relml>l.ifst'ment IS recognised a~ a scpamtt' asset, bur (01)' wht'11 the reimburseml'nr is virtually cerram, ' 

III Tht' t:xpellse relaling II) a PW\'ISI()\1 IS presl'nlt.:d 111 the sratement uf profll and loss m't of any reimbursement, 

1\' Ii Iht: cfll'et ot~ Ihe lime ,';due of.m()m') IS matl'1wl, \n>\,lsi(~l1s are disc~)lll1ted l,sing a current pr', tax rate (hat reElects, 

when appro,pna~e, thl' nsks spl'C1fic ro Ihe hablill) \,\11l'1l dlSwunrlllg lS used, thl, increase in the provisio n due to thl;: 
passage of [lInt' l~ n:c()gl11st'u ;t~ a financ\.' C(lst 



\' proVJ~lOnS for warranty-related C()~ts arc rec()gni~eu when the prouuCl is solu or service provided to the customer. 
J nirial recognition i~ based on historical experience, The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised annually. 

\'1 Re~tructunng pr()\'ISIOns arc recogl1lsed only when t he Company has a constnlctive obligation, which is when a 
ul'tiulcu formal plan luenufies thl' businl's~ or part of the bllslness concerneu, the location and number of employees 
;t[fl'l.:tl'u, ,I uelalk·d e,mmate ()f Ihl' aSS(H.:tall'd COSIS, anu an appropnate rimclme, amI the employees affected have been 
nnlJfil'U of the plan's l11alt1 featmes 

\'U Pl'O\,ISlon~ are n:cogl1lsed when I he Companr has a pl'l:sent obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
C\'Clll, il IS pwbabll' that a\1 out 00\\ of l'csoun.:c, embodring CCOl10mlC benefits will be required ro settle tht obligation 
and a reliable estil1'1ate can be made of the amount o[ the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of" 
prn\'ISllIn In be rcimbmsl:d, for l'xampk, LInder ,111 insunlllcl contr,ILI, the n,:lmbursemcnt is cccognjsed as a separate 
,ISSl't, but onh when the rell11bursemelll IS nrtuall), certain, I'h<.: expense rclatlOg to a provision is prcsented in the 
statel11enl of profit and loss net of an)' relmbursemellt. 

22-1 I nd 3) - Intangible sset 

\s re~ILureu b, I IlU ,\S 3872, the Compan), has chosen the cost model as per lnd AS 38.74 for measurement of 
II1L,lJ1glble a~~ets , fhe Compan)' has measured the cost of acqUisition or construction of intangible assets in 
accordance with Ind AS 38.24-38,71. 

u Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired 
in a bU~ll1ess combination is their fair value at the date of acquiSition 

111 Intl'rt1all" gl'neratl:'d Intangibles, excluding capitahstd development costs, are not capitalised and the related 
l'xpendilClJ l' IS reflected 111 profit or loss 111 thl: perioo 111 which the expenditure is incurred. 

IY l·oUowing Initial recognition, 111tangible assets are carrieu at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
lI11palflTIenr losse.~ , 

\ The usefulltves of intangible assets are assesseu as elthtr finite or inuefinite, 

VI Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever 
there is an lI1<.ltcarion that the inrangible asset ~TIa)' bt imprureu, 

\ IJ rhl ,1111(ll'lJS,\Il< III penoo anu I hI: ,1lTIOl'llSalioll methou fClr an 111tangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at 
least at the eno of each reporting periou, Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption 
of fLllClre l'conOI11JC benefits embodleo 111 the asset an: consiuereu to modify the amortisation period or method, as 
appropnate, anu are rreareu as changes 111 accounullg estimates, 

\'Ill 111e amorosan(Jn expense on mtanglble assets with fmite lives IS recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless 
uch expenditure forms part of carryIng valLIe of another asset. 

IX IntangIble assets with indefinite useful hves are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either 
IIlJJ\'lJually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of Jndefinite life is reVIewed annually to determine 
whl'ther the muefinitc: life continues to be supportable. I f not, the change in useful life from inoefmite to fmite is made 
'10 a prospecrive baSIS, 

'\ Cams ur losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measureu as the difference between the net 
oJsposal proceeds ano d1C carrYll1g amount of the asset and an: recognised in [he statement of profit or loss when the 
I ,et IS uerecogl11seo, 

~ 25 Ind AS 38 - Research and deve lopment costs 
Re earch custs are expensed as incurred, 

1l Development expenult\.lres on an inol\·iullal project arc recognIsed as an intnn/,'1ble asset when the Company can 

dt'm( IOsrrate' 
... I he lechnlcal rcasli>till)' of COl11pkllll)!, Ihe Innmgli>k aSSel so that the asset Will bc available for use or sale 

... It" lIltel1l'lon to elll11pIctl' and liS abilit) and lIltenllol1 to lise ()r sell the asset 

... 11<1\\ the asset WIll gellerale fUlure eC()Il(1I1U(" bendits 

... 'I he avatlabiltty of resources to complete the asset 

... The abiliry to measure relinbl), the expenulture during devc:lopment 

111 Dunn)!, rill' perioJ of oevc:l(lpment, the asset IS lested for ImpaJl'mt'!1t annually 
1\ 1'/llIowlIlg 1I1111al n:cognlll()ll (If rhl' ue\'el()pn1l'nt t'xpenJlIUl'e as an asset, rhe asset IS carried at cost less nny 

,lll.liInulall'L1 : 11110 rI I ~,l Ilull lint! ,1I':ClItnllla t ed lI11pal rll1el1! IOSSt", 
\' \l1lurtIS<lrI!lll (If ,hl' a"~l't bq,(IIl' whcn Jl'\Tlopml'nt IS 1:(1I11pletl' ami thl' asset IS a\'ailable for use. 

\'1 It I ,IlIHlrtht'J oVt'l' rhi.' period or l'xl1l:'cled ill III rl' bellefit 
\·u ,\morlJSat1UIl expense IS rc(.;())!,niseu in rill' statement of profit llmlloss uniess su(.;h expenditure forms part of carrying 

value of another as~t:t 



226 Ind AS 38 - Patents and licences 
fhe Company makes upfrnnt pa)'mt!nts to purchast! patt!nts and iJ.ct!nct!s. The patents art! granted for a certain period 

hy tht! relt!vanr govt!rnmt!nt agt!ncy with tht! opuon of rent!wal at the end of this period 

u LJCenct!s for the ust! of tntdlecrual propt!rry art! granted for ct!rtatn periods dependlOg on the specific licences, The 

IIcenct:s may be renewt!d ar little or no cosr [() tht! Company . • \s a rt:sult, rhost! ilcences are assessed as having an 

IllddillJie lIscfulllfe. 

l1l \ ,ummar) uf the policies applied to rhl: CC)mpanl"'s intangible assets is as foll()ws .. . , ., 
Intangible Useful lives Amortisation method used Internally generated or acquired 

1Jct!nct!s lndefirute No amortisation Acquired 

Patents Finite Amortised on a straight-line ;\ct]uired 

basis o\'er rhl' penClLl of the 

patent 

Dcvelc)pment Finite A.mortised on a s rraigh t -line Intt!rnally gent!rated 
(ost, basis O\'er rht! pt!riod of 

l':>;Pl'ctl'd furure saks from rhe 
n : \;HI:J proJect 

'1 'l~ Ind A 40 - Investment Property 

[nvestment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, 

l11\'estment properues an: stated at Cost It:ss accumulatt!d depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. 

u The cost Includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the 

reco~11ltlon criteria arc met, When significant parts of the investment property arc required to be replaced at intervals, 

rhe Company depreCiates them separately based on their specific useful lives .• \11 other repair and maintenance cosL 

arl' recognised 111 profit or Iw;s as incurred , 

III Thl' Company deprt:ciates bUilding component of invcstment property over 30 years from the date of original 

purchase. 

1\ rhl: Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates the 

building over estimated useful lives which are t1ifft!rent from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies 

. \ct, 2013 The management believes that these estimated useful lives art! realistic and reflect fair approximation of the 

permd over which the assets are likely to be used 

Though the Company measures II1\'estment properl1 using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment 

property IS dlScl( )sed 111 the notes hur \',dul's arc dett:rml11cd bast:d ()n an annual evaluation performed by an 

aCCfedlied external I11dependent v;duer appl\'lng a valuation model recommended by tht! International Valuation 

~unJarJs Cc )mnl1t tce, 

\ I 11l\'l'srment properucs an~ defl'cogl1lsed ell her when they have bet!n disposed of or when they are permanently 

Withdrawn from use and no future ccononl1C benefit is t!xpected from their disposal, The difference between the net 

dlspllsal proceeds (lnd the carrying amount ()f rhe assel IS recognised in profit or loss 111 the period of derecognition, 

I II The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its investment property as recognised 

in its Indian GAAP financial statements as at rhe transition date, viz" 1st April 2015. 

22X [nd A 105 - Non-current a sets held for sale & discontinued operations: 
I I'hl: (.OI11pan\ claSSIfies 11011-CUHt!nt assets or disposal undertaking as "held for sale I distribution to owners" if their 

carl) Il1g am()~l11ts are t::-.pcctcd to be recovered principally through a sale I distribution rather than through contlnuing 

W,t" 

II Tht" crttt!na f()f hdd for saki distribution classification is rt!gardt!d mer onl), when 

h 

l" 

the assets or thsposal unlkrtaking IS ,\vailablt! for immt!diate sale I distnbution in its present condition. subject 

(lnl)' to lerms that an: usual and cusromary for sales / dlsmiJU[lon of such assets (or disposal undertakings), 

II'; ~all' I thstnbuJion IS highly pr()ilaiJlL'; 

J[ ",Ill genuJl1ely Ix- suld, not aband()lwd, , . ., ." . . 
.• 1 t(l C()111pl'"I" thl' sale I dlstnbutH1I1 mdlcate rhal It IS unhkelr that slgmficant changes to the ,1en()nS rel]UUl'U ' , . , 

I I I I 1 \1'1'llllt' nntk Ill' Ih,ll Ihl' dl'clsl<,n «) sdll dlsrnbult' 1\111 be WIthdrawn. 
',I l' tlSI n lU \()[ , 

I 
I "I'd ()l J11 tI1'\"l'1l1l'111 I'; Clll11ll1l1tl"d III a r lan It) ~ell rhe a'Sl'l (or disposal undertaking), 

t 1<' ,Iprn 'pn.ltl" l ' . '" 

" 111' It) I( )VIIl' I bl)\ l r ,Ind (()11l[1Il"1t, rill" pLIIl h,1S iJel"n 1I11WIlt'd (if appllcable), 
,Ill .\l I II·t' pl" l)!.l.Hl It' , . .. 

h (
.1 . )() 'alul1lkn IkU1"'\ IS llelClg 1Il:t1l'dl' markl,tl"d f(lI" sale at a pncc lhat IS reasonable 111 relation to 

I l' a~sel Of ul~1 ~ 'f>I " 

as curn:nr flur valuc. 
the sale is expected to quallt')· for reco).,rnitlon as a compirted sale within one rear from the date of 

classification, 



1lI l'or these purposes, sale transactJons include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when the 
exchange has commercial substance. 

JV 'on-current assets held for sale I for distribution to owners and disposal undertakings are measured at the lower of 
their carrying amount and the fair value less costs to selll distribute. Assets and liabilities classified as held for ~ale 
/ thstrlbution are presented separately in the balance sheer. 

Propt'L'f\', plant and t'lJuipmenl and It1tan).!,ibk- assets once classified as held for sale I distribution to owners are not 
dt'precI~Hed or amorrised. 

\1 .\ (Ii..;p()~;d undertaking Llmllifil'S ;IS lhscClnllllllt'd operation If II IS a component of an entity that either has been 
liJsp()sed (Jf, ur IS dassilled as helJ for sale, and 

.. represent, a separate major 11111.' of busl11ess or geographical area of operatJons, 

.. IS part of a Single coor<.linated plan to ilispose of a sl!parate major Ilne of bUSiness or geographical area of 
opera tions, or 

.. is a subSIdiary acyuirl!u exclusively with a view to resale 

YU Dlscontlnued operatHlns are excluded from thl! results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount 
;Is pmtlt or loss after tax from uisconnnul!d operations in the statement of profit and loss. 

The Company does not hold any non-current assets for sale or for discontinued operations. 
129 lnd AS 113 - Fair Value Measurement 

The Company mea:mres financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. 

II Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

.. In the principal market for the asset or liabIlity, or 

.. I n the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

ill The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

1\ The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pllung thl' ,h"er ()r 1mbiliry, assuming thar market parricipants act in their economic best interest. 

\ fall' \':1Iue measurement of a non-financial asset takes Intn account a market participant's ability to generate 
~'C< H10ffilC bendlts by LlSlIlg the asset in irs highest and best use or by selling it to another market partIcipant that 
would use the asset 111 Its hIghest and best use. 

\'! rilL' Compan~' uses valuanon techniyues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which suffiCIent data are 
a\'aJlable ro measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable I11puts and minimising the u e of 
unobservable inputs. 

\'U ,\ll assets anu liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categori 'ed within 
Ihc Em value hierarch), deSCrIbed as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement as a whole: 

\,111 

.. Level 1 - ~llotcd (unadjusted) market prIces in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

.. Level 2 - \'aluat.ion tcchnillues for which the lowest level input that is sil,rnificant to the fair value measurement i' 
dIrectiv lIr indircctl" observable 
.. Lc\'el 3 - \'aluaoon tcchl11llues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 

unobservable 

j'or ,ISScts and lIal)lliries thai are recognIsed 111 Ihe financial statements on a rec1.ming basis, the Company determines 
whether transfer:; have occurred between levels In the hlerarclw by re-assessing catl!gorisanon (based on the lowest 
Il'\'l'1 Input rhal h SIgnificant ro thl fmr value measurement as (\ whole) at the end of each reportJng period . 

• '\ '. \' 1 " (' n11nit tce delefl11l1leS the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value 
IX I w C()11lpan) s a lIarIon ~o _ , .' .,. .... , . . ' , . 

. 1 . I···· " lI1";lrtII1Wllt' "lId unllu()rl'd tlIlHm.I;t! (l~s~l~ l11~,IS1I1Cd ,It Lur \,l\ue, ami for non-
1l1l'd~llrl'lnl'nl. 'liL I ,I' lUI\ ,111\ ~ . .,., 

.1 .. 'I ·ets held (ur dlsluiJulJon 111 Jlscontlnued operatmns. The \ aluanon COmmIttee lU:llrnng nwa~llrt:1l1t:nt, :.uc 1 a~ ,ss . . .• ' .. 
\ h , ,I f th' Invc:stment propertIes segmc:nt, heads of the Company S Internal mergers and compnsc:s of t 1e eau 0 e , 

h h · d fl··J·k managl'l11l'nt dl!11t1rtlTIenr, finanCl,t1 controllt:rs and chJef finance officer. anlUlslIJ(jns tl'am, r c ea 0 r)e [ s 

, , I, dr. "I l'ltiol1 of sll'J11ficant asst:ts, such as propertit:s and unyuoted financial assets, and 
x I· xtc:rnal \'altlt:r:. arc: In\ () \ e IOJ \.1 l.,... . ' . b h 

~. ..'. '1 . . ' ). 'nr consideration lnvo!vt:mt'nt or exrernal vailiers I~ deCided upon annually y t e 
SignIficant liabllmt:s, suc 1 ,IS conlIng!: . '.. S I' ." 

f d ··· . lth and 'Ipproval by thc Compan} S J-\udlt Commmee. e ecaon catena \' alllatJol1 Com.rrurt(;!C a Wf lSCUSSJ()n w, . ., r 
.1 " • ' un indt:l)cndcnce and whether profcsslOn;ll standard: are rruuntall1ed. \ aluers are 

l11clude marker knowleuge, rt:puratJ , , f .. h I C '.. I 
. ..,,, s Thc \'alwlliol1 L()n1l11Jltt:c de(ldcs, a ter dlSCllSSlons WIt t 1e ompany s externa 

11( )r111alh rutalcd en:J) thlcl ) ear, . 
. . h' s nd inputs to usc: for each cast:. valuers, which valuatJon tcc nJtluc:, a . 



'\I \1 l',leh rl:p01"l111).!, dall:, Iht, 'ililialion ( ',l11lll1lll'l' ;lI1al\'~I'~ IlIl' rnllVl:fI1<:1I1 III rhe value of It 'f" and tiltbllJ ;t' wlu,· 
,In' rnllll1l:d 11/ bl' 1"t'I1lt'aSlirt'd I)r IT ,I,sl",nl ,I~ pl'r Ih(' (IImpal1.' a l..<lWlllllg, p"lIuell h,r rhl anaJy I , he V:itl atJim 
(,omJ11lttl:1' \'Wfil'!> Ihl' malor inpUh ;tpphl'd ill Ihl' la!t!~1 valu;tti"n hy awcclfIg Ihe IOf1lrmatlon In the valuation 
cflmputalHm 10 contracls and othl'r rl'il'\'al1l dl)\,:uml'nts, 

:ill The "aluarIon Committee, 111 conJunction wllh the Company'M eXlernal valuer., at (I eomparclI th' ,harw,c in the fair 
\"allll' of t'ach a"~1:1 a11t1 liallllll), ~'\lh rl'il'vanl e:xll'rnltl soun:e!l III d 'termm' wh ,th 'r ,I-JI' change III rca I1nable. 

:\Ill ()11 ,111 111\l'rl1n ha'ls, Ihl' ,'"Iuatlon C0Il1Ill11I l'l' ,lIld till' C(Jmpan~ 'Ii external valUl,t prcJCnt Ihc valua ItJO rcsultJ to , 
\l1lht ('011\Jlllllll' ,lilt! Ihl.' ( Illl1lMlly\ illdl'\ll'lllklll ;Iuultor ,'n,) IIldu<.le a <.I. eu illn (If [he malor a mp 'on ~ 

111 the: \"aiu<lflon" 

,I" I'ur the puq1ml: "f fair value disclosures, Ihe: C')mpan)' has delermmcd clas ell of a ,[' and lJaliili . s (,n he:: ba of 
the naturc, charactenstics anti risks of the a 'M:l or liability amI the k:vc1 of [he fair value hierarchy at xplained above. 

X\' This note summanscs accliunung polIcy fol' fair value. Other [;lIr value rdared ,.I' d ) urel are Biven ttl tlu: re!:flant 
nilles, 

~ DI do,ul'l''; tllr "aluarion I11l'lho\", '1).!,l11fil';tllt \-'llInall'K anu a~surnpllllO" 
.. COllnllgl'\lt l'olhidnatlllll 

.. (~uanlllatlH' lhsclos~trc.:s of f;til' V<lllie tnl:aSlIl'emell1 hierarchy 

.. 1m I:stmcnr III unl.juored 1'9uil)' sharl's (UIScollllllueu l}peratl/)Il~) 
~ Propcrty, planr and cqwpmcnr unoer revaluauon mc)dd 
.. Investment properties 
~ FinanciallOstrumt!nts (including those carried ar amortiscU CII);C) 

.. . '()Il cash distribution 

w The Company has not elected to apply the portfolio exception under Ind AS 113.48, If an entity make, an 
accounting policy decision to use the exception, this fact is required to be di cl0 ed, a per Iou 113.%. 

2,n lod 115 - Revenue Recogniti on 
lind .\S 115 has been notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MeA) on March 28,2018 and iJ effec 've from 

accounting period beginning on or after April 01, 2018. 

u The Company shall apply full retrospective approach in adopting the m.'W standard (for all contrac[S other truan 
completed contracts) and accordingly recognise revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 as compared to earlier 
Pcrccmagc of Complwon mt:lhod as pl'r the GUIdance Note on Ae~ounnng fll' (/t!al Estate: Tra actlon (for cnoues 
If, whom 1110 . \S IS applicable) 

ill Thl' CIlmpan)' shall rt!C()j!;OIse revt!nue when II dCIt:rmlOes the sali~fact.ion of pt:rformance: (Jblig2w>ns at a point In 

tiffil:, Rl:venue shall be recogOlseu up()n Iransft:r (Jf control of pWJ11lsed prf)uuctS [0 cu rome: in an amoun ilia. 
rdlecrs Ihl' ,"nsidentlion which thl' ClImplln)' expecls to receive in cXI:hange for thu,t: produc 

IV f'or sale of LlOlrs, the Company shall recognise revenue when irs performance obl1gation' arc: satisfied and customer 

o\)talOs control of [he asset. 

" (onlntl:l aSSl'ts arl: to be reco).!,nised when Ihel'l: is excess of feVl'IlUC carned over hil1in~li on comract Contract 
arl' claSSified as unhilled receivables (cml)' tI(;1 of IIlV()ictng IS pl:lldll1g) when thert: IS unc(JndiwlI1al right to rc:cervc: cash, 
and'lI1ly pa sage of time b re,,!uireo, as per \,:ontraclllal terms, 

VI (cmtracl Liahilities arc to be recognised when there is billing in CXCClili of revenue and advance rcceivtd flOm 

customers, 

\,11 The Compan), el1t(:rs entenng l11 to l)evc\CJpmenl and Project Managcmcnt :tgreements wt£h land·owncrs. Accounting 
fllr IIlCljm~' fwm such pfllJech, measll red at fa ll' value, i, dOl1l' on \Icel'Llal baSIS a per th' ttrrn uf [he agreement 

\,111 IND A 115 _ 'Revenue from OltlrUCLb with Customer' wu Ilolifi d W ,l', l. Aprill, 201 ,(cplacin ' 1 1 
' l{ l'\'UHll' H eco g lli!i ()JI' "lid IN!) AS 11 'CUlI,>lrtll': !HlII COlIlJ,l l' !!j', Thl' olflp,my hu ' dopll:d I 1) 

wi th lIlodifi(,d re:lrospectivl' .tpproach fur it (('veiluc fWJll long te(1II crvice COIiLlacf , II impu t tit 

on th Pillaocial reliulu; iii not ~ignjficallt. 

(COr 

IX The olllpan)' Iwd /luI recoglli!;cd allY ~.tlt" of ilicolllpl"tt, projt"ct~ ill thl~ pr~ vio II Y 'Il' ba d 0 11 th · 
Guidan"" Not(, on rh'ul Es(u\(' i" lied hy ICAI dUl' 10 luck of eVlden c .tvailabl of the previoll al 

l'Omidtreu for IIldividual !>wiee h., 

TIll'refurl" till" olOpallY is said to cum ply wilh tilt rt(luireoH 111'1 uf aid IN [) 115 f(' ICOHP ctivcly and no 
effects need" to be re IUled in the opl'lIing H' luin('d l"utllillg , 



x Interest income is accounted on an accrual basis but not at effective interest rate due to lack of interest 
statements but recorded based on Form 26AS. 

1.30 Change in significant accounting policies 

I Tlw rOmpa\1\" h;b applil'u Inti \S 11 'i Rn'l' 11 lIl' rl'lll11 contracls with customns Llsing th(! full retrospective approach 

(for all COl1lr.llIS olher than complelell coni raels). 

u Ind 115 establi he comprehensive framework for dctermining whether, how much and when revenue is 

recogni ed. Under Ind AS 115, with effecl from April 01, 2017, revenue is recognised when a customer 

obtain control of the goods or services as compared to earlier percentage of completion method as per the 
Guidance Ole on ccounting for Rcal EStale Transactions (for entitie to whom Ind AS is applicable). 

1.3\ laleriai chanO"c reflecting the Financial Position of the Company 

I"hlTl' ;Ire prucl'elhngs gOll1g on agalnsl tl1l' C()l11pall), und~r VHrlClUS laws sLlch liS The l\.laharashtra Protection of Interest of 
Dq)osirors \ct (\1]>10), Economic ()ffencL's \'i'ing (El )\'\1) - Pune, Insolvl.!l1cy and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and other 

eCOI1Ol1llC laws. \' arious agl;!ncles have moved against thl;! ,\ssessee Company and its directors, viz, Dirt!ctorate of 
El1forct'm~nt (ED), Serious Fraud Investigation Office (SFIO) and other agencies, The original documents/agreements 
has been seized by ED and are nor available for carrying out necessary audIt. 

1.31 It IS pertint!nt to nmt! that the Rt!solucion Professional mad!! all the practical and reasonable efforts from time to time to 
facilitate the inforrnation / data from the officials of the Company. In rclation to the preparation of the Financal 
~tatemenb of the company and also the informatlon required by tht! auditors for the puxpose of carrying our the audit of 
thl' financial statements of the Comran),. I t is to be noted that the financial statements for the FY 17-18 as well as the 
IIlfllll11.1lion pro\"ldeu to th.: auditors for the purpose of audit" or th.: saml!, pertain to thl! pl!riod prior to the appointment 
oi the Resolution Professional and therefore and therefore, while facilitating the collection and disst!mination of the said 
information, the Resolution Professional has relied upon and assumed the accuracy / veracity of data / information 
prm'jded by the officials of the Company, suspendl;!d Directors and long term consultants and the r!!cords of the Company 
made .l,auable to [he RP and has assumeu data in conformity with [hI! applicable laws and and present a true and fair view 
of the position of the Cnmpanv as of uates and for the period indicated therein. The RP has not personally verified the 
Informanon pronueu b\' the officiflls of [he Compally and hfls plflceu confiuence in the data/information provided, The 
tin,\Ilual srarenll'nts ha"e been Signed by the RP as IlO promoter di..recror is present ,\ccoringly, thl! RP should be absolved 
from the accurac\" n!racit)' and suffiCiency or completeness of such Information. 
Readers and USl!rs of [hI! statements are Hlh-isl;!d to do their due dIligence beforl! arriving at any conclusions, The RP has 

sih'l1ed the Financlals Statements to facilitate the CIRP process and to facilitflte the statutory requirements without any 
liability of the same. 



o S. I\ULMRNI OE\ ELO PERS LIMITED 
('IN U52UIPNI99IPLCOu3J·1O 

OTEJ: PROPERTI .PL. ... NT< EQ rp?lfE 'T, I"1T>\ 'GrilLe \ S [IT!>" 01. T GrBLI ~FTS U DER OE\'CLOI'J\IENT 

NOTE 
GROS:' BLOCK (AT COST) 

NO 
DESCRIPTIO. ~ \ t ddlllon, I A, At A.A. Deduclion., Tran!oifers 

Apnr 01. 2020 JI-J\ loU'-21 April 01,2020 

3 TANGI BLE ASSETS 

Planl & Equipment 
I:')', 211~tt~1 :!,('H~ (,(, ~,GR-4.6o ~,'~S.49 
1"'1 ~,,1') 211 :!,(IX4 (X) 2liR~.6() I,X7 o.11 
Furniture & Fi rurc'" 
1"'1 ~tl:l ~I 2J31X 2.1318 U~.I~ 
I) ~Il(,. ~I ~,3 I!\ 2.'13.18 115.62 
Vehid"" 
F)' 2o~t~21 -II'8J~ -1118.32 .177.5~ 
I) 2ul<)·21 -II18-,~ -1118.32 ,()-U8 
Office EquipmenlS 
ry 21(~u.:~ ~(,~ ~C1 464.40 4~9.21 

IY 2111')-211 ..j(,~W 46~A(l 4.,2.09 
Compuren> 
F) 21120 :1 2..1-1.91 214.93 231.55 
I) 2(119 ~t .2..1-+93 23 .. l93 ~.'1.-18 

Total Tangible As,et 
FY 1(120-11 -J,O::S 3(1 4,1125.50 1,517.94 
FY"',"'') .. 20 ~,("S~9 -J,1I25.-i9 3,1119.70 

4 rNVESTME T PROPERTY 
Land 
n 1112( .. 21 2,724.91 2,724.91 

I-Y 2"19 211 2,724.91 2,724.91 

rNTA GTBLE ASSETS 
5 Compu[Cr Software 

FY: 2l 12tJ--21 2.33.70 2.33.70 228.24 

r\': 2<01 ~-2t1 233.70 23.170 213.75 

[Ioul (l"_Y :Wl.O-lI) 6,~lS4 . J1 o,~M. ll j,lq{).l~ 

'Toc.aJ (I'Y 1.01,-ZUj 6,'~4.lU o,'M.lU j,.ljj.'1~ 

ore: 
The ""orkingof dcpR'Cl3tlOn for me )'ear has been worted out bosed on the bot>ks of aceounllo maintained b)' the manage'111ent 

2 The Compam h"s not, during the year, acquired an\' 1'1'1: or Intangible assecs under 2 finanew lease or through bu"ncss comb,nauons 

3 The Company has not, dunng the lear, unpalCed an)' 1'1'1: or Intllnglble 'SSCts nor re\'el'>"d an)' past impaltmcnt 
4 There are no additions 10 PrE or mtangtblc assetS, dutlng ), .. ",r, on :lccount of exchange differences. 

5 There are no addit",n, to PPE or IOtangtbk asser.., dunng \'c-ac, on account of revaluatIOn 
6 There arc no dISposals ofPPE or intllngJblc .ssets, dunng )""r, on account of dlsconunued 0peratlOns. 

No items ofPPE have be"" conmbured by customers dunng year. 

(Amounts in Rs. Lakhs) 

DEPREClATION / AMORTIZATION NET BLOCK 

As At At the beginning of At the end of 'he For The Year On Dclluclionc.. 

31- lar-ll 
the yea r yea.-

122.27 :!,4-.J7T 1S917 2,(,1)11 

-14') 36 ~"~5A') 8/1851 ,\)1). ,-

rl!.33 1;2.~' 99.'4 X"-I 

11\.52 I,+I~ 117.5(, l)t) .• 6 

11.97 ;X9.52 .3078 ISHI 
11.17 -;-7.5~ ~.1.9S 1,11, 

7.89 -157.10 1519 - ,0 
17.12 -I49.::!1 32.29 1518 

2;1.55 31H ,;K 

0.(16 2; 1 ~5 145 llts 

160.-17 3,6'11.-11 S07.57 looP )(I 

498.?~ 3,517.93 1,005.78 5117.56 

2,72491 2.:2-i ~Jl 

2.724.91 2.72 .. l~1 

228.24 SA6 5.-16 
14A9 ~8.2-t 1995 546 

IbUA I j,906.64 j,LJI.~q j,uII,47 

~l.l.lj j,746.17 j,/~U.M j,<..)f.,j 



-
D. S. KULKARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED 

CIN : L45201P 1991PLC063340 

INotc ' (0 Standalonc Financial Statemcnt for the year cnded As at 31sl~lar' 2021 lAs at 31st Mar' 2020 
(AmI. in R . Lakhs) (Aml. in Rs. Lakhs) 

6 on- Currenl Invc ' (mCIlI ' 

l nquoted 
Imcslmems in Eqlli~1 Instruments in Subsidi;lries 

D T Infra P"t. Ltd. 

2U.UC .l ) I pllt\ .·h.lrl:~ of R~,IO/- e.lCh fully paid 200,00 200,00 

Ill\e~tll1cnt~ in Equil:}' In~Hrum!:llt~ in Qth!:r Companie 
D:I( (;Ioba) I:ducation and Re~earch ltd 
~ .33, 19- I .., ,33,197 lyUlt\ SharL~ of R~, 101 e,lch fully palu 73.32 73.32 

1m !:l!unents III shares in (~Q-Qperi\1i,e Bjllll,s 
1.110 ,h.lr<·' 01 R~. 'ill c;Kh fllih j);lid III Shru' Sadgurll lallgll \Iah;tnlj S"hilkilrl I~ilnk 0,50 0,50 

LtJ, 

H.l ,h.1r<,' of R, \Ol . each fulh paid III lallala S.lh.lkari Hank I.ld, 0,01 0.01 

10 "h.u'L" of Ib,Su - each fully p.uJ 111 ;\1"h,,1.I:\1111 Co·Op, Hank LtJ, 0.01 0.01 
4,0 0 ~han:: of R '.25/- ( __ ach fully paid in G rean:r Bomba), Co-Op, Bank Ltd, 1.02 1.02 

20,000 ~hares of l~. 25/- each fully paid in Kalyan Janata Sahakali Bank l.tu, 5.00 5.00 

1 00 'hare~ of Rs. 1 00/- each fully paid in Pune Sahakari Ban k l.td, 0.10 0.10 
SO, sh~rLs of Ib,l 00/- each full} palu III Sangh Urban Co-Op, Ball k Ltu, 5,00 5,00 
Total , Ton-Current lnve tment 2 4.95 24.95 

Additional Disclo ures 

. ~'t'L1-'3.t'-' all)( unt of Quotcdltl\,estlllctlts - -
larhr \ .1\u, of Quoted 1I1\T~tl11ctH~ - -

\~'t'c/.,'3.t'-' amount \.if LJnyuoreu InvestmctHs 284.95 284.95 

6.1 .S rLqutrc.d by Ind AS 27.10. the company has chosen the cost mouel for measurement of carrying value of all investment. 

6.2 l. the l!lvcsrmcnt 111 subsidiary and associates are measureu at cost as per Inu .\S 27 Separate l'inancial Statcmcn~ 

6.3 .\11 OthL~ 111\ cstments arc carned at amortizeu cost. 

Loans - non-current 

A, I kpOSlh unsecured. conslucn:d goou 
I \ nh Rd:Hed I ';1ffie~ 76.53 7 .53 

II Ith ( )lhU'~ 27 AI 278.41 

'b LIl"n' to Rdatcd Partics. ullsecured 

1 C()n~ldered go()d 5,2 9,40 5._ 9.40 

II (.()n 'idered doubrful 6,959.68 6,959.68 

11I J llowance for bau anu doubtrul debts -4,'713.84 ·4,713.84 

Total Loans 7,890.18 7,890.18 

7.1 Dt:bl dut b~ dl!ecrors or mher officl:rs of Ihe CompallY or aliI' of Ihem either ~l'\'er;llly O[ Jointly with an ' other pCrSI)n Of debt.· due by firms 

,)r pm .tIL co;npallll~ respec!I\'Lh 111\\ hK" .1111 dIrector is ;1 partncf <If.1 dirl'not 01 .1 nwmbl'l', 

7.2 Loans (Jr deposns ro rdared par!H:s have not been \'l:nficd due !U lack of Icdgl'[ continna!lol\s 

7.3 Loan .m: non def\\.llI\c fin'lncia] assel,' which gUll'rolll' .1 Ii l'd Ill' ';triable IIlt,'''l'St mculIl,' fur rill' l \)1111 all' '111e carrying Vallll' may be 

dffeClt:d b\ rill' c/1Jllges III Ihe credil n~k of COlll1tcrpani,'s, 

Other on-Current Al> et 

(a, Lcnvar Crcuit 12.16 81-.16 

(b) (;s r Input Tax Credil 40.39 21.02 

C) (;S"{ Rcvl..r e ( har~c~ rt C 1 19 5 ... 

u I orllyn ( urrllil \ III 11"l!d 
2 ·16 2,46 

19_,8S 192,85 
l IlLllI \1.IIII1L 11 II1lL. 

1,034.33 
1'11 .. 1 OilIer Currelll Al>bl·ts 

1,06 LOS 

.1 ( rldll- 11,111.1>1\ InlJl\ (,SI til ( 1.'111,11 oIrl IIl1t ILIlIi,,1 h'IJlIII 111111 lilnl hI th, 1II,lIu~·I.·mlllt ftll' Ihl 11l'1'Ill I JUL' to b k uflogin n:dt'llriab of 

Ihl (,O\LfIlllll1\! I",rul, III. Pit,' IIf \ .tr1()\IS Il'pn,':llltalll)lI, . " . 

.2 S! . d I 'I' It '11111(" P lid lOll h,·h.ll! 01 the rusll't11I.'1S tor Ihl.' 1111, I 0, 'C ,l'd b) Ihl'm, 1 he ';.lI11C scems to be 
. 'Clt:t\ ~1.lIllllIlJlln: p.1I . It>\\ ~ I Ie tIl.III l' , 

lrr,cOl cf"oIble as rill.: possessloll h.IS bt:L.'" .I'·;II!cU. 



8.3 Ilaiancl' In foreign currency pm;sesscs lil t: balancc in the fOfcx caru Ilclu by the Company. Thc same was not avai lable fm verification 11(;l\ce, the 
a III Olll I I n;,cmblcs tht: accounting uata. 

9 Inventories 

(il) ( .on,tructions J\latcnal, 245.94 245.94 
(b) \X 'ork .in.I'rogn:ss 1,55,540.42 1,55,540.42 
(c) I,'ini,hcu 'i'cncmcll t, 1,381 .64 1,381.64 

fOlallnvclllOries 1,57,168.00 1,57,1611.00 
9. 1 Inn'llt()m, \\ Lrl IWI wh()lI\' plll,il<ll1\' \'cn finl by I hl 1I1.lil 'lgl'mcil t ililU Imlcl' the ,ame i, n;licd Oil thl! valuation uOl1 e last year except for the 

Ch,lIlgl' III \\ II) lI1\t'ntor\ that rellects addioollal COSI incurred or sale of fl!w projects pl!rtaining to last year accounted for in the current year. 

9.2 ;"joJe of \'i\luation ; Sec note to financial statt:menls 

10 Trade Receivables unsecured, considered good. 
(a) ()utstandll\g for les, than SL'\ mOllths - -
(b) ()ut>tanJlng for a pt:flod t:xcecding six mon ths 2,663,88 2,663.88 

T otal T rade Receivables 2,663.88 2,663.88 
10.1 I radl' ItclL'1\ ,\bks ,liT non · intcccst bcanng 

11 Ca hand Ca h E quivalents 
(a) Balances with Banks 

i Eann.lrked Balances with Banks - -
\I Current .\ccount Balances wirh Hank 61.81 25.54 
III Balallces with Banb to the cxtcnt hc1u as mar!,rin moncy or security against 0.34 0.34 

th..: borrowin!,>s, guarantces, other commirments, erc. 

IV Deposits with original maturi ry of less than twdve months 13.17 13.17 
0)\ C.l"h on Iland 0,20 0.20 

TOlal C,lsh and Cash Equivalents 75 .51 39.24 

11.1 'JllC dctatb of pkdge of the fixed deposi ts held by the Company arc based on last year's verification 
11.2 l'he balances llf bank rccordcd above arc basl!u on the stawments ava ilabk with th e management which arc not fully updated and available. 

U Loan - current 
Consldcccd doubtful 

(a) ,\dvances ro related parries, unsecured, considered doubtful 900.56 900.56 
(b ) • \d\ .lncc ro crcilitors 1,036.27 1,028.22 
(c) Other ,\dvallces 20,352.63 20,352.63 

T otal Loans 22,289.46 22,281.41 

12.1 Loam and advances due by directors or o th er officers o f the compan y or any or th em either severally or join tly with any other person or 
amounls du..: by finns or priv:t n: companies respec tivd y in which any uirectol' is a partner or a director or a member. 

12.2 I ,oans :lre non deriva rive fin ancia l asse ts which generate a fi xeu or variable interes t in come for the Company. The carrying value may be 
affected b~ rhe changes in th e credit risk of counterparries, 

13 Other Current Assets 

Prepaid cxpenses 4.90 -

Total Prepaid expenses 4.90 -
14 quit)' Share Capital 

.Ii \lIIhlll1Slll ( .. lJ lI1al 
5,000.00 5,VV,VU,OUU 1·.lJUlll' shan;, of Its. 10/ each 5,000.00 

b) jssued, subscribed and p'l1dup capilal 
2,580.10 2,SH.(ll,()()8 h luJt\· shar!."s or R~. 10/· eilch 2,580.10 

Terms/righls attached to equity shares . . 

1~.1 '1'1 I I I· .. f l'llult )' ~ ll'Irl' ,; hav1Ilg pill \ all1l' of Its , 10 pel share. I'.ach holdl'r of l!llULty shares IS cllt1tll!d to one vote per 
1<: c(j111pan)' las Oil \. one C .1. ~ () • • , , .• • • • 

I . , d I .. I la)" diVidends in Indmn nIJlpl·S. I he dlvldwu proposed by rill' Boaru of DlrcCtors IS subject to the appruval 
s larc I It l' com pan )' l'C '11 es a1l( I ' s. . 
of th e ~h :r re h()ldl'r~ in th e l'H ~lIri\lg .\1I11I1al (,l'Hcral i\ll' l'tl1l~, 



I-t .2 In rhe l'lcnl of li'lllidalion (If thl company, the holder" of l"IUl!l' "h;lres will bc l'ntitiel.l to receive n:maining assets of the com pany, after 
d"tniJlIlI

Cln 
(If ,III prl'i"l'relltad ,IIIIOlliHS. The distriblililln \~III be' In propomrio!l to thl !lllmber of e'luity shares held by the shareholders. 

c) Numher of shares ISSUl'J, subscribed and fully pmd 258.01 
258.01 

d) Number elf shares jssut:d, subscribed and funy paid -
l', P;tr I ;llul' Ix'r :;Jlarl 10.00 
t) Rcconuit.lll0n of the IIlllnbl'f shares olltst:lndlllg ,It Ihe bq.,l1nnlng ami tht: end of 

thl' repornng Iwriod 
i Shares outstanding at the begil1111ng of the reporting period 258.01 

II shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period 258.01 

iii I ':quit)' shares capital at the end of the reporting period 2,580.1 0 

14.3 Share" In rhe compall\' hdJ bl each shareholder holding more than 5 per cellt shares specifying the number of shares held 

(a) [) S },.ulkami 
l\.jull1ber of shares 60.00 

l'elu'n t'lgl' 
23.26% 

(b) II l) },.ulkal'1li 

'llmher of sh.lr,s 49.06 

Jl,rcl'llinge 19.01 % 

(e) \,hok [1.11'111:11' 

Numbl'l of share~ 38.78 

l'en:nH.lgl· 15.03% 

(d) Chander Rh,\on 
umbl'r of ~harcs 20.00 

[lercelltage 7.75% 

(l') \sha Bh,)fI,\ . 
"umber of ~hare, 19.50 

I'crcl'nta)!;L' 7.56% 

I) Shlfl,h [.."ulk.\rlll 
15.20 
7.56% 

15 Other equity 
fa) Sl'cunnes I'rl'multll rcscrn: 30,82271 

(b) Debellntn: reJemprioll reserve 2,007.87 

(c) Celleral reserve 953.70 

\d ) Rcr.l1lleJ eanl1ll!..'" -9,847.97 

Total other equi ty 23,936.31 

Nature and purpose of the reserves 

15.1 Securities Prem ium 

10.00 

258.01 

258.01 

2,580.10 

60.00 
23.26% 

49.06 
19.01% 

38.78 
15.03% 

20.00 
7.75% 

19.50 

7.56% 

30,822.71 
2,007.87 

953.70 
-9,527 .55 

24,256.73 

(~l'curitl'" Prcmiulll presenrs shares Issueu at premium less shart: issue expenses. The reserve is utilised in '\ccordance with th . . f 
.ompanll''' \ct.2011 ., e prOVlStOSn 0 

Particulars 

( }pellll1 g Halan ce 

.\JJ: PremIum on eyUlt)' ,hurl'S ISSU(;J 

Closing Balance 

As at 31s t Mar' 2021 As at 31st Mar' 2020 

30,822.71 30,822.71 

30,822.71 30,822.71 



15.2 D ebenture Red emption Reserve 
The compllltl' h.l~ I~~ued reueemablc non-con verriblc debcn 11Ire~ . ,\ccordingl)', the companies (share Capital and deben tllres) Rules, 2014 (~! 
Jnlendcd), rCl.JlIlre the company to create DIU~ out of profits of the company avatlabk for payment of dividend. DRR is required to be created 

for an amoun t which is eLJual to 25% of the value of deben tures issued. The Dim IS relluired to be credited over the life of debentures. 

\ccordlng I(J the (Jmp.lnlc~ (:-'h,ll'e capiLli and debcnlurL''') l~lIks, lUI ~ (~s ;tlllendl'l.l), a company should Oil or before the 30th day of April in 

each )var, 111\,<"r or dt'poslt, a Slllll whlclt wtll tlot be kss Ih.1II tifteen IK'rccIH ollhl' ,Ullount of it~ uebentllres matllring during the year ending 

on the 31 st dav of "larch of Ihe tleXI year. Ilowever, I hc (ompanl' ha~ becn ullable to make allY such tkposit/ investment. 

ParticuJars As at 31st Mar' 2021 As at 31s t Mar' 2020 

()pelllllg HalanCl' 2,007.87 2,007.87 

·\dd: \ddltlotlal debenture redeemed - -
Closing Balance 2,007.87 2,007.87 

15.3 Gener,1I Re~en e~ 

I hl Comp.11l1 h.ls Iransfern:d a portion of 1\..el Profits of thl Company before declaring Dividends to General Reserve pursuant to the earlier 
provision of The Companies \ct, 1956. tl.landarory transfer to General Reserve, I~ not required under the Companies Act, 2013 

Particulars As at 31s t Mar' 2021 As at 31st Mar' 2020 

Opmin)l; Balance 953.70 953.70 

\Jd: \dditions made - -
Closing Balance 953.70 953.70 

15.4 Retained Earnings 

Ikta1l1l'd l.lI1l1ng' rl'pre';t:nl, the accumulared losses thar rhl' ( ,o\11pall)" ha~ till date . 
Panicularb As ,It 31s t M ar' 2021 As a t 31s t Mat' 2020 

Openll1g Balance -9,527.55 -6,229.72 

j\dd: Ne.:! profit/0oss) for the.: year -320.42 -3,297.83 

Closing Ba lance -9,847.97 -9,527.55 

15.5 Distribution made and proposed 

<.a"h dilldt:nt" Oil l'lluity share.:, declare.:d and paid : 
I;inal diVIdend for Ihl' ye.:ar mued -
1)1) J" till till.1i dlvldelld -

Proposed dll Idl.!lId" on I':yuit) sh,lres 

I ;illal dll"ldt'lId for the ycar mdcd - -
DDT on final dividend -

Propose.:d dividends Oil e.:lluit)' shares are.: subje.:ct to approval at the annual gellernlme.:eting alld arc not recq,l11ised as a liabilty (including DDT 
thereon) as at 31 st March. 

15.6 rhe company has not made any nOll-cash distribution to It~ shares holders during bo th the years. 

.. 



16 on-current borrowings secured 
a) 1.lsteo secured Redemablc 'on-convernbk l)ebenrun;;: 

'I) (lpflOI1 I 

(it) (lptiol1 II 
(II) ()pti(lIl III 
\111) (lpl1ol1 1\' 

(b) Project term loans from banks 
(i) ICiCI Hank \'cdam I'Tl. 

(ii) State Bank of India Drcam City PTl. 
(iii) ICICI I lousing I·itlance Co j\nandghan 1'']'1. 
(Iv) Syndicatc Hank Dream city PTL 

(v) Ul1lon Hank of India Drcam City PTL 
(vi) Bank of ,\Iaharashtra Drcam City P'l J. 
(VII) 11)111 Hank Dream City J>TJ. 
(Viii) "Ilaya Bank Drcam City P'I'L 
(ix) 1 ndiabulls I lousing I ;inance l.imited 

Ic, CnrpnLlll term I(.ans fmlll b.lllks 
(i) ~<lngalt l 'rban (.()()perativl' BanI; 1 td 
Iii) lata C;lpitall.td. 

(iii) The: Kalyan Janara Sahakan Hank 

(d) Cooperative term loans from Financial 111stitutlons 
(i) Bajaj Jo'inanacc Ltd 
(il) \oilya Birla I'inance l.td 
(iii) STCi Finance Ltd 

(e) \' chicle: term loans from banks 
Ii) IIIW( Bank I.td 

(~ \' chick term loans from financial institution 
(i) '1 OYOla I ;in<lllcial Sen·icc, J .rd. 
(ii) Korak Mahindrn I)rim~' l.td 

(g) Term Loans from fin:tneiallnstltutions securcd by pledge of promotors' sharcs 
(i) I'une Safety Vaull LLI' 

(ii) Ruia Knowkdgc & Itcscareh 1 I1Sllllllc 1'\'1. l.td. 
(ui) SKS Ilineap Pvr. Ltd 

To[,d non-current borrowings secured 

l IlSl'lllrl't! Borrowings 

,I) i)ll'tlSII' In'lll PlllJltl 
(il) 1.0,111 from dirl'nor 

(c) I.oan from "h,lrl'ilOldl'l's 

5,172.20 5,172.11) 

2,342.55 2,342.55 

180.41 180.41 

3,442.60 3,442.60 

1,000.00 1,000.00 

12,579.81 12,579.81 

7,944.50 7,9¥.50 

7,667.00 7,667.00 

6,292.86 6,292.86 

6,292.00 6,292.00 

4,723.66 4,723.66 

2,131.45 2,131.45 

5,666.35 5,666.35 

205.69 205.69 

713.53 713.53 

1,336.72 1,336.72 

1,403.31 1,403.31 

936.47 936.47 

2,689.45 2,689.45 

1.25 1.25 

7.07 7.07 

0.58 0.58 

50.00 50.00 

25.00 25.00 

156.14 156.14 

72,960.60 72,960.60 

2.00 2.00 
96,34 96.34 
61.35 61.35 

Total non-clIrrent borrowings 73,120.29 73,120.29 

16.1 RighI to n.!lssue: Subject to the provision of the Companies ,\ct, 2013 where the company has fully redeemed any NCDs, the Company shall 
have, c' shall be deemed ah~ays {O have had, the nght to kec.:p such NCDs in effect wlthour extinguishment thereof, for the purpose of resale or 
re'lssuc & 111 e\l'l-cisli1g slIch right, rill' companl' shall ha\'l', & shall be deemed always ro have had, the power to re-sell or re-issue such NCDs 
l'lIhn In Il'sdhllg or re'lSslIlI1g rhl' same (.Ds Clr bl' NlIlIlg other. 'CDs, in .lcconJancl' With rhe applicable rliles & regulanons. 

16.2 Inren:st Oil NeD ()ptton I is nor accrued due to lack of cvidences from the Hanking Insitlltions n:garding the rate of interest. The NCDs will be 
redeemed on 06/07/2017. 

16.3 Interest Oil NeD OptlOIl 11 is NIL. The NCDs will be redeemed on 06/03/2020. 

16.4 Interest on '\.( 'I) ()ption III IS not accrued due to lack of evidences from Banking Instinltions regarding the rate of interest. Under Ihis option 
payment of pnncipal together with inrercst accrued on thc residual face value will be paid as under: 

Sr Partial Redemption dates % to Face Value 

1 oth ~c.:ptl'1nbl'1, 2016 10.00 

2 61h !'l'pIl'1l1bn, 2()J 7 15.00 

} urh ~lpll·1l1IH.T, 1011) 20.00 

25.00 

25.00 



16.5 Interest on NCD Option IV is not accnled due to lack of evidences from Banking Institutions regarding the rate of interest. The NCDs will be 
redeemed on 06/09/2021. 

16.6 The primary ~ecurity for State Bank of India Dream City PTL is pari pasu 1st charges by way of registred morrgage of specifie~ ~rojec~ land 
alung with pn:sent and future structures thereon along with other project term lenders consortium Banking). TIIC collateral secunty IS p~ pas~ 
1st charge by way of registered mort),>age of specified land. In addition, the project loan IS secured by the personal guranree of Mr. D.S.Kulkarru 
& Me. Siurish Kulkarni. 

16.7 The I'nmarl' "lTlirin' for the ~\'ndicate Bank (Cold l.ea0 1''1'1. IS rl').,ristlTed mOft).,>;1ge of sepcified Project and along \dth p~esenr and future 
,Irtlttllrl" IhL"fl'l,n 111 .1(kIItHlIl. the projL'c( IOJn IS SLTlm:J bv the pcr,;on.l1 guarantce of ;\11'. D.S.r..:.ulk.IOli & \Ir. Sluri;h kulkram. 

16.8 The Primary security for Sl'ndicate Bank Dream Cit)' PTL IS pari pasu 1 st charge bv way of registered mortgage of specified project land along 
with present a~H.l futurc structures thereonwith other project term lenders (Consortium Banktng). The Collateral security is pari pasu 1st .charges 
by way of registered mortl-,>age of specified land I n addition. the project loan is secured by the personal guarantee of (\/r. D.S.Kulkarru & Mr. 
Shirish Kulkarni 

16.9 'l1,e J>ril~ary security for Han k of Maharashtra Dream City PTI. is pari pasu 1 st charges by way of registered mortgage of ~pe.cifi~ pr~ject land 
along With present and future structures thereonwith other project tcrm lenders (Consortium Hanking). The Collateral secunty IS pan pasu 1st 
charges by way of rL:gisrered morrgage of specified land In addition. the project loan IS securetl by the personal guarantee of Mr. D.S.Kulkarni & 
\Ir <;hiri~h Kulkarni 

16.10 The plimaty sccurity for lOCI bank Vedant PTL is re!,ristered mortgage of specified project land along with pre'ent and future structures 
theron. The collatcral security is registered mortgage of specified land along with present & future struCtures thereon and a charge 011 thc 
receivables of specified projects. In addition, thc project loan is securcd by the personal gurantee of 1\lr. D.S.Kulkami c' Mr. Shirish Kulkarni. 

16.11 '['he Primary security for the 100 liFe Ltd. j\nandghan P,],1. is registercd mortgagc of specified Project land along \vith present and future 
slructures thereon The collateral security is rq,ristn:d mortj.,>;1ge of specified lantl along with present & future structure there on and 
hypyothecation of project receivables. [n addition, thc project loan is sccured by the personal guarantee of Mr. D.S. Klilkarn~ ~Ir ,birish 
Kulkarni & J\1rs. II.D.Kulkarni. DSK Clobal Education and Research Limited is co gUfantor to the nille of receivablcs from the projcct in lieu 
of consitlvratioll for rvlilllluishing of dev<:lopmcnt rights of pan of project lantl. 

16.U The Primary security for II )BI Bank Dream City P'I'I, is pan pasu 1 st charges bv wa), of registeretl mortgage of spccified project land along '\\-ith 
present and future structures thereonwith other project term lenders (Consortium Banking). The Collatcral sccurity is pari pasu 1st charges by 
way of fegist<:rcd l1lorlgagl' of specified land anu hYf1yothecation of project recL:II'ablcs. In atlditlon, the project loan is secured by thc personal 
guarantee of 1\.lr. D.S.Kulkarni & Me. Shirish Kulkarni 

16,13 The vehicle tcrm loan from '('oyota I'inancial Services IS secured b)' hypothecatIOn of specific vehicles, 

16.14 Thc vehicle term loan from Korak Mahindra Prime is secured bl' hypothecatioll of specific vehicles. 

16,15 The vehicle term loan from [ IDFC Bank is sccured by hypothecation of specific vehicles. 

16.16 The c1alll1s from the banks have been duly verified and recorded the balances backed by valid evitlences, 

16.16 The lo,ln f((J1ll Ruia Knowledgc & Rc~earch Instltutc I'ri'OItL: Limited is secured by plcuge of 1,50,000 (P. Y. 1,50,000) Equity shares of rhe 
Company held by the Company's promoters. 

16.18 The loan from Pune Safcty Vault LPP is secured by pledge of 2,10,000 W. Y. 2,10,000) r':quity sharcs of the Company held by the Company's 

promotn,. 

16,19 'I'he loan from SKS I'incap Pvt. I.td. is securetl by pletlge of 10,00,000 0). Y. 10,00,000) I':quity shares of the Company held by the Compmy's 

promoters. I 

16.20 '1 'he CompallY has accepteu deposits from the shareholuers without complying with the requirements of the Companies ".ct, 2013 

17 D eferred tax liabilities (n et) 
The deferred tax liability comprises the effect of the following; 
DTJ. resulting from tlmil11g difference between book depreciatioll and tax deprcciation 42.68 -l2.68 

Total Deferred tax liabili ties (n et) 42.68 42.68 , 

I Other /lou-curren t liab i l i ti e~ 

ta) Deposils from subSidiary 25.00 25.00 

0) Othcr depOSits 
887.96 7.96 

(c) -\dvance from debtors 
1,178.62 1,1'1.62 

I' IT ' 2.091.57 - ,091.57 Total o ther non -current 1,')1 Illes . . 

1 .1 "I cI r b'!iry/ ... ( ha' no t becn considered for the year due to unct'rtnlflty of ,\ gOing concern of rhe buslIless. ! lC dcferre rax 101 I I asse • s . 

!8.2 D . f S b 'u' .. nor \'L; rified due to bck of confinnarlnns from tht tlmd P'lrrtl'S. 
CPOs1tS rom. 1I Sl lary all 



19 Current borrowings secured 
Working capirallJmits from banks 

1 Bank of Maharashatra 

2 The kaJ)'an .Ianata Sahakari Bank I.td. 
3 State Bank of India 

Tot.!1 current borrowings secured 

Current borrowings secured 
Inter corporarc deposits 

1 \disull I':xrorts P\'t.1.td. 
2 ,\mbiance Venture~ Estate & Dev Pvt Ltd 

3 ,\MS hrarments Pvt. Lrd. 
4 \siatic Gascs Limned 

5 Bhavnah>:lr Oil ~jilJ I>vt. Ltd. 

6 Bombay \lcrcantilc & I .eastog Co J .td. 

7 Citric India Ltd. 

8 I·.tndabad Papcr ,\Iill Lrd 

9 (;illl Tcx Pvt. Ltd. 

10 II011cst \gc11cies I'\'t I.td 

11 India Ener Cen Pvt Ltd 
12 I rcsco Electricals J>vt Ltd 
13 >-":K Invesrmcntl'vrl.td 
14 Nerwocth Porrfolio and I ;inance Pvt I.td 

15 Parodia h>rglllgs and Cears Ltd 

16 P:Jtodia Glass industries 

17 Raihrarhia Leasing & Financial Services ]>vt. I.td. 

18 RO\o \Iarketlllg Pvt. Ltd. 

19 RUla Joabrics Pvt Ltd 
20 Sakseria Beh ta Sugar I ;actory Ltd. 

21 Saksetia Opricles J>vt. l.td. 

22 !'cl<saria indusrries Pvt. I.rd. 

23 Shashi Dhawal II ydrolic Pvt. I.rd. 

2-1 Sh;tshi ILtg agcllcies 
25 Shti Krishna Rice & Oil i\hlls Pvt. I.td. 

26 Sunal<o Chemo Ind. Pvt. Ltd. 
27 Tccil Chcmicals :lmllll'dro Power Ltd 

28 I'ile Sasl'rta His\\'an Sugar hlCtory Ltd. 

29 Th ree I~()ses Ox ygen J>vt Lrd 

30 Tradelink I·.xim J>vt. Ltd 

31 Vibrant Clobal Capital I.td 

Total current borrowings secured 

2,860.32 
481.85 

3,221.95 
6,564.11 

25.00 
682.19 

50.51 
289,45 

15.00 
2.00 

183.64 
90.00 

106.00 
0.12 

190.00 
75.69 
25.00 

5.00 
273.51 
267.10 
281.00 
205.00 

3.10 
65.00 
10.00 

306.00 
100.00 

32.00 
10.00 

300.98 
3.21 

31.96 
40.00 

7.00 
156.44 

3,831.90 

2,860.32 
481.85 

3,221.95 
6,564.11 

25.00 
682.19 

50.51 
289.45 

15.00 
2.00 

183.64 
90.00 

106.00 
0.12 

190.00 
75.69 
25.00 

5.00 
273.51 
267.10 
281.00 
205.00 

3.10 
65.00 
10.00 

306.00 
100.00 

32.00 
10.00 

300.98 
3.21 

31.86 
40.00 

7.00 
156.44 

3,831.80 

Current borrowings secured 10,396.01 10,395.92 
19.1 'Illc primary ~ccurit)' for thc Bank of ~Jahara~h[ra ca~h cn:dtr limit is hypothecation of srock and debtors of encumbrance free projects. The 

collateral ~ccllriry is by way of CL)lIItabk mort~>:lge of specified presenr imm(wablc properries. In addition, this cash credit limit is secured by the 
person:!1 guarantee of \11'. )) S. Kulkarni & tiles. I r. D. KulkarnI amI corporarc guarantee of Ascent Promoters & Developers P Ltd., Growrich 

\gw-f()reslCry Pvt. Ltd. & 11(1) Land Agro-forestery I'vt. Ltd & Sapphire Promoters & Developers Pvt. Ltd. 

19.2 nle overdraft from Hank of ~laharashtr;J is secured bv pledge of term deposit receipts. 
19.3 I1wre I, 110 pnmary s~'Clll'lry for the ,\lortg'.Ige Overdraft limit from KaJ)'<ln .lanara Sahakari Bank Ltd. The collateral security is registered 

l11(1rtj.(.lgl of ('cft,lin tll1mo\'ahk IH()p~'rrit's In addltton, being .1 propert), oWlwr j.(uuralllor & co-applicants for this loan arc M/s 0 S Kulkarni 

& Co & j). ~. h..ulk'lnll & .\s,()CI.lles. Jlel':;on.11 (; lI;Jl'anrn: or ~hn. D. S. Kulkanl1 and ~Ir. Sillrish Kulkarni. 

19.4 JIll; mcrum fr lrom Svnulcatl I~ank IS secured by pk-dge of rerm deposn rl'cl'lptS. 

19.5 rill 0\ lrur.lfl from PUIl).lb '~ti('llal Hank is sl'cuceu 0" pk-dgt: pf tl'ftn dl·posit rereipts 



19,6 Thc primary ~ccurir)' lor the State Bank of inuia project specific cash creuit limit fot' developemcnt & construction is registered mortgage of land 
along with present & future structure thcreo 1 I uu" I ' I ' r M D S K lJ ni & Mr S D, 
• I . n amon, t liS oan IS secllrcd by thc pcrsonal guarantec 0 r. . . u mr . . 
)-..ulkanll. 

20 Trade Payables 

(a) Reiall:d Parrie~ 
471.15 471.15 

(b) ( )rher Parnes 
5,223.67 4,992.05 

Total Trade Payables 
5,694.82 5,463,20 

20.1 The ci.lim:.: Ill,HIe bl thl C1'l'd1!()f< hal l' b " 1 I I, ": 1" I . 
, . . . nl l \I I I III I,', ,!lId l',llH'dl'd Ihl' b.d,mcl's backed by vahd eVidences. 

20.2 Trade pal'abb & all hablittles arc non-intcrest-b''',ring un Ie .. Sl fi d I " I ' , , ss S leCI Ie ot leflVlse In tIC contract. 

21 Other Financial Liabilities 

(a) Currenr marULitles of long-term dcbt 

(1) Intercst accfucd bur not due 011 Debcntures 5,221.55 5,221.55 
(b) Unpaid! unclaimed public deposits 1,487.30 1,487.30 
(c) Intercst Pa)able-Subvention Schcmc 277.98 277.98 
(d) Interest on I:D payable 

208.86 208,86 
(e) \d\'ancc 3!,rainst tcncments ! plots 54,010.05 54,009.78 
(fj Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 8,822.73 8,822.73 

Total Other Financial Liabilities 70,028.46 70,028.20 
21.1 The details of mOft)..,tages of the assets held by the Company and thc secureu NCDs arc disclosed above. 

21.2 111C interest payable to Tata capital I lousing I'inance Lru. On subvention scheme is secured by morth"'ge of specified land. 

22 Other current liabilities 

(a) Unclaimed dividenus 13.37 13.37 

(b) Statutofl habthries 2,107.52 2,100.60 
Total other current liabilities 2,120.89 2,113.98 

22.1 l11e balance of dividmd unclaimed for I'l' 09-10 & 10-1 1 has not bcen [ransfcrreu to II':P" fund as per the provisions of Sec 124 of the 
rompanie~ \ct, 2013. 

22,2 111e stlnltOfY liabilities have not been [laiu till dare and the same is relied on the accounting records maintained by the management. 
Due to lack of lo/..,rm credentials available, the liabilities due to the government have nor been verified inspite of various representations. 

23 Provisions 

'a) J>r", !Slon for expenses 189.56 192.55 

(b) Prol"tslOn for employee benefits 959.49 959.49 

(c) De\'elopment expenses payable 3,022.41 3,022.41 

(d) Income tax provisions (net) 332.83 332.83 

Total Provisions 4,504,29 4,507.28 

23.1 Provisions for expenses have been recorded after duly veryifying the claims received by .various creditors. . 

23.2 V" f d e visible in Form 26AS but the same has not been receIVed by the company. I-Ience the same IS assumed to be anous Ulcomc tax rc un s ar ".. .. 
adjus!cu against the previous uemands outstanding as uisclosed ill the Contlllgent 11,\bdlt)'. 

23.3 I' d d d d' I r fOt' various ('I RJ> cost incurred as been consiuered but few of the ['ax deducted has not been paid to the ax e ucte at source unng t Ie yea I " .., 

I d f·"I e financmk 'I'hl' salTH: has bcen 'Iuailfied In Ihc \udlt I~eport. W)\,Cfllmenl lIplO t Ie ai,' () 'I!-(nlng I 1 , ,. 

24 Contingent Liabililies not provid ed fo r:. ,.. , 
10,000.00 . . . r·,· r·d I(nlls oiJmlllcd b\' anlltiH I COlllp.ll11 10,000,00 

1 (, uaran tce IS rcspl'c t () 'Cell e , 
8,152.79 8,152.79 Balance uf .eclIn:u loans ,IS at end of ),ear 

780.40 780.40 
2 Cuaranrec to C;ovcrnmcnt Authormcs 

15,119,12 15,119.12 
3 Tax i\farr(;r~ under appeal 339.88 339.88 
4 Cascs tilcd a~\iJ1st lhe company 812.16 812,16 
5 (('Il\',H Cfldit ,wailed " . 35,204,35 35,204.35 

, , d f lI e rep o rting pe ri od " 
I.. 1 utili lit the en () 1 I I)l' "lIlll' of prcvlolls ycar III alls"llcl' of ,l1\)' l'vldence. 1,\, " . . I r', I' I'l ill'l'll suSt,lIlll'l 10 .' , '.'. . 

I'll" I Ill' details ot cllnllngent Ita JI1!Jl l.l . .' TtllllSSl'rs IS COlltlllgllll It'lilillt\ .IS the (.<lIllP;\I1Y IS lIltO itllullbrion through NCLT and 
I . . ( . 'dl 'II"lIkd 111 Ilon C\l1 ' 
II aduillOIl to Ihc .Ihol'e, the CClll:.l t .I~ I , , . ' r 'llJlilorill, Jlank guaranle,' tt> rlit' l'xt,'nt of I ~s, 1,00.00,00,000 and income tax liability to 

II . J .. d 10 I hc VOI'l'l nl11L11 . , " . " , , 
1(0 S;1111l' shall not Ill' Ilbl.\inl'd IMlca p.lI. d' rhl' c tCl1l of Ihl' claims rCCl:lvcd by Ih,' rl'spl'ct\I'e ;]urhontll's <ln u itablhty VISIble o n the Income 

Ihll'XIl'lll of Rs. 1,37,25, 10,306 has bl'l'Jl <.bclW'l' ro . 
tax portal. 
""'-



Note (0 Standalone Financjal Statements for the year end 'd 

2- Re eou> from operations 

(a) Rcvenue from Compan)' othef tha 1 t-
_ • 1 a Inancc companv 

(,) - all' nt land & Dcvelopment fight,; . 

As at 
31st March 2021 
(Am! in Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March 2020 
(Amt in Lakhs) 

Total Revenue from operalio~ _ 

\~ rLT I. 'n \S lIS. tIll' Comp.,n\' Ill~ nt , I - bl' ' . ' 'r e has ~5.1 
. .: " () rl('llg11l~l' l .111) rl'\'1'11lll' ~IIlCl' tlwre I,; nil ~alisfarr'()n of pcrformance 0 tgatlOn~ cus om r not oln:llnl'd controlo! thl' .1'''CI 111 thl' ClIrrcn! \' ., II , I " 

r-- . 1.1r II lI11p.\CI Ilneo! 111 nl'gltgtblc. 

26 Other Income 

,:1) IncomL from sub"iolanes 

(b) Interest on fixeo oeposits with bank 
(c) DISC<1U11I lkcel\'ed 

Total at the end of reporting period 

5.64 

0.00 

26.1 I1wrc JfC fL Il.ra I IIlC01~lL .'lno intl'n:st incot1l1' dul' from Ihl' rdated panic,; oi Ihe Compan)' which has not been recogrused with an 
as,;umpnon ot no receIpt III currl'nt.lear or na\ futufe years, 

5.64 

26.2 Due (0 lack of Interest statements available by the management, interest on vanous deposits including deposits from banks have been 
fL'Corul:d based on Form 26 \ '. 

2 Purcha e of tock-in-Trade 

(a, • ub-Contractor', Charges 

Total Land & I or development expenses 

2 Increa e/(Decrea e) in inventories of finishes tenements & wip 

fa) Firu"h"d tenements 
( )pLlllOg 

J.{:'~" . CloslOg 

1J) \\ ork-IO-progress 

Operung 

L~"" Closing 

1,381.64 
(1,3 1.64) 

L55,5·W.·L 
(155,540. 2) 

1 ,381.64 
(1,3 1.64) 

1.55.540.42 
(1,55.540. 2) 

. ICD c ease) in inventories of finishes tenements & wip - -
Total Increase e r . . I" • '. nor recorded due to lack of documentation or ~':lle valu' with the management, 

2.1 10'" 'L ,F \arious sale of fiOlshed teneml:nt~, tlc ~ame t~ 

29 Employee Benetits expenses 

fa) . 'alane$, wage,;, bonus etc 

, ... ' I I.' company as the sal .omp... . .. h' , 
29.1 I hefe are IlO l:mployce. 10 t 1 • . I" In~'nt \,l~lr \\Inh the ral t Ih.lt t C) r 

'd oy rcmuoer:ltton til I 1~ (\ • 29.2 Director' have not been pal a 
and rl'~lIH ,ill .. ,lid nllJlll'~ 

not in .1 P,)SItIl >n to 'ork f,)r th company 



.---
30 Office & udmin e 'penese 

(~) Profl'~~I()nnl t'xren~e~ 
13.04 12.29 

~») C11~J> ( '()~t 
105.87 53.08 

(c) Tru~ll'e fees 7.03 -
(d) I.egal charges 

32.49 7.04 
(c) Security charges 

8.54 -
Total office & udmin expenese 

159.94 79.44 

30.1 J11C company b<:il~g u,lldel' cm!' . proccs~ has JncuITt·d \',1rIOUS elR!' related coSI for the COr: meetings held . The cost incurred has been 
JPprO\ l·d bl rhe ( .()( member~ In every t1llTl1ng hdd 

30.2 \'ari()u~ periodic expellses have not be ' 1 I I· d ~ I . . ~ h . d ' el JO() \e or t II I'ear due to lacl< of documentation / detailed eVidences or t at perm . -
31 Finance COl>IS 

(il) IIllLTl':<r Oil deposits & loans - 698.96 
(b) Imerest to rinanC1ullllstltuti()ns - 3.75 
(e) Interest to banks 001 520.50 
(d) Other financial expenses 0.00 3.95 
(e) Interest on Debentures - 1,484.14 

Totallinance Costs 0.01 2,711.30 

31.1 Intcn::<r from \'ariou~ banks have been recorded based on the loan statements available with the management. 

32 Depreciation & Amortization expenses 

(a) Depreciation expenses 160.47 512.73 

Total depreciation & Amortization expenses 160.47 512.73 

33 Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 

(a) Gross amount required to be spent dunng the year - -
(b \m<Jum "pent dUrtng thl' year - -

rill ( otnp:lt1y I" nor dl,l.6bll' to ,;pend part of the amount for the purpose of CSR ll~ pcr the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 

TOlal Corporat<: Social Responsibility expenses 

34 Earnings per share(EPS) 
r~arnlOg-~ pl'r ~harc is calculated in accordancc with thc I nd ,\S 33 

Particu lars 

Profit aftcr tax (in lacs) (320.42) (3,297. 3) 

Wl'lghwd average number of I ':llulty shares 25 .01 ?--:> .01 

[Nommal value of Fquiry shares 10.00 10.0 

Ba~ic and DiJut<:J earning-s pcr share - -



f{ulkarni Developers Ltd. 

g; . L45201P 1991PLC063340 

, ro [he wndalone Ind AS Profit and L 
otC~ oss Statement ~ I or t le year ended 

35 Related party disclosures 

Nal1lt:s of related parties where control e " . 
; \ X1Nts and relate I 

~ubsJJi;lfjl" ' t pan" relationship 

I OSf Ol'Vl'Iopcl'S CorporatIOn 

Step-down subsiwarles 

kc\ m<lnageJl1ull personnel 

Rebtives of key management personnel 

1 DS}'" Infra Pvt, Ltd, 

3 DS!' Southern Projects Fvt Ltd. 
DS! Woods LLC 

Mr. D. S. !'ulkarllJ 

I Mrs Hemanti D Kulkarni 
2 Mr. Amlt Deepak Kulkarni 

3 lIlrs,. \shwini Sanjay Deshpande 

-I Mrs. Bhah'Yashrce • \nut KuIkarru 
5 .\11'. i\lakarand S. J' ulkarni 
6 Mrs. Tallvi S Kulkarni 

7 Mr. Shirish Kulkarni 

31-Mar-21 

J\Ianaging Director 

Enrerprises ownt'u or SIf.,'1utic311th.' tnfluenct>d bl' 
management personnel or theu relatives 

key ,\mbiance \'entures Estates & Developments Pvt. Ltu. 

2 r\mit & Company 
3 Ascent Promoters & Developers PVl. Ltd. 
4 Chandradeep Promoters & Developer~ Pvt. Ltd. 

5 D. S. Kulkarni Constructions Pvt. Ltd. 

6 D.S.Kulkarni & ,-\ssociates 

7 D.S.Kulkarni & Brothers 

8 D.S.Kulkarm & Company 

9 D.S.Kulkarni & Sons 

10 DSK & Asso 

11 D.K& Co. 
12 DSK Auto Pvt. Ltd. 

13 DSK Constructions 

14 DSK & Sons 

15 DSK Digital Technologies Pvt. Ltd 

16 DSK Entertlllnment LLC 

17 DSK Global Education and Research Ltd. 

18 DSK Infotech Pvt. Ltd. 

19 DSK Milkotronics Pvt. Ltd. 

:W DSK £\forors Pvt. Ltd. 

21 DSK tdorotrucks Pyt. Ltd. 

22 qSK i\Iow\\'ht'l'b Pvt. Ltd. 

23 DSK Prabhu Granite LLP 

2-1 DSK Sales C' Servicl's 
25 DSK Shivll)WnS FO()fb,1I1 Club Pn Ltd. 

26 DSK Studios p\'t Ltd. 

27 DSK World Edllcntillt1 llullcil 

28 DSI' \Vodtlman PWJl' ts Ltd. 
29 Fnlrrl:1nu promotl'rs c' Dn'l'Iopefs Pvt. Ltd. 
30 Foc~l't'l' Soha P1'Ojects PyC Ltd . 

. 11 Gh:1rkul 
32 Grecngoltl Farms <:' t'ocests Pyt. Ltd 

33 Growrich .\groforl'stry Pvt Ltd. 

3~ I /L'xagoil CaJlltal \tkisors p, t Ltd 

.'\5 Ilol)'lanJ . \gwlon'slf)' lIn Ltd. 

36 Rasa Group 
.'\ 7 Sapphin' PWIllOll'lS &. DCVl'lnpl'l's p,,1. Ltd. 
,,~ ~hn S,lplaslllllllg ( hi ,\blls PH I.td. 

W 'j';dislll;\n 11llspll,Ihry ,'l'l\ICl'S PVI. Ltd 

II) Tdl'Sllll'lI 
~ I TrKlJIlt' Infl'lll'oll l.ld. 



:'k I S. 1 ulkaou 

\Ir ,'Imish hulkanu 

ub H I,ll 

L }.1O, ,\1ld d\ .In s p.l: \ 

I , J-....ulk.trm <.:'. \s:nciatt'S 

I: ulkanu '. 'oml ;I11Y 
I .:.hulk: rIU onstmction; Pyt Ltd 
I :h Infra p"! Ltd. 
l Sh \\ orldm:l.n Project:; Ltd 

D,'I( ~lob,11 Education and R st'arch Ltd. 

r:h 110l>al Educ:l.tion J Re~earch-.\n;\ndghan Loan 
~lt .. 11 D hulk:u:ni 
, Ir, Sluosh J-....ulkarni 

:--If 1) J-....ulkanu 

mllancl' \ enrures Estate: . Developments Pvr. Ltd. 
~ ub lotal 

D P ie payable 
D, Kulkarni c' _-\ssoClates 

D:h Glob:l.l Educarion and Research Ltd. 
\/r D : Kulkarni 

ub total 

4 Trade payable 
D, 'K ;\lowfS p,,( Ltd 

D:K • fowwheds p"t Ltd 
D. 'K Global Education and Research Ltd. 

Talmnan Hospitality PVL Ltd 

Mr :lunsh Kulkarni 

\Ir .. I I D Kulkarni 

1 t'it-slllt'll 
D : Kulk:lrlll •. \:;soClares 

ub total 

~ In\' (men( a t (he year end 

DSK Developers Corporaoon 
Ul>'-: Pn)\'ision for permanent dUl1uniool1 in yalut.: 

D:K Global EduClHlOI1 am] Rest.::uch Lrd 

D. I :oulill'fIl pft»)l'ct s PYI Lrd 
Less' Pf(l\'isiol1 for pl'rmanl'nr lhmul1irllll1 ill value 

D,Y Inti'a Pn Ltd 

lib lOtal 

6 A<.h .U1CCS ( cei\'abl 

Tnc()1lt' Iniracon Ltd 
D:I-:: Global Education and Rt.:s~.lfch Ltd 

• Ir Slunsh I' lllkarni 

ub to ra! 

2020-21 
Rs. in Lacs 

490.59 
600.0S 
152.00 

1,242.64 

13,692.90 

37,337.79 
14.43 

145.23 
103.39 
120.26 
437.16 
299.24-
48.94 
96.34 

682.19 
53,027.85 

0.50 
25.00 

177 

272 

56. 3 
155. 4 
112.-5 

2-

223.9 
35.03 

0.03 
0.22 

- 6."'6 

509.50 

(509.50) 
........... .,. 
1 .) • .)-

1,400.::!} 

(1,400.23) 
200.00 
2733_ 

469.2 

65970 
226.2::! 

1,355.19 

31-Mar-2i 

2019-20 
Rs. in Lacs 

490.59 
600.05 
152.00 

1,242.64 

13,692.90 
31,387.79 

14.43 
145.23 

103.39 
120.26 
43,.16 

299.24 
48.94 
96.34 

6 2.19 
53,02 • 5 

0.50 ' 

25.00 
177 

2 .27 

56.43 

35.03 
0.03 
0.22 

- 6. 6 

509.50 

(509.50) 
7332 

1,400.::!3 
(1,400.23) 

::!OO.OO 
_73.32 

469.2 
659.70 
226.22 

1,355.19 



p . S. Kulkarni D evelopers Ltd. 

erN L45201PN199IPLC063340 
Notes to the Standalone Ind AS Profit and Los S '-- ' statement for the year ended 

7 Loans receivable 

OSK Developers Corporation 
OSK Southern Projects Pvt Ltd 

Less PrOVlSl(H1 tor doubtful debts 

Sub total 

8 Deposits receivable 

o S Kulkarni & Company 
!\lr Siunsh 0 Kulkarni 

\[rs H 0 Kulkarl11 

o S Kulkarni & Associates 

O~K Global Education & Research Ltd 

Sub total 

9 Trade receivable 
OS}'" ShivaJians Football Club Pvt Ltd 

Sub total 

10 Guarantees given 
D~K Global Education and Research Ltd. 

Sub total 

TOTAL OF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

PROFIT / LOSS ITEMS 
1 Interest Income 

DSK Developers Corporation 
DsK S{)uthc::rn Projects Pvt Ltd 

Sub total 

31-Mar-21 

6,959.68 6,959.68 

5,289.40 5,289.40 

(4,713.84) (4,713.84) 

7,535.24 7,535.24 

25.00 25.00 

14.00 14.00 

1.50 1.50 

2500 25.00 

11.03 11.03 

76.53 76.53 

0.38 0.38 

0.38 0.38 

10,000.00 10,000.00 

10,000.00 10,000.00 

74,125.19 74,125.19 

There are interest expense due to the related parties of the Company which has not been recognised with an intention of no 

payment in current year or any future years. 

TOTAL OF PROFIT / LOSS ITE MS 

74,125.19 74,125.19 

Grand Total 

36 Disclosure for assets taken on lease as per Ind AS 17: 
The Company has entered Into operating lease arrangements for office space at Pune anti :tIlumbai.There are no future mirumum lease 
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as all the lease arrangements are cancellable at the option of lessee. Details of sud 

leases art' as lollows 

Sr. Landlo rd 
1 Mrs. 1 I 0 Kulkarni 
2 :,\lr. 0 \rgade Paul 

Total 

Premises 

Pune J !\l Ru. Offict' 
.\rgatll' {lights, Punt' 

From 
OI.Sep· 1S 
l l -Jan.IS 

T o 
3 1-. \llg-:!O 

10);\11.20 

TI d
' l _ . .,-' ,.1" . p~r the books maintaJlll'd tim' to lack of lease agJ'el'metlls 

1l' abo"l' etal s are "rl'11a1 CU~, , 

Ren t p.n (R ,) 



2,592.OJ .... .. ~ 8,. 
,.1'-

7.m.to 
'7 •• 



1 arne of Enti~ 
Loan (0 ub Jdiarie for bu ane 

D "Ot'n'lnpt'r (nrpnrauoll 

D. K :"uthtm Prowct p" Ltd 
u -lOtal 

purp c 

Corporal Guarantees for other mp ni 
O:K Global EduOlUOll . Re. carch Ltd 

gain t bank loan 

Inve tmen in u -idiaric' for bu me purp e 

O. • Oe\'e!oper Corp lratlOo 

O. K Infra p" Ltd . 

D. K L <lUtht·cn Prol~-ct. P\l Ltd. 
ub-total 

lnve tmen in former ub-idiary 

D. K Global Educauon 'Re.t:..rCh Ltd. 

In ·estment by D 
ubidia ,) in i o-n 

De,'elopecs Corporation (US 
ub idiary D K '\ oods LLC 

1,974.45 
Additional infonnation related to delayed payment by the Company to I Hceo / 

1,97~. -

ficro, mall and • ledium Enterprises De\'e!opment Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006): Thi 
compliant chedule III is silent about chi disclosure, 

r J '0 Partlcular 

(1) The panopal amount remalOin~ unpaJd to any suprIJer (a~ udineu m .'2(n) of ~!:, [ED .\Cl, 

2006) a. at the end of the accounung year 

(11) The wtere:'{ due: un the: prinopa! amount remallung unpaid to any such suppIJer as at the en I of 
the accounung year 

Ill) 11 e amount, of pal mCl1ls maul' to such supplier bcyonu tht' appOlnteu tlar dunn" the 
a<.t;uunung ) ear 

(iv) The amuum of interet p:ud by the company 111 term: of S 16 of ~IS. !EO .\ct, 2006, durin' the 
a<'C()Ulltllll; yeA! 

(\') lbt: amount of IIlteCt'SI Jut' anJ payable for tIll" pl'riod of ddl) III making payment ~ Ith Jut 
add1l1g the mtt:ren I'peofit:d under M:. lED Act, 2006 

(\'1) The amount of interest accrued and cemrurung unpaid at the end of the llccounung eat 

(vu) TIlt" am(JullI of funha Intert:~1 dut: and pa)ablt: even 111 the lIccet: Im~ ) ~.lC 
wht:n the lnrert'st dut', arc aaually paid to the small t'1lIe:rpn e for the purp ) 
as a dt:ducnble expenditure: ul 23 of the 1 lED o\ct,2 6 

lIntll s 

ofwaUo n 

31- !ar-21 
R .inLa 

tl 

• tl 

t.l 

il 

it 

31-. ar-

'il 

... it 

il 



D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd. 
CIN US201PN199IPLC063340 

Notes to the Standalone lnd AS Profit and Loss Statement for the ear ended 3~-~ar-21 
41 Investments in subsidiaries: III the oplllion of til(' 11l~1I1agl'mellt, 00 loss IS expecteJ ro arise in respect of investments in subsidia.nes for 

whIch an addltJonal provisloll I~ felJlured. 

42 Amounts due to Investor Education & Protection Fund: . \s at the balance sheet Jarc, there are amounts due and outstanding to this 
Fund pertaining to ry 2009·10 to ry 2014-15. 

43 The Company has not compii('d with the provlsiollS of Sec 185 and 186 eJf rhe Companies Act, 2013 

.h per /Jur audJl rcpun oj e\TII dare. 
For R C Jain & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: WI00156 

~Oi& 
Meera JOlsher 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29th June, 2021 
VOl : 21115080AAAAA V6509 

Mr. Mano; Agarwal 

Registration no. IBBr;IPA-001~~mii~~r:: 
(fhe affairs, business and proper 
are being managed by the Resolution professional who act as agent 0 

rhc Company only without any personal liability.) 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29th June, 2021 


